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Piscal 2011 was strong year for Elizabeth Arden

resulting in another four quarters of consistent year

over year improvement in financial and operating

metrics It also was year of record sales and

earnings performance all despite aid amidst an

uiiceitdiii dud vuldtile glubdl ecuJuiuiiflu uuivirunniunt

Several years ago we embarked on Global

Efficiency Re Engineering initiative committing

significant time money and resources to system

atically improve gross margins EBITDA margins

and return on invested capital This initiative

included re engineering of our supply chain

logistics and sales and operations planning

processes
the implementation of an Oracle

based global enterprise software application the

transition to shared services model for order

to cash functions and numerous gross margin

initiatives in the areas of pricing product mix

dilution and vendor management among others

We also realigned our marketing organization

Over the past two years we have transformed

our marketing group into an organization designed

to batter support global brand management

including regional deployment teams with high

accountability for both brand performance and

commercial execution We began this process

in fiscal 2010 and added key resources globally

in fiscal 2011

Thanks in part to these efforts am pleased to

report that our fiscal 2011 net sales grew by 6.5%

to record $1176 billion and earnings per diluted

char adjusted inrracd by 79% fn rprnrd

$1.56 Gross margins adjusted EBITDA margins

and return on invested capital rose by 240 basis

points 190 basis points and 300 basis points

respectively We also generated $98 million in

cash flow from operations allowing us to end the

year with $59 million of cash and no borrowings

outstanding under our $300 million revolving

credit facility

Our improved financial performance also allowed

us to successfully refinance our long term bonds

with new issue maturing in March 2021 at lower

rates and to amend and extend our revolving

credit facility to January 2016 With this refinancing

we extended the maturity of our debt structure

and added $30 million of additional long term

capital with minimal impact to our annual

borrowing costs

Moving forward although we will continue to

focus on operational efficiency with expectations

for further improvement in our key operating

and financial metrics our primary focus will be
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on accelerating the organic growth of our brand

portfolio primarily in international markets

through the growth of our fragrance business

and the Elizabeth Arden brand The global

beauty industry is unique in that while it is

mature it is highly fragmented The size of

the total global beauty market is estimated at

$175 billion the top 10 brands however only

represent approximately 25% of the market

which provides us with tremendous opportunity

to continue to grow our business Given our

improved operational platform and operating

leverage we believe fhat revenue grnwth

represents the single biggest value creation

opportunity for our business and expect this

to be key driver of cash flow and earnings

growth in the years ahead

Pepositioning of the

Elizabeth Arden Brand

are very pleased with tim irionientum of the

iconic Elizabeth Arden brand Sales of Elizabeth

Arden branded products increased by g% in fiscal

2011 and we expect continued growth of the

Elizabeth Arden brand in fiscal 2012 This fiscal

yeac we are launching an exciting
and comprehen

sive global repositioning of the Elizabeth Arden

brand intended to modernize the brand and

make it more relevant to consumers globally

Research we conducted in Europe Asia and

the U.S indicates that the brand enjoys high

awareness and unique association with the

Red Door Spa and that these perceptions are

consistent across markets The opportunity is to

increase the relevance of the brand and engage

the consumer within the digital retail and spa

arenas which is differentiated concept among

global beauty companies Ms Elizabeth Arden

believed that to be beautiful is the birthright of

every woman message that resonates with

women around the world today more than evefl

and we intend to capitalize on this heritage and

revitalize the Elizabeth Arden brand in the hearts

and minds of consumers

All aspects of the Elizabeth Arden brand

repositioning are well underway for global

introduction into the market beginning in fiscal

2012 This involves bringing unified look and

feel to market including contemporary packaging

streamlined product line up that should result

in more productive sku assortment digital

communications updated retail store counters

revamped brand logo and several exciting

product innovations Our initial priority will be

on consistent commercial execution in our key

retail accounts and doors beginning in North

Amerira and Eurnpe in 2fl12 with further global

expansion planned for 2013 We intend to

leverage the Elizabeth Arden brand innovation

and product launches already planned for fiscal

2012 to drive the consumer communication of

the new Elizabeth Arden brand concepts This

deployment strategy of rolling out elements

of the brand repositioning on staged basis

minimizes risk and is intended to demonstrate

continuous irioirienturii mid build trdck 10d
of performance with retailers As we roll out

the Elizabeth Arden brand repositioning in 2012

and into 2013 we expect it to be major driver

of organic growth of the brand for fiscals 2013

2014 and beyond
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on our core skin care products Cerom/des

our luxe skin care treatment Prevoge our

most advanced anti aging product V/sib/e

Difference and Eight 1-Jour Creom the smart

beauty tool with cult like following We

intend to re invest in these brand pillars to drive

the overall growth of the Elizabeth Arden franchise

Our color cosmetic line also will be upgraded and

used to attract new consumers to the counter

Leverage Skin Care in

Large Asian Market

We also
expect the Elizabeth Arden brand

repositioning to contribute significantly to the

expansion of our skin care business in Asia

The skin care market in Asia is the largest in

the world with estimated annual retail sales

of $i billion We have recently enhanced the

management structure of our Asia Pacific business

and are also in the process
of increasing the

efficiency of our business in China by focusing

We made substantial

progress in expanding

our fragrance business

internationally in fiscal

2011 achieving 14%

net sales growth of

fragrances in our

internatidnal business

While we enjoy

healthy market share

within the North

American fragrance

market we currently

have low penetration

outside North America

EXPECT MORE PROM 50CR MAKEOP
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our resources on the most productive retail doors

We expect this to result in healthier and more

productive and profitable business

iocover Eight Hour Cream

imited Edition Jewel Collection

Yaar mast preCiXuX toaaty iaaia

This
exciting initiative will focus on our

experience and strength in skin care and

Grow Fragrance Business

Internationally

Fragrance revenue

by regiontm

uromon/tor DoLo 2070 ond Compony do/n

Asia Pacific

AusLalia

Middle East/Africa

Latin America

Li Europe

North America
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The two largest fragrance markets are Western

Europe with retail sales of $13 billion annually over

twice as large as the fragrance market in North

America and Latin America with annual retail

sales of $10 billion We have mapped our brand

portfolio across geographies and channels and are

focusing our resources behind the highest potential

brands and markets Our initial priority is Europe

given its size and developed retail infrastructure

We have strengthaned our commercial sales capability

and are focusing our resources and investments

against key brands including the Elizabeth Arden

fragrance brands of Ped Dooi P/izobeth Arden 5th

Avenue and Elizabeth Arden green Leo Britney

Speorsfontosy and Juicy Couturds Viva Lo Juicy

that have become relevant to the European consumer

Our top 20 customers in Europe represent approxi

mately 75% of our fragrance sales in Europe and our

net sales to these retailers increased 33% in fiscal

2011 We expect to continue to expand our European

fragrance distribution by increasing door penetration

uromonitor Dota 200

within key retailers and
increasing

the number

of brands and skus within the doors where we

currently sell fragrances

Key Fragrance

Brand Developments

In fiscal 2011 wa signed an exclusive global license

agreement with Taylor Swift the internationally

acclaimed music star to develop and market

new line of fragrance products The first Taylor

Swift fragrance Wonderstruck will ship in the

fall nf 2011 and debut in prestigo department

stores and retailers in North America The

name Wonderstruck is inspired by lyrics from

the song Ehtd off of Taylors most recent

album Speak Now

Taylors appeal is universal the talented singer

songwriter has won four Grommy awards including

album of the
year

for Pearless and her singles

have topped both the country and the pop charts

Taylor became the youngest artist to win the

Country Music Association Entertainer of the Year

award and is the most downloaded artist in history

with over 33 million downloads Taylors popularity

is also global Her Speak Now album is available in

48 countries and achieved Gold Platinum or Multi

PlaUnum status in over third of those countries

Taylors Speak Now tour is currently in full swing

slated to play 98 shows in 17 countries

HI
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We believe that Taylor has been especially savvy

in connecting with her fans and building her music

empire through social media outlets including

Pacebook Twitter and YntiTube and she currently

has an estimated 25 million Pacebook fans

We plan to leverage her social media base to build

awareness by creating multi media advertising

campaign that
engages her fans beyond the typical

media plan making the Wonderstruck launch

experience much more personal for Taylors core

consumer Plans include several first in category

digital programs that are designed to reach this par

tiLular cunaunier in unique way arid drive him ur

her to retail stores In addition our digital marketing

plan goes well beyond the initial launch of Wonder

struck in fall 2011 with plans to roll out fresh digital

content and provide marketing continuity for the

next several years We expect this ambitious and

exciting digital marketing program
to be unique in

the market place driving not only the initial launch

of Wonderstruck in the U.S prestige channel but

also providing the content and buzz that will

help fuel Wonderstrucks subsequent international

launch and rollout

The Juicy Couture fragrance franchise had another

strong year Net sales grew by 19% in fiscal 2011 due

to healthy performance in both our North America

and international segments This success can be

largely attributed to strong organic growth of the

\/tvo Io Juicy fragrance which grew by 29% in fiscal

2011 We have emphasized Vivo 10 Juicy as the
pil

ar of our Juicy Couture fragrance franchise through

advertising and strong retail execution In spring

2011 we embarked on heavy media marketing

campaign featuring the Juicy Couture fragrance

in Purope that led tn impressive hrand growth

and valuable marketing insights that will be used

to drive future international growth

Sales of our Britney Spears fragrances grew again in

fiscal 2011 driven by growth in international markets

including our distributor and travel retail markets

Britney Spears launched her new album music

tour in June 2011 and we have coordinated various

spunsurship uppurtunitieb during fULal 2012 that

coincide with num

ber of her current

tour dates in both

North America and

international markets

The Curve fragrance

brand remains

steady contributor

to our brand port

folio and in August

2011 we purchased

the trademarks for

____________ tnis orano rrom tne

licensor The mens fragrance continues to rank as

the mens fragrance brand at mass retailers in the

U.S We have exciting plans in fiscal 2012 to launch

new mass and mid tier brand for Curve Curve

Appeol Our retailers are enthusiastic and
eager

to support strong new product that has been

developed with

their particular

consumers and

retail environment

in mind

We are one year

into our licensing

agreement for the

John Varvatos

fragrances and

have built strong

momentum with

liI
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the John Varvatos fragrance brand Since assuming

the licensing relationship in May of 2010 we have

developed and launched ioth anniversary limited

edition fragrance and are shipping new fragrance

in fall 2011 that aligns to Johns Star USA apparel label

Growing North America

Fragrance Business

Our North American mass retail fragrance business

grew by 6% in fiscal 2011 and increased our market

share of the prestige fragrance category at mass

retailers We also made substantial progress with

our mass retail reinvention project to improve the

look and feel of the merchandising in the fragrance

category at mass retailers to drive category growth

promising development in this long term project is

the introduction of fragrance tester bars at various

mass retailers which allow fragrance consumers

the opportunity to sample selection of fragrances

Given that the mass retail environment is self service

environment allowing consumers self-service

opportunity to test and smell the fragrances is of

critical importance The installation of fragrance

tester bars is currently in process at number of

our mass retailers and the results to date show

significant sales increases for the fragrances high

lighted on the tester bar We expect to further

expand the use of tester bars with number of our

other mass retailers during fall 2011 In addition we are

working with our mass retail accounts on number of

other project initiatives to drive category development

The expansion of our direct to consumer business

continues with net sales doubling in fiscal
2oii

This

business which is comprised of our retail
ouHets

and commerce business is the fastest growing

portion of our prestige business During the fourth

quarter of fiscal 2011 we opened our fifth outlet

store expanding our footprint into Texas and since

then have opened two more outlets one in New

York and one in florida bringing our total to seven

stores We also are working on significantly

enhanced platform for our commerce business

that will enable much greater functionality and

geographic reach which should be operational

in the second half of fiscal 2012

In March 2011 we mourned the passing of Elizabeth

Tayloc screen legend renowned humanitarian and

astute business woman at the age of 79 Elizabeth

Taylor was two ftime Oscor-winning actress who

lived life to the fullest and pioneered the celebrity

fragrance business Her first perfume Possion

was launched in 1987 and White Diomonds which

was launched in 1991 remains the most successful

celebrity fragrance to date and continues to be

best selling fragrance Dame Elizabeths dedication

and involvement helped to make the fragrance

runaway success

5014 VAPiVATOS U.S.A

TV

Honoring Elizabeth Taylor

liii
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Our greatest tribute to Elizabeth Taylor will be

to continue the legacy of the fragrance brands

that she created and so loved Her sense of

hiimnç passion for
life never ending dedication

and generosity of spirit will be remembered by

us all and she will be deeply missed During the

fall of 2011 we will be celebrating her spirit and

her legacy as we celebrate the 20th anniversary

of her signature White Diomonds fragrance

Appreciation to our

Stakeholders and Employees

am very proud of our teams accomplishments

in fiscal 2011 and have never been more excited

about the future of Elizabeth Arden would like

to extend my sincere appreciation to all of our

talented employees and beauty advisors

around the world who are so dedicated to

making Elizabeth Arden global success

We have achieved
great

deal over the past

several years and it wouldnt have been

accomplished without all of your dedication and

passion also would like to thank our business

partners and shareholders for their continued

loyal support of our company We look forward

to continued success and profitable growth

4Mea
Scott Beattie

Choirmon President ond Chief Executive Officer

IlI
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Employees from the Stomford office of Elizobeth Arden

volunteering for the United Woys 0oy of Coring initiotive

This geor Elizobeth Ardcn

fielded teom for the

Poonolce Pelog for Life

Event which supports the

Americon Concer Society

lnsuppL 3/the ohniol Autism Sç3boks L.a.... Jue

Compoign the Elizobeth Arden fiogship store on sth Avenue

lit up its store front ond shelves with blue lights



Financial Highlights

Dollar arrounts in thousands Year ended June 30

Selected Statement of Operationa Data

2009 2010

Net sales 1070225

Gross profit 433j55

Adjusted gross profit 453081

Adjusted gross profit margin 42.3c

Net loss income 6163

Adjusted net income 13363 12

Diluted bPS as adjusted $0.47 iu

Selected Balance Sheet Data

Cash 23102

Accounts Receivable 190273

Inventories 318535

Short term debt 115000

Long term debt including current portion 223911

Shareholders equity 336778

Other Data

EBITDA5 36493

Adjusted EBIIDAS 67.847 .2

Net cash provided by operating activities

Adjusted PoicJ

1103777 $1175500

495974 $556277

495974 556277

449% 47.3%

19533 40989

25123 tnt 45216

$0.87 $1.56

26881 58850

170067 165622

271058 246514

59000

218699 250000

352617 417765

73170 100942

8o.8c 108.026

7.3% 9.2%

36986 113959 97746

5.1% 7.2% 10.2%

or the fiscal
year

erded June 302009 adjusted gross profit occludes appronimately $i99 lions costs related to the Liz Claiborne license agreement

Adtusted gross proht rsargir is he sodas adtusted gross proht din ded by set sales Al numbers are pro tao

the fiscal year ended June 30 2009 eucludes $34 Ilior of Liz Claiborse transition
eupenses $34 lIon related to the implementation

of our Oracle

accourt ng
ard order processing systems $3.5 lIon of restructuring enperses related to our Cl ha Efficiency Re engireering nitiatine ard $1 mi lions

restru turing euperses rot related to our Glnba
iency

Re
engineering

initiat cc Al numbers are pro tax

Enr the hscal
year

erded June 302010 eucludes million related to the
mplement ton of our Orac accounting ard order processing systems $19 mi lion

of rustru tur ng euperses ml ted to our Global Re ergineer ng ir ne .s million of restru turirg enpenses not ela ed to our Global Efficiency

Re
engineering

ir atine nd $om lIon of debt eutirgu sbmen con Al numbers are pm tan

it he hscul
year

erded Jure 302011 occludes $6.5 million of debt eutinguishment costs $0.3 or lIon related to the irrplementatior of our Oracle ccourting

and order pr essing sy term ard $0.3 mill on of restructuring expenses related to our Globa
ency

Re
engineering

nitiative All rurrbers are pretau

TDA
is

dehned asset scome pus
the

proc siur for income tanes for net oss less the beset from ircome taoes plus interest euperse pus depreciation ard

amortiz ton enpense Sue Note 10 ItemS Sele ted iai Data

Ad usted Return on Invested Capital P0 is
defined as adjusted net income plus after tao nterest

enpense

djumded by fbf otal debt less ash plus shareho ders cpu ty

Net Sales

$MMS
Adjusted Gross Profit

$MMS

Diluted EPS

as Adjusted
Adjusted EBlTDA1t

$5945

01200 0000 $1.00 0120

51160

0000

01.00

51.40

51 .120

01000

0400

0300

0200

01.20

01.00

00.00

04.60

$1040

5100

50.40

00.20

$1000 00 00.00

lT
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2011

Adjusted EBIIDA margin

0100

AdJusted Grass Praflt Margin

423% 44.9% 47.3%

000

060

540

520

SO

Adjusted Margin

6.3% 73% 9.2%
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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

General

Elizabeth Arden Inc is global prestige beauty products company with an extensive portfolio

of
prestige fragrance skin care and cosmetics brands Elizabeth Arden branded products include the

Elizabeth Arden fragrances Red Door Elizabeth Arc/en 5th Ave.we Elizabeth Arc/en green tea and

Pretty Elizabeth Aideii the Ehzabeth krden skin care brands Ceramic/c Eight Hoar Cream and

Prevage and the Ehzabeth Arden branded lipstick foundation and other color cosmetics products

Our
prestige fragrance portfolio includes the following celebrity lifestyle and designer fragrances

Celebrity Fragrances The fragrance brands of Britney Spears Elizabeth

Taylor Mariah Carey Taylor Swift and Usher

Lifestyle Fragrances Carve Giorgio Beverly Hills PS Fine Cologne and IJhite

Shoalclers

Designer Fragrances Jaicy Coatare Kate Spade New York John Varvatos

Rocawear Alberta Ferretti Halston Geoffrey Beene

Alfred Sang Bob Mackie and Lacky

In addition to our owned and licensed fragrance brands we distribute approximatel\ 300

additional prestige fragrance brands primarily in the United States through distribution agreements

and other purchasing arrangements

We sell our prestige beauty products to retailers and other outlets in the United States and

internationally including
11

U.S department stores such as Macys Dillards Belk Saks Blooiningdales and

Nordstrom

U.S mass retailers such as Wal-Mart Target Kohls Walgreens CYS and Marmaxx and

International retailers such as Boots Debenhams Superdrug Stores The Perfume Shop
Hudsons Bay Shoppers Drug Mart Myer Douglas and various travel retail outlets such as

Nuance Heinemann and World Duty Free

In the United States we sell our Ehzabeth Arden skin care and cosmetics products primarily in

prestige department stores and our fragrances in department stores and mass retailers We also sell

our Elizabeth Arden fragrances skin care and cosmetics products and other fragrance lines in

approximatel 100 countries worldwide through perfumeries boutiques department stores and

travel retail outlets such as duty free shops and airport boutiques as well as through our Elizabeth

Arden branded retail outlet stores and our website

At June 30 2011 our operations were organized into the following reportable segments

North America Our North America segment sells our portfolio of owned licensed and

distributed brands including our Elizabeth Arden products to department stores mass

retailers and distributors in the United States Canada anU Puerto Rico and also includes

our direct to consumer business which is composed of our Elizabeth Arden branded retail

outlet stores and global e-comnmerce business This segment also sells our Elizabeth Arden

products through the Red Door beaut salons which are owned and operated an

unrelated third parc that licenses the Elizabeth Arden and Red Dooi trademarks from us

for use in its salons

International Our International segment sells our portfolio of owned and licensed

brands including our Elizabeth Arden products in approximately 100 countries outside of

North Anierica to perfumeries boutiques department stores travel retail outlets and

distributors



Commencing July 2010 our operations and management reporting structure were

reorganized into two reportable segments North America and International The portion of our

business operations that previously sold Elizabeth Arden fragrance cosmetic and skin care products

in prestige department stores in the United States and through the Red Door beaut3 salons which

was previously reported as our Other segment was consolidated with the North America Fragrance

segment to create the North America segment

Financial information relating to our reportable segments is included in Note 18 to the Notes to

--

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our

net sales to customers in the United States and in foreign countries in U.S dollars and net

sales as percentage
of consohdated net sales for the

years
ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

are listed in the following chart

Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009

Amounts in millions Sales Sales Sales

United States 701.6 60% 670.3 61% 652.7 61%

Foreign 473.9 40% 433.5 39% 417.5 39%

Total $1175.5 100% $1103.8 100% $1070.2 100%

Our largest foreign countries in terms of net sales for the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and

2009 are hsted in the following chart

Year Ended June 30

Annunts in millions 2011 2010 2009

12 United Kingdom $69.9 $70.3 $73.6

Austraha 40.0 38.2 32.2

Canada 40.0 33.9 35.2

SouthAfrica 24.5 21.1 17.0

Spain 19.3 19.3 21.9

China 17.7 20.4 21.4

The financial results of our international operations are subject to volatility due to fluctuations

in foreign currency exchange rates inflation disruptions in travel and changes in political and

economic conditions in the countries in which we operate ryhe value of our international assets is

also affected by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates For information on the breakdown

of our long-lived assets in the United States and internationally and risks associated with our

international operations see Note 18 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Our principal executive offices are located at 2400 SW 145th Avenue Miramar Florida

33027 and our telephone number is 954 364 6900 We maintain website with the address

www.elizabetharden.com We are not including information contained on our website as part of nor

incorporating it by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K We make available free of

charge through our website our Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q

and Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to these
reports as soon as reasonably

practicable after we electronically file such material with or furnish such material to the Securities

and Exchange Commission

lnformation
relating to corporate governance at Elizabeth Arden Inc including our Corporate

Governance Guidelines and Principles Code of Ethics for Directors and Executive and Finaiice

Officers Code of Business Conduct and charters for our Lead Independent Director the Audit

Committee the Compensation Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee is available on our website under the section Investor Relations Corporate

Governance We will provide the foregoing information without charge upon written request to

Secretary Ehzabeth Arden Inc 2400 SW 145111 Avenue Miramar FL 33027



Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to increase net sales operating margins and earnings by increasing

the sales of the Elizabeth Arden brand through leveraging the global awareness of the Elizabeth

Arden brand name and the Red Door spa heritage targeting fast-growing geographical markets and

focusing on our skin care expertise and classic products such as our Eight Hour cream Ceramide

skin care products and Red Door fragrance increasing the size and sales of our prestige

fragrance portfolio internationally particularly in the large European fragrance market and

through licensing opportunities and acquisitions expanding the prestige fragrance category at

mass retail customers in North America and expanding our market share in both prestige and mass

retail charmels continuing to expand operating margins working capital efficiency and return

on invested capital and capitalizing on the growth potential of our global brands by focusing on

both organic growth opportunities as well as those achieved through new product innovation

We believe the Elizabeth Arden brand is one of the most widely recognized beauty brands in the

world and is associated with high quality products During fiscal 2012 we plan to launch

comprehensive brand repositioning for the Elizabeth Arden brand which is designed to modernize

the brands image and increase its relevance among target consumers In addition we intend to

continue to invest behind and grow this brand on global basis through continued expansion in

high-growth markets such as Asia and developing markets ii innovation in skin care and color

products based on new technologies iii focusing on our classic products such as our Eight Hour

cream Cerarnide skin care products and Red Door fragrance iv leveraging the marketing

opportunities provided by the Red Door Spa heritage which we believe affords us competitive

advantage and continuing to cultivate strong partnerships with key global retailers

In fiscal 2010 we launched key initiative to expand our market share for fragrances in III

Western Europe The Western European fragrance market is significantiy larger than the North 13

American fragrance market and we believe this offers opportunities for us to expand the sales of our

fragrance portfolio We also believe many of our fragrance brands including our Elizabeth Arden

fragrances and the Juicy Couture Britney Spears and John Varvatos fragrance brands resonate well

with retailers and consumers in those markets In fiscal 2011 we added resources to implement this

strategy and increased the sales and distribution of our fragrances with key retailers in Europe

During fiscal 2011 we again increased our already sizeable market share in the prestige

fragrance category
with mass retailers in North America We continue to work closely with our mass

retail customers and nationally recognized merchandising and advertising companies to develop and

implement variety of marketing and product merchandising initiatives intended to improve the

shopping experience for mass retail fragrance shoppers and expand this category at these retailers

During fiscal 2011 we substantially completed the implementation of series of activities

intended to increase business efficiencies throughout our company particularly in the supply chain

distribution logistics information technology and finance areas to improve our cash flow operating

margins and profitability and to accommodate the anticipated growth of our business We call this

effort our Global Efficiency Re-engineering initiative or simply the Initiative and it consists of

improvements in the efficiency of our supply chain distribution logistics and business processes

ii migration to shared seces model to simplify transaction processing by consolidating our

primary global transaction processing functions and iii the implementation of an Oracle financial

accounting and order processing system

Going into fiscal 2012 we intend to continue tq focus on expanding gross margins through

increased focus on product mix improved pricing and reduced sales dilution ii improving our

sales and operations planning processes
and our supply chain and logistics efficiency and

iii leveraging our overhead structure by increasing sales of our International segment We have

implemented turnkey model for substantially all our fragrance and color cosmetic products in

which our contract manufacturers have assumed the administrative responsibility for planning and



purchasing raw materials and components while we continue to direct sategic sourcing and pricing

with all raw materials and components vendors We expect to continue to implement this turnkey

mannfactnring model with respect to our skin care products dnring fiscal 2012

Recent License Agreements

Dnring fiscal 2010 we entered into exclusive global licensing agreements with Kate Spade

LLC an affiliate of Liz Claiborne Inc for the manufacture distribution and marketing of Kate

Spade fragrances and with John Varvatos Apparel Corp for the development marketing and

distribution of John Varvatos fragrances

During fiscal 2011 we entered into an exclusive global licensing agreeiuent
with Grammy

winning recording artist Taylor Swift to develop and market her own line of fragrance products

The first fragrance will be sold by prestige retailers in North America during the fall of 2011

On August 10 2011 we amended our long-term license agreement with Liz Claiborne Inc and

certain of its affiliates to acquire all of the U.S and international trademarks for the Curve fragrance

brands as well as trademarks for certain other smaller fragrance brandb The amendment also

establishes lower effective royalty rate for the remaining licensed fragrance brands including Juicy

Gouture and Lucky Brand fragrances reduces the future minimum guaranteed royalties for the term

of the license and requires pre-payment of royalties for the remainder of calendar 2011 We paid

Liz Claiborne luc $58.4 million in cash in connection with this transaction

11 Products

Our net sales of products and net sales of products as percentage of consohdated net sales for

the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 are hsted in the following chart

Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009

Amounts in millions Sales Sales Sales

Fragrance 900.3 76% 854.0 77% 835.3 78%

Skin Care 207.1 18% 183.0 17% 175.2 16%

Cosmetics 68.1 6% 66.8 6% 59.7 6%

Tntal $117F.F 100% $1IOA.8 100% gl070.2 100%

Fragrance We offer wide variety of fragrance products for both men and women including

perfume colognes ean de toilettes eau de parfums body sprays
and gift sets Our fragrances are

classified into the Elizabeth Arden branded fragrances celebrity branded fragrances designer

branded fragrances and lifestyle fragrances Each fragrance is sold in variety of sizes and

packaging assortments In addition we sell bath and body products that are based on the particular

fragrance to complement the fragrance lines such as soaps deodorants body lotions gels creams

and dusting powders We sell fragrance products worldwide primarily to department stores mass

retailers perfumeries boutiques distributors and travel retail outlets We tailor the size and

packaging of the fragrance to suit the particular target customer

Skin Care Our skin care hnes are sold under the Elizabeth Arden name and include products

such as moisturizers creams lotions and cleansers Our core Elizabeth Arden branded products

include Ceramide Prevage Eight Hour Cream and Visible Dfference Oar Geramide skin care line

targets women who are 40 and over Prevage is our premium cosmeceutical skin care line Our Eight

Hour Cream franchise has strong international following During fiscal 2012 Visible Dflerence

will be reintroduced and will be our entry price point line for the Elizabeth Arden skin care

products We sell skin care products worldwide primarily in prestige department and specialty

stores perfumeries and travel retail outlets



Cosmetics We offer variety of cosmetics under the Elizabeth Arden name including

foundations hpsticks mascaras eye shadows and powders We offer these products in wide array of

shades and colors The
largest component of our cosmetics business is foundations winch we market in

conjunction with our skin care products We sell our cosmetics internationally and in the United States

primarily in prestige department and specialty stores perfurneries
and travel retail outlets

Trademarks Licenses and Patents

We own or have
rights to use the trademarks necessar for the manufacturing marketing

distribution and sale of numerous fragrance cosmetic and skin care brands including Elizabeth

Ardens Red Door Elizabeth Arden 5th Avenue Elizabeth Arden Visible Dfference and Prevage

These trademarks are registered or have pending applications in the United States and in certain of

the countries in winch we sell these product lines We consider the
protection

of our trademarks to

be important to our business

We are the exclusive worldwide trademark licensee for number of fragrance brands including

the Britney Spears fragrances curious Britney Spears fantasy Britney Spears Britney

.1
Spears believe and radiance Britney Spears

the Ehzabeth Taylor fragrances White Diamond Elizabeth Taylors Passion and Violet

Eyes Elizabeth Taylor

the Mariah Carey fragrances by Mariah Carey Luscious Pink Forever Loll4oop Bling

and Lollipop Splash

the Usher fragrances He She URfor Men URfor Women and Usher VIP

the Liz Claiborne fragrances Curve Realities Lucky Mambo and Bora Bora Is

the Juicy Couture fragrances Juicy Couture Viva la Juicy Couture outure Dirty English

and Peace Love Juicy Couture

the Giorgio fragrances Giorgio Beverly Hills and Giorgio Red

the Alfred Sung fragrances SUNG Alfred Sung SHI Alfred Sung and JEWEL Alfred Sung
and

the designer fragrance brands of Alberta Ferretti John Varvatos Kate Spade New York

Hocawear Bob Markie and Geoffrey Byrne

The Ehzabeth Taylor license agreement terminates in October 2022 and is renewable by us at

our sole option for unhmited 20-year periods The untimely passing of Elizabeth Taylor in March

2011 had no impact on our ability to sell and market fragrance products under our license The

Britney Spears license terminates in December 2014 and is renewable at our option for another five

year
term if certain sales

targets are achieved The license agreement with Liz Claiborne Inc and its

affiliates relating to the Liz Claiborne and Juicy Couture fragrances terminates in December 2017

and is renewable by us for two additional five-year terms provided specified conditions including

certain sales targets are met Our other license agreements have terms with expirations ranging

from 2011 to 2045 and beyond and typically have renewal tern-is dependent on sales targets being

achieved Many of our license agreements are subject to our obligation to make required minimum

royalty payments minimum advertising and promotional expenditures and/or in some eases meet

minimum sales requirements

We also have the right under various exclusin distributor and license agreements and other

arrangements to distribute other fragrances in various territories and to use the registered

trademarks of third
parties in connection with the sale of these products

Certain of our skin care and cosmetic products including the Prevage skin care line

incorporate patented or patent pending formulations In addition several of our packaging methods



packages components and products are covered by design patents patent applications and

copyrights Substantially all of our trademarks and all of our patents are held by us or by one of our

wholly-owned United States subsidiaries

Sales and Distribution

We sell our prestige beauty products to retailers in the United States including departmeut

stores such as Macys Dillards Saks Belk Bloomingdales and Nordstrom specialty stores such as

Ulta and mass retailers such as Wal-Mart Target Kohls Walgreens CYS and Marmaxx and to

international retailers such as Boots Debenhams Superdrug Stores The Perfume Shop Hudsons

Bay Shoppers Drug Mart Myer Douglas and various travel retail outlets such as Nuance

Heinemann and World Duty Free We also sell products to independent fragrance cosmetic gift and

other stores We currently sell our skin care and cosmetics products in North America primarily in

prestige department and specialty stores We also sell our fragrances skin care and cosmetic

products in approximately 100 other countries worldwide primarily through department stores

perfumeries pharmacies specialty retailers and other retail shops and duty free and travel retail

locations In certain countries we maintain dedicated sales force that solicits orders and provides

customer service In other countries and jurisdictions we sell our products through local distributors

or sales representatives under contractual arrangements We manage our operations outside of North

America from our offices in Geneva Switzerland

We sell our Elizabeth Arden products in the Ehzabeth Arden 5th Avenue store in New York

which we operate and in limited number of outlet stores throughout the United States in which we

also sell several of our Elizabeth Arden and other products Our owned and licensed products are

alsn marketed and snld thrnugh nir e-rnmrnerre site at www.eljzabetharden.com In Rddition our
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Elizabeth Arden products are sold in Red Door beauty salons which are owned and operated by an

nnrelated third party In addition to the sales price of our products sold to the operator
of these

salons we receive royalty based on the net sales from each of the salons for the nse of the

Elizabeth Arden and Red Door trademarks

Our sales personnel are organized by geographic market and by customer account In addition

in l\orth America we have sales personnel who routinely visit prestige retailers to assist in the

merchandising layout and stocking of selling areas For many of our mass retailers in the United

States and Canada we sell basic products in customized packaging designed to deter theft and

permit the products to be sold in open displays Our fulfillment capabilities enable us to reliably

process assemble and ship small orders as well as large orders on timely basis In the United

States and Canada we use this ability to assist our customers in their retail distribution by shipping

in multiple formats including cross dock shipping where we pack by store and ship to the

cnstomers distribution center bulk shipment directly to distribution centers and direct-to-store

shipment

As is customary in the beauty industry sales to customers are generally made pursuant to

purchase orders and we do not have long term or exclusive contracts with any of our retail

customers We believe that our continuing relationships with our customers are based upon our

ability to provide wide selection and reliable source of prestige beauty products our expertise
in

marketing and new product introduction and our ability to provide value-added services including

our

category management seces to U.S mass retailers

Our ten largest customers acconnted for approximately 39% of net sales for the year
ended

June 30 2011 The only customer that accounted for more than 10% of our net sales during that

period was Wal-Mart including Sams Club which accounted for approximately 14% of our

consolidated net sales and approximately 22% of our North America segment net sales The loss of

or significant adverse change in our relationship with any of our largest customers could have

material adverse effect on our business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash

flows



The industry practice for businesses that market beauty products has been to grant certain

retailers primarily North American prestige department stores and specialty beauty stores subject

to our authorization and approval the right to either return merchandise or to receive markdown

allowance for certain products We establish estimated return reserves and markdown allowances at

the time of sale based upon our level of sales historical and projected experience with product

returns and markdowns in each of our business segments and with respect to each of our product

types current economic trends and changes in customer demand and customer mix Our return

reserves and markdown allowances are reviewed aud updated as needed during the year and

additions to these reserves and allowances may be required Additions to these reserves and

allowances may have negative impact on our financial results

Marketing

Our marketing approach is focused on creating strong demand generation across our key

brands We emphasize competitive positioning for each brand and ensure that our brand positioning

is carried through all consumer touch points We employ traditional consumer reach vehicles such

as television and magazine print advertising and are increasingly leveraging new media such as

social networking mobile and digital applications so that we are able to engage with our consumers

through their preferred technologies

We have developed global growth strategies for our key brands that we believe are designed to

deliver sales margin and market share improvements Our focus for the Elizabeth Arden brand is

on generating both organic and innovation-driven growth targeting key skincare emerging market

opportunities and leveraging our unique Red Door Spa heritage Our strategy to deliver organic

growth is to develop programs centered on our key existing products such as the Prevage Cera.nide

Visible Dffrrence and Eight Hour Cream skin care products and the Red Door Elizabeth Arc/en 5th
17

Avenue and Elizabeth Arc/en green tea fragrances We believe innovation is critical in the beauty

category and we intend to focus our innovation resources on what ss believe are the most

significant opportunities for growth while also emphasiziug brand profitability

We believe that our marketing function is structured to meet the changing needs of the global

beauty marketplace We maintain global marketing group in New York which is accountable for

global strategic planning and the development needs of all of our brands We also maintain regional

marketing teams responsible for translating and customizing global growth to the needs of the local

markets We believe this
organization structure supports our growth strategies and is consistent with

best practices in the industry We also work with the Red Door Spa to co-leverage its unique

association with the Elizabeth Arden brand

Our marketing programs are also integrated with significant cooperative advertising programs

that we plan and execute with our retailers often linked with new product innovation and

promotions In our department store and perfumery accounts we periodically promote our brands

with gift with purchase and purchase with pnrchase programs At in-store counters sales

representatives offer personal demonstrations to market individual products We also engage in

extensive sampling programs

In fiscal 2011 we introduced several new products Within the Elizabeth Arden brand we

launched Prevage Clarity and Prevage Eye and re-introduced the classic Red Door fragrance We

will continue to invest in innovation in the Elizabeth Arden brand with several new introductions

planned for fiscal 2012 across the skincare fragrance and color categories Within our fragrance

portfolio in fiscal 2011 we introduced several new products including Peace Love Juicy Couture

radiance Britney Spears Violet Eyes Elizabeth Taylor John Varvatos 10th Anniversary Limited

Edition Kate Spade Twirl and Mariah Carey Lolltop Bling Continued innovation is planned for

fiscal 2012 for several fragrance brands including Britney Spears Juicy Couture Curve Rocawear

and John Varvatos We will also premiere the first fragrance launch under our new license

agreement with Taylor Swift in fall 2011



Seasonality

Our operations have historically been seasonal with higher sales generally occurring in the first

half of our fiscal
year as result of increased demand by retailers in anticipation of and during the

hohday season For the
year

ended June 30 2011 approximately 59% of our net sales were made

during the first half of our fiscal year Due to product innovations and new product launches the

size and timiug of certain orders from our customers and additions or losses of brand distribution

rights sales results of operations working capital requirements and cash flows can vary

significantly between
quarters

of the same and different years As result we expect to experience

variability in net sales operating margin net income working capital requirements and cash flows

on quarterly basis hicreased sales of skin care and cosmetic products relative to fragrances may
reduce the seasonality of our business

We experience seasonality in our working capital with peak inventory levels normally from July

to October and peak receivable balances normally from September to December Our working

capital borrowings are also seasonal and are normally highest in the months of September October

and November During the months of December January and February of each year cash is

normally generated as customer payments on holiday season orders are received

Manufacturing Supply Chain and Logistics

We use third party suppliers and contract manufacturers in the United States and Europe to

obtain substantially all of our raw materials components and packaging products and to

manufacture substantially all of our finished products relating to our owned and licensed brands

Our fragrance and skin care products have primarily been manufactured by Cosmetic Essence LLC

CET an unrelated third party in plants located in New Jersey and Roanoke Virginia though we
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also use other third parties in the United States to manufacture our fragrance and cosmetic products

We intend to shift the manufacturing of many of our skin care products to one or more additional

third parties in fiscal 2012 Third parties in Europe also manufacture certain of our fragrance and

cosmetic products and we also have small manufactnring facility in South Africa primarily to

manufacture local requirements of our products

As
part

of our Global Efficiency Re-engineering project we have reduced the number of

contract manufacturers and raw material suppliers that we use We also have substantially

completed the transition to turnkey manufacturing model with the majority of our contract

manufactnrers in the Lnited States and Europe including CEI Under the turnkey7 manufacturing
-- model our contract manufacturers assume administrative responsibility for planning and

purchasing raw materials and components while we continue to direct strategic sourcing and pricing

with important raw materials and components vendors Any supply chain disruptions may adversely

affect our business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows

As is customary in our industry historically have not had long-term or exclusive agreements

with contract manufacturers of our owned and licensed brands or with fragrance manufacturers or

suppliers of our distributed brands and have generally made purchases through purchase orders As

we continue to implement our turnkey manufacturing model wp anticipate
that we will enter into

supply agreements for finished goods with our most significant manufacturers of owned and licensed

brands We believe that we have good relationships with manufacturers of our owned and licensed

brands and that there are alternative sources should one or more of these manufacturers become

unavailable We receive our distributed brands in finished goods form directly from fragrance

manufacturers as well as from other sources The ten largest fragrance brands that are distributed

by us on non exclusive basis accounted for approximately 11% of our net sales for the
year

ended

June 30 2011 The loss of or significant
adverse change in our relationship with any of our key

iuanufacturers for our owned and licensed brands such as CEI or suppliers of our distributed

fragrance brands could have material adverse effect on our business prospects results of

operations financial condition or cash flows



Our fulfillment operations for the United States and certain other areas of the world are

conducted out of leased distribution facihty in Roanoke Virginia The 400000 square-foot

Roanoke facility accommodates our distribution activities and houses large portion of our

inventory We also lease 274000 square-foot warehouse facility in Salem Virginia primarily

dedicated to assembly of our promotional gift sets Our fulfillment operations for Europe are

conducted under logistics services agreement by CEPL an unrelated third party at CEPLs

facility in Beville France The CEPL agreement expires in June 2013 While we insure our inventory

and the Roanoke and Salem facilities the loss of any of these facilities or the inventory stored in

those facilities would require us to find replacement facilities or inventory and could have

material adverse effect on our busiuess prospects results of operations financial condition or cash

flows

Government Regulation

We and our products are subject to regulation by the Food and Drug Administration the

Federal Trade Commission and state regulatory authorities in the United States as well as by

various other federal local and international regulatory authorities in the countries in which our

products are produced or sold Such regulations principally relate to the ingredients manufacturing

labeling packaging and marketing of our products We believe that we are in substantial compliance

with such regulations as well as with apphcable federal state local and international rules and

regulations governing the discharge of materials hazardous to the environment Chauges in such

regulations or in the mauner iu which such regulations are interpreted applied or enforced could

have material adverse effect on our business prospects results of operations financial condition or

cash flows

Management Information Systems

Our primary information technology systems discussed below provide complete portfolio of

business systems business intelligence systems and information technology infrastructure services

to support our global operations

Logistics and supply chain systems including purchasing materials management

manufacturing inventory management order management customer service pricing

demand planning warehouse management and shipping

Financial and administrative stems including general ledger payables receivables

personnel payroll tax treasury and asset management

Electronic data interchange systems to enable electronic exchange of order status invoice

and financial information with our customers financial service providers and our partners

within the extended supply chain

Business intelligence and business analysis systems to enable management informational

needs as they conduct business operations and perform business decision making and

Information technology infrastructure services to enable seamless integration of our global

business operations through Wide Area Networks WAN personal computing

technologies electronic mail and service agreements providing outsourced computing

operations

These management information systems and infrastructure provide on-line business process

support for our global business operations Further many of these capabilities have been extended

into the operations of certain of our U.S customers and third party service providers to enhance

these arrangements with examples such as vendor managed inventory third party distribution

third party manufacturing inventory replenishment customer billing retail sales analysis product

availability pricing information and transportation management



In connection with onr Initiative during fiscal 2010 we completed the implementation of an

Oracle financial accounting system general ledger accounts payable and order to cash in

accordance with onr projected timeline and on budget This implementation improved key

transaction
processes

and simplified our transaction processing by utilizing common platform to

centralize our primary global transaction processing functions

We outsource substantially all of our data center operations to IBM leading global

information services and technology provider Substantially all of our data center operations are

.-

located in facility in Raleigh North Carolina IBM also provides us with certain backup capabilities

7- to enhance the rehabiity of our management information systems which are designed to continue to

operate if our primary computer systems should fail We use service level agreements and operating

metrics to help us monitor and assess the performance of our outsourced data center operations We

also have business interruption insurance to cover portion of lost income or additional expenses

associated with disruptions to our business including our management information systems

resulting from certain casualties Our business results of operations financial condition or cash flow

may however be adversely affected if our outsourced data center operations facilities are damaged
or otherwise fail and/or our backup capabilities do not or cannot perform as intended

Competition

The beauty industry is highly competitive and can change rapidly due to consumer preferences

and industry trends Competition in the beauty industry is based on brand strength pricing and

assortment of products innovation perceived value product availability order fulfillment service

to the customer promotional activities advertising special events new product introductions and

III other activities

20 We believe that we compete primarily on the basis of brand recognition quality product

efficacy price and our emphasis on providing value-added customer services including category

management services to certain retailers There are products that are better-known and more

popular than the products manufactured or supplied by us Many of our competitors are

substantially larger and more diversified and have substantially greater financial and marketing

resources than we do as well as greater name recognition and the ability to develop and market

products similar to and competitive with those manufactured by us

Employees

As of August 12 2011 we had approximately 2260 full-time employees and approximately

405 part-time employees in the United States and 17 foreign countries None of our employees are

covered by collective bargaining agreement We believe that our relationship with our employees is

satisfactory

Executive Officers of the Company

The following sets forth the names and
ages

of each of our executive officers as of August 12
2011 and the positions they hold

Name Age Position with the Company

Scott Beattie 52 Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

Stephen Smith 51 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Joel Ronkin 43 Executive Vice President General Manager North America

Pierre Pirard 43 Executive Vice President Product Innovation and Global

Supply Chain

Kathy Widnier 49 Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer

Oscar Marina 52 Executive Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

Hoy Heise 65 Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer

Dirk Trappmann 50 Executive Vice President General Manager International



Each of our executive officers holds office for such term as may be determined by our board of

directors Set forth below is brief description of the business experience of each of our executive

officers

Scott Beattie has served as Chairman of our Board of Directors since April 2000 as our

Chief Executive Officer since March 1998 and as one of our directors since January 1995

Mr Beattie also has served as our President since August 2006 position he also held from April

1997 to March 2003 In addition Mr Beattie served as our Chief Operating Officer from April 1997

to March 1998 and as Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors from November 1995 to April 1997

Mr Beattie is also director and niember of the executive committee and treasurer and chairman

of the audit and finance committee of the Personal Care Products Council the U.S trade association

for the global cosmetic and personal care products industry member of the advisory board of the

Ivey Business School and member of the board of directors and the audit and finance committee

of the board of directors of PENCIL not-for profit organization that benefits New York City

public schools

Stephen Smith has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since

May 2001 Previously Mr Smith was with Pricn aterhouseCoopers LLP an international

professional services firm as partner
from October 1993 until May 2001 and as manager from July

1987 until October 1993

Joel Ronkin has served as our Executive Vice President General Manager- North America

since July 2010 as our Executive Vice President General Manager North America Fragrances

from July 2006 to July 2010 as our Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer from

April 2004 to June 2006 as our Senior Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer from

February 2001 through March 200t and as our Vice President Associate General Counsel and II

Assistant Secretary from March 1999 through January 2001 From June 1997 through March 1999 21

Mr Ronkin served as the Vice President Secretary and General Counsel of National Auto Finance

Company Inc an automobile finance company From May 1992 to June 1997 Mr Ronkin was an

attorney with the law firm of Steel Hector Davis L.L.P iii Miami Florida

Kathy Widmer has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer since

November 2009 Prior to joining us Ms Widmer was with Johnson Johnson for 21 years where

she held numerous positions including most recently serving as Vice President Marketing McNeil

Consumer Healthcare from May 2008 until November 2009 Prior to May 2008 Ms Widmer served

as Franchise Director and Product Direetnr fnr various Jnhnson and Jnhnsnn cnnsumer prnducts

including Tylenol Motrin Reach Oral Care and Pepeid from August 1996 until April 2008

Pierre Pirard has served as our Executive Vice President Product Innovation and Global

Supply Chain since February 2010 From November 2007 until February 2010 he served as our

Senior Vice President Global Supply Chain Prior to joining us Mr Pirard spent 15
years

at

Johnson Johnson where he held numerous positions including serving as Regional Director

External Manufacturing North America Consumer Sector from 2005 until 2007 as Regional

Director Supply Chain Planning North America Consumer Sector from 2001 to 2005 and in

various positions in the finance project management supply and logistics groups for Johnson

Johnson Canada from 1992 to 2000

ITEM IA RISK FACTORS

The risk factors in this section describe the major risks to our business prospects results of

operations financial condition and cash flows and should be considered carefully In addition these

factors constitute our cautionary statements under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of

1995 and could cause our actual results to differ materially from those projected in any forward-

looking statements as defined in such act made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K Investors

should not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements Any statements that are

not historical facts and that express or involve discussions as to expectations beliefs plans



objectives assumptions or future events or performance often but not always through the use of

words or phrases such as will likely result are expected to will continue is anticipated

estiniated Lintends plans believes and projects may be forward looking and may
involve estimates aiid uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially from those

expressed in the forward-looking statements

Further ally forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is

made aiid we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or

circumstances

after the date on which such statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of

anticipated oi unanticipated events or circumstances New factors emerge from time to time and it

is not possible for us to predict all of such factors Further we cannot assess the impact of each such

factor on our results of
operations or the extent to which any factor or combination of factors may

cause actual results to differ materially from those coiitained in any forward-looking statements

We may be adversely affected by factors affecting our customers businesses

Factors that adversely impact our customers businesses may also have an adverse effect on our

business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows These factors may
include

an reduction iii consumer traffic and demand as result of economic downturns like the

recent domestic and global recessions

any credit risks associated with the financial condition of our customers

the effect of consolidation or weakness in the retail industry including the closure of

customer doors and the uncertainty resulting therefrom and

inventory reduction initiatives and other factors affecting customer buying patterns

including any reduction in retail space commitment to fragrances and cosmetics and

practices used to control inventory shrinkage

Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates could adversely affect our results of operations and

cash flows

We sell our products in approximately 100 countries around the world During each of the
sears

ended June 30 2011 and 2010 we derived approximately 40% of our net sales from our

international operations We conduct our international operations in variety of different countries

and derive onr sales in various currencies inclnding the Enro British pound Swiss franc Canadian

dollar and Australian dollar as well as the U.S dollar Most of our skin care and cosmetic products

are produced in third part mnanufacturing facilities located in the U.S Our
operations may be

subject to %olatility because of currency changes inflation changes and changes in political and

economnic conditions in the countries in which we operate With
respect to international operations

our sales cost of goods sold and
expenses are typically denominated in comnhination of local

currenci and the U.S dollar Our results of
operations are reported in U.S dollars Fluctuations in

currency rates can affect onr reported sales margins operating costs and the anticipated settlement

of our foreign denominated receivables and payables weakening of the foreign currencies in which

we generate
sales relative to the currencies in which our costs are denominated which is primarily

the U.S dollar could adversely affect om business prospecfs results of operations financial

condition or cash flows Our competitors may or may not be subject to the same fluctuations in

currenci rates and our competitive position could be affected by these changes

We do not have contracts with customers or with suppliers of our distributed brands so if

we cannot maintain and develop relationships with such customers and suppliers our

business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows may be

materially adversely affected

We do not have long-term or exclusive contracts with any of our customers and generally do not

have long-term or exclusive contracts with our suppliers of distributed brands Our ten largest



customers accounted for approximately 39% of our net sales in the
year

ended June 30 2011 Our

only customer who accounted for more than 10% of our net sales in the
year

ended June 30 2011

was Wal-Mart including Sams Club who accounted for approximately 14% of our consolidated

net sales and approximately 22% of our North America segment net sales In addition our suppliers

of distributed brands which represented approximately 11% of our net sales for fiscal 2011

generally can at any time elect to supply products to our customers directly or through another

distributor Our suppliers of distributed brands may also choose to reduce or eliminate the volume of

their products distributed by us The loss of any of our key supphers or customers or change in

our relationship with any one of them could have material adverse effect on our business

prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows

We depend on various licenses for significant portion of our sales and the loss of one or

more licenses or agreements could have material adverse effect on us

The sales and marketing of certain of our prestige fragrance brands are derived from licenses

from unaffiliated third
parties

and our business is dependent upon the continuation and renewal of

such licenses on terms favorable to us Each license is for specific term and ma have optional

terms In addition such licenses may be subject to us making required minimum royalty payments

minimum advertising and promotional expenditures and meeting minimum sales requirements Just

as the loss of license or other significant agreement may have material adverse effect on us
renewal on less favorable terms could have material adverse effect on our business prospects

results of operations financial condition or cash flows

We rely on third-party manufacturers and component suppliers for substantially all of our

owned and licensed products

We do not own or operate any significant manufacturing facilities We use third-party

manufacturers and component suppliers to manufacture substantially all of our owned and licensed

products As
part

of our Initiative we have reduced the number of third-party manufacturers and

component and materials suppliers that we use and have implemented turnkey manufacturing

process
for substantially all of our products in which we now rely on our third-party manufacturers

for certain supply chain functions that we previously handled ourselves such as component and

materials planning purchasing and warehousing Our business prospects results of operations

financial condition or cash flows could be materially adversely affected if we experience any supply

chain disruptions caused by our implementation of this turnkey manufacturing process or other

supply chain
projects or if our manufacturers or component suppliers were to experience problems

with product quality credit or liquidity issues or disruptions or delays in the manufacturing process

or dehvery of the finished products or the raw materials or components used to make such products

The loss of or disruption in our distribution facilities may have material adverse effect on

our business

We currently have one distribution facility and one promotional set assembly facihty in the

United States and use third-party fulfillment center in France primarily for European distribution

These facilities house large portion of our inventory Although we insure our inventory any loss of

or damage to these facilities or the inventory stored in these facilitieb could adversely affect our

business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows

Our business is subject to regulation in the United States and internationally

The manufacturing distribution formulation jackaging and advertising of our products and

those we distribute for others are subject to numerous federal state and foreign governmental

regulations The number of laws and regulations that are being enacted or proposed by state federal

and international governments and governmental authorities are increasing Compliance with these

regulations is difficult and expensive and may require reformulation repackaging relabeling or



discontinuation of certain of our products If we fail to adhere or are alleged to have failed to

adhere to any applicable federal state or foreign laws or regulations or if such laws or regulations

negatively affect sales of our products our business prospects results of operation financial

condition or cash flows may be adversely affected In addition our future results could be adversely

afferted by changes in applicable federal state and foreign laws and regulations or the

interpretation or enforcement thereof including those relating to products or ingredients product

liability trade rules and customs regulations intellectual property consumer laws privacy laws as

well as accounting standards and taxation requirements including tax-rate changes new tax laws

and revised tax law interpretations

Adverse U.S or global economic conditions could negatively impact our business prospects

results of operations financial condition or cash flows

We believe that consumer spending on beauty products is influenced by general economic

conditions and the availability of discretionary income Adverse U.S or global economic conditions

such as the recent global recession periods of inflation or high energy prices can contribute to higher

unemployment levels decreased consumer spending reduced credit availability and declining

consumer confidence and demand each of which poses risks to our business decrease in consumer

spending

and/or in retailer and consumer confidence and demand for our products could

significantly negatively impact our net sales and profitability including our operating margins and

return on invested capital Such economic conditions could cause some of our customers or suppliers

to experience cash flow and/or credit problems and impair their financial condition which could

disrupt our business and adversely affect product orders payment patterns and default rates and

increase our bad debt expense Advcrse economic conditions could also adversely affect our access to

the capital necessary
for our business and our ability to remain in compliance with the financial
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covenant in our revolving credit facility that applies only in the event that we do not have the

requisite average borrowing base capacity as set forth in our credit facility If the recent adverse U.S

arid global economic conditions persist or deteriorate further our business prospects results of

operations financial condition or cash flows could be negatively impacted

We may be adversely affected by domestic and international events that impact consumer

confidence and demand

Sudden
disruptions in business conditions due to events such as terrorist attacks diseases or

natural disasters may have short-term or sometimes long term adverse impact on consumer

confidence and spending In addition any reductions in travel or increases in restrictions on

travelers ability to transport our products on airplanes due to geueral economic downturns

diseases increased security levels acts of war or terrorism could result in material decline in the

net sales and profitability of our travel retail business

The beauty industry is highly competitive and if we cannot effectively compete our business

and results of operations will suffer

The beauty industry is highly competitive
and can change rapidly due to consumer preferences

and industry trends Competition in the beauty industry is based on brand strength pricing
and

assortment of products innovation perceived value product availability and order fulfillment

service to the consumer promotional activities advertising special events new product

introductions c-commerce initiatives and other activities Also the trend toward consolidation in the

retail trade particularly in developed markets such as the United States and Western Europe has

resulted in us becoming increasingl dependent on key retailers including large-format retailers

who have increased their bargaining strength We Łompete primarily with global prestige beauty

companies and multinational consumer product companies some of whom have greater resources

than we have and brands with greater name recognition and consumer loyalty than our brands Our

success depends on our products appeal to broad range of consumers whose preferences cannot be

predicted with
certainty and are subject to change and on our ability to anticipate and respond in



timely and cost-effective manner to market trends through product innovations and product line

extensions We may incur expenses in connection with product innovation and development

marketing and advertising that are not subsequently supported by sufficient level of sales which

could negatively affect our results of operations These competitive factors as well as new product

risks cnuld have an adverse effect on our business prnspects results of operations financial

condition or cash flows

Our business strategy depends upon our ability to increase sales of the Elizabeth Arden

brand and our prestige fragrance portfolio as well as our ability to acquire or license

additional brands or secure additional distribution arrangements and obtain the required

financing for these agreements and arrangements

Our business strategy contemplates the continued growth of our portfolio of owned licensed

and distributed brands Increasing sales of the Elizabeth Arden brand and our prestige fragrance

portfolio may require investments that may result in short-term costs without any current revenue

In addition our future expansion through acquisitions new product licenses or new product

distribution arrangements if any will depend upon our ability to identify suitable brands to acquire

license or distribute and our ability to obtain the required financing for these acquisitions licenses

or distribution arrangements and thus depends on the capital resources and working capital

available to us We may not be able to identify negotiate finance or consummate such acquisitions

licenses or arrangements or the associated working capital requirements on terms acceptable to us

or at all which could hinder our ability to increase revenues and build our business

The success of our business depends in part on the demand for celebrity beauty products

We have license agreements to maniifacture market and distribute number of celebrity ii

beauty products including those of Elizabeth Taylor Britney Spears Taylor Swift Mariah Carey 25

and Usher In fiscal 2011 we derived approximately 21% of our net sales from celebrity beauty

products The demand for these products is to some extent dependent on the appeal to consumers

of the particular celebrity and the celebritys reputation To the extent that the celebrity fragrance

category or particular celebrity ceases to be appealing to consumers or celebritys reputation is

adversely affected sales of the related products and the value of the brands can decrease materially

In addition under certain circumstances lower net sales may shorten the duration of the applicable

license agreement

We may not be able to successfully and cost-effectively integrate acquired businesses or new

brands

Acquisitions entail numerous integration risks and impose costs on us that could materially and

adversely affect our business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows

including

difficulties in assimilating acquired operations products or brands including disruptions to

our operations or the unavailability of key employees from acquired businesses

diversion of managements attention from our core business

adverse effects on existing business relationships with suppliers and customers

inculTence or assumption of additional debt and liabilities and

incurrence of significant amortization expenses related to intangible assets and the

potential impairment of acquired assets

Our business could be adversely affected if we are unable to successfully protect our

intellectual property rights

The market for our products depends to significant extent upon the value associated with the

trademarks and patents that we own or license We own or have licenses or other rights to use the



material trademarks and
patents

nsed in connection with the ingredients packaging marketing and

distribution of our maj or owned and licensed products both in the U.S and in other countries where

such products are principally sold

Although most of our brand names are registered in the U.S and in certain foreign countries in

which we operate we may not be successful in asserting trademark protection In addition the laws

of certain foreign countries may not protect our intellectual property rights to the same extent as the

laws of the U.S The costs required to protect our trademarks and patents may be substantial We

also cannot assure that the owners of the trademarks that we license can or will successfully

maintain their intellectual property rights

If other parties infringe on our intellectual property rights or the intellectual property rights

that we license the value of our brands in the marketplace may be diluted In addition any

iufringement of our intellectual property rights would also likely result in commitment of our time

and resources to protect these rights through litigation or otherwise We may infringe on others

intellectual property rights which may result in reduction in sales or profitability and

commitment of our time and resources to defend through litigation or otherwise One or more

adverse judgments with respect to these intellectual property rights could negatively impact our

ability to compete and could materially adversely affect our business prospects results of

operations financial condition or cash flows

If our intangible assets such as trademarks patents and goodwill become impaired we

may be required to record significant non-cash charge to earnings which would negatively

impact our results of operations

Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States we review our intangible
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assets including our trademarks patents licenses and goodwill for impairment annually in the

fourth quarter of each fiscal year or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate

the carrying value of our intangible assets may not be fully recoverable The carrying value of our

intangible assets may not be recoverable due to factors such as decline in our stock price and

market capitalization reduced estimates of future cash flows including those associated with the

specific brands to which intangibles relate or slower growth rates in our industry Estimates of

future cash flows are based on long-term financial outlook of our operations and the specific

brands to which the intangible assets relate However actual performance in the near-term or long-

term could be materially different from these forecasts which could impact future estimates and the

recorded value of the intaugibles For example significant sustained decline in our stock price and

market capitalization may result in impairment of certain of our intangible assets including

goodwill and significant charge to earnings in our financial statements during the period in which

an iinpainnent is determined to exist Any such impairment charge could materially reduce our

results of operations

We are subject to risks related to our international operations

We operate on global basis with sales in approximately 100 countries Approximately 40% of

our fiscal 2011 net sales were generated outside of the United States Our international operations

could be adversel affected by

import and export license requirements

-c trade restrictions

changes in tariffs and taxes

restrictions on repatriating foreign profits back to the United States

changes in or our unfamiliarity with foreign laws and regulations including those related

to product registration ingredients and labeling

difficulties in staffing and managing international operations and

changes in social political legal and other conditions



Our quarterly results of operations fluctuate due to seasonality and other factors and we

may not have sufficient liquidity to meet our seasonal working capital requirements

We generate significant portion of our net income in the first half of our fiscal year as result

of higher sales in anticipation of the holiday season Similarly our working capital needs are greater

during the first half of the fiscal year We may experience variability in net sales and net income on

quarterly basis as result of variety of factors including new product innovations and launches

the size and timing of customer orders and additions or losses of brand distribution rights If we

were to experience significant shortfall in sales or internally generated funds we may not have

sufficient liquidity to fund our business

Our level of debt and debt service obligations and the restrictive covenants in our revolving

credit facility and our indenture for our 7/8% senior notes may reduce our operating and

financial flexibility and could adversely affect our business and growth prospects

At June 30 2011 we had total debt of $250 million representing the aggregate principal

amount outstanding of our 7/g% senior notes There was no balance outstanding at June 30 2011

under

our revolving bank credit faciht3 The 7-/8% senior notes and revolving bank credit facility

have requirements that may limit our operating and financial flexibility Our indebtedness could

adversely impact our business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows by

increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions and restricting our

ability to consummate acquisitions or fund working capital capital expenditures and other general

corporate requirements

Specificall3 our revolving credit facility and our indenture for our 3/% senior notes limit or
1i10

otherwise affect our ability to among other things 27

incur additional debt

pay dividends or make other restricted payments

create or permit certain liens other than customary and ordinary liens

sell assets other than in the ordinary course of our business

invest in other entities or businesses and

consolidate or merge with or into other companies or sell all or substantially all of our

assets

These restrictions could limit our ability to finance our future operations or capital needs make

acquisitions or pursue available business opportunities Our revolving credit facility also requires us

to maintain specified amounts of borrowing capacity or maintain debt service coverage ratio Our

ability to meet these conditions and our ability to service our debt obligations will depend upon our

future operating performance which can be affected by general economic financial competitive

legislative regulatory business and other factors beyond our control If our actual results deviate

significantl\ from our projections we may not be able to service our debt or remain in compliance

with the conditions contained in our revolving credit facility and we would not be allowed to borrow

under the revolving credit facility If we were not able to borrow under our revolving credit facility

we would be required to develop an alternative source of liquidity We cannot assure you that we

could obtain replacement financiug on favorable terms or at all

default under our re%olving credit facility could also result in default under our indenture

for our /a senior notes Upon the occurrence of an event of default under our indenture all

amounts outstanding under our other indebtedness may be declared to be immediately due and

payable If we were unable to repay amounts due on our revolving credit facility the lenders would

have the right to proceed against the collateral granted to them to secure that debt



Our success depends in part on the quality efficacy and safety of our products

Our success depends in part on the quality efficacy and safety of our products If our products

are found to be defective or unsafe or if they otherwise fail to meet customer or consumer

standards our relationships with customers or consumers could suffer the appeal of one or more of

our brands could be diminished and we could lose sales and/or become subject to liability claims

any of which could have material adverse effect on our business prospects results of operations

financial condition or cash flows

Our success depends upon the retention and availability of key personnel and the succession

of senior management

Our success largely depends on the performance of our management team and other key

personnel Our future operations could be harmed if we are unable to attract and retain talented

highly cpialified senior executives and other key personnel In addition if we are unable to effectively

provide for the succession of senior management including our chief executive officer our business

prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows may be materially adversely

affected

The market price of our common stock may fluctuate as result of variety of factors

The market price of our common stock could fluctuate significantly in
response

to various

factors many of which are beyond our control including

volatility in the financial markets

actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly or annual financial results

28 announcements or significant developments with
respect to beauty products or the beauty

industry in general

general economic and political conditions

governmental policies and regulations and

financial analyst and rating agency actions

We are subject to risks associated with implementing managing and maintaining global

information systems

We have information systems that support our business processes including supply chain

marketing sales order processing distribution finance and intracompany communications

throughout the world All of our global information systems are susceptible to outages due to fire

floods tornadoes hurricanes power loss telecommunications failures security breaches and similar

events Despite the implementation of network security measures our systems may also be

vulnerable to computer viruses hacking and similar disruptions from unauthorized tampering

Our business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows may be adversely

affected by the occurrence of these or other events that could disrupt or damage our information

systems and/or any failure to properly maintain or upgrade our information systems

We outsource certain functions making us dependent on the entities and facilities

performing those functions

We are continually looking for opportunities to secure essential business services in more cost

effective manner without impacting the quality of the service rendered In some cases this requires

the
outsourcing

of functions or parts
of functions that can be performed more effectively by external

service providers These include certain information
systems functions such as information

technology operations and certain human resource functions such as employee benefit plan

administration We conduct appropriate
due diligence before

entering into agreements with the

outsourcing entity and use service level agreements and
operating metrics to monitor and assess



performance We believe the failure of one or more entities to properly provide the expected services

without disruption provide them on timely basis or to provide them at the prices we expect may
have material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition In addition

substantially all of our data center operations are located in facility in Raleigh North Carolina

and any loss of or damage to the facility could have material adverse effect on our business results

of operations prospects financial condition or cash flows

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable

ITEM PROPERTIES

United States Our corporate headquarters are located in Miramar Florida where we lease

approximately 32000 square feet of general office space under lease that expires in June 2016

Our U.S fulfillment operations are conducted in our Roanoke Virginia distribution facility that

consists of approximately 400000 square feet and is leased through September 2013 We also lease

76000-square foot warehouse in Roanoke to coordinate returns processing that is leased

through December 2011 ii 180000-square foot warehouse in Roanoke that is leased throngh

February 2012 and iii 274000-square foot warehouse in Salem Virginia that is leased through

March 2016 From time to time we also lease additional temporary warehouse facilities to handle

inventory overflow We lease 50000 square feet of general office space for our supply chain

information systems and finance operations in Stamford Connecticut under lease that expires

October 2021 We lease approximately 49500 square feet of general offices primarily for our

marketing operations in New York City under lease that expires in October 2017 We also lease

small offices in Bentonville Arkansas and Minneapohs Mimitesota
29

InternationaL Our international operations are headquartered in offices in Geneva

Switzerland that are leased through 2017 We also lease sales offices in Australia Canada China

Denmark France haly Korea New Zealand Puerto Rico Singapore South Africa Spain Taiwan

and the United Kingdom and small distribution facility in Puerto Rico We own small

manufacturing and distribution facility in South Africa primarily to manufacture and distribute

local requirements of our products

We believe that additional office and warehouse space suitable for our needs is reasonably

available in the markets in which we operate

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are party to number of legal actions proceedings claims and disputes arising in the

ordinary course of business including those with current and former customers over amounts owed

While any action proceeding or claim contains an element of uncertainty and it is possible that our

cash flows and results of operations in particular quarter or year could be materially affected by

the impact of such actions proceedings claims and dispntes based on current facts and

circumstances our management believes that the outcome of such actions proceedings claims and

disputes will not have material adverse effect on our business prospects results of operations

financial condition or cash flows



PART

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MA11IERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information Our common stock $.01 par value per share has been traded on the

NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol RDEN since January 25 2001 The following

table sets forth the high and low sales prices for our common stock as reported NASDAQ for

each of our fiscal
quarters

from July 2009 through Juue 30 2011

Quarter Ended High Low

6/30/11 531.84 $26.50

3/31/11 $31.00 $22.93

12/31/10 $24.00 $18.88

9/30/10 $20.00 $13.69

6/30/10 519.50 $14.35

3/31/10 519.50 $13.90

12/31/09 $15.90 $10.29

9/30/09 $12.48 7.28

Holders As of August 15 2011 there were 354 record holders of our common stock The

number of record holders does not include beneficial owners of common stock whose shares are held

in the names of banks brokers nominees or other fiduciaries

Dividends We have not declared any cash dividends on our common stock since we became

beauty products company in 1995 and we currently have no plans to declare dividends on our
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common stock in the foreseeable future Any future determination our board of directors to pay

dividends on our common stock will be made only after considering our financial condition results

of operations capital requirements and other relevant factors Additionally our revolving credit

facility and the indenture relating to our 7% senior notes due 2021 restrict our ability to pay cash

dividends based upon our ability to satisfy certain financial covenants including having certain

amount of borrowing capacity and satisfying fixed charge coverage ratio after the payment of the

dividends See Notes and 10 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Peiformance Graph The following performance graph data and table compare the cumulative

total shareholder returns including the reinvestment of dividends on our common stock with the

Russell 200u Index and market-weighted index of publicly traded peer companies for the five

fiscal years from July 2006 through June 30 2011

The publicly traded companies in our peer group are The Estee Lauder Companies Inc
International Flavors and Fragrances Inc Inter Parfums Inc Physicians Formula Holdings Inc
and Revlon Inc We beheve that our peer group is good representation of beauty companies with

similar market capitalizations channels of distribution and/or products as our company The graph

and table assume that $100 was invested on June 30 2006 in each of the Russell 2000 Index the

peer group and our common stock and that all dividends were reinvested
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COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Elizabeth Arden Inc the Russell 2000 Index

and Peer Group
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1100 invested on 6/30/06 in stock or index

Fiscal year ending June 30

Fiscal Year Ended

6/07 6/08 6/09 6/10 6/11

Jnne 30

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Elizabeth Arden Inc 135.68 84.90 48.83 81.21 162.36

Russell 2000 Index 116.43 97.58 73.17 88.89 122.15

Peer Group 131.44 115.62 86.10 137.59 242.72
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

We derived the following selected financial data from our audited consolidated financial

statements The following data should be read in conjunction with Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our consolidated financial

statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this annual report

Year Ended Jnne 30

Amounts in thoosnnds except per shore doto 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Selected Statement of Operations Data

Net sales $1175500 $1103777 51.070225 $1141075 $1127476

Gross profit 556.277 495.974 433155s 461873v 457679

Income from operations 775751 447933 10335s 49030 74006

Debt extingoishment cbarges 6.468 82

Net income loss 40989 19533 6163 19901 37334

Selected Per Share Data

Easuings loss pet cuuuuun shase

Basic 1.47 0.70 0.22 0.71 1.35o

Diluted 1.41z 0.68 O.225 0.68 1.30

\X eighted average number of common shares

Basic 27843 28017 27971 27981 27607

Diluted 29008 28789 27.971 29303 28826

Other Data

EBITDA15 100942 73170 36493 73798 98524

Net cash provided by operating activities 97746 113959 36986 8037 58816

Net cash used in investing activities 39472 35721 31663 28588 110518
Net cash used in financing activities 28519 74337 7.529 16791 53120

Year Ended June 30
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Selected Balance Sheet Data

Cash 58850 26881 23102 26396 30287

Inventories 246514 271.058 318535 408563 380232

Working capital 388897 306524 286611 306735 298165

Total assets 854837 843471 884075 970734 939175

Short term debt 59000 115.000 119000 97640

Lung term debt including cunent period 250000 218699 223911 224957 225655

Shareholders equi 417765 352.617 336778 336.601 320.927

For the year ended June 30 2011 income from operations includes $0.3 million of restructuring expenses related to

our Initiative and ii 0.3 million of expenses related to implementation of our Oracle accounting and order

processing sstesns

Fur tlse year ended June 30 2011 debt extinguishment clsarges restructuring expenses related to our Initiative and

Oracle accounting arid order processing systems implementation costs reduced both basic and fully diluted earnings

per
share by $0.15

For tlse ear eaded Juise 30 2010 income from operations includes $3.9 million of expenses related to

implementation of our Oracle accounting and order processing systems ii $1.9 million of restructuring expenses

related to our Initiative and iii $1.5 million of restructuring expenses that are not related to our Initiative

For the year ended June 30 2010 Oracle accounting and order processing stems implementation costs restructuring

expenses and debt extinguishment charges reduced basic and fully diluted earnings per share by $0.20 and $0.19

respectively

For the ear ended June 30 2009 gross profit and income from operations include costs related to the global licensing

agreement with Liz Claibornu of $18.9 nnllion which did not require the use of cash in th5 current period for the Liz

Claiborne inventory purchased by us at higher cost prior to the effective date of the license agreement and $4.4

million $1.0 million in gross profit of Liz Claiborne transition expenses In addition income from operations includes

$3.4 million of
expenses related to implementation of our Oracle accounting and order processing systems ii $3.5

million of restructuring expenses related to our Initiative aisd iii $1 .1 million of restructuring expenses that are not

related to our Initiative

For tlse
year ended June 30 2009 Liz Claiborne related expenses Oracle accounting and order processing systems

implementation costs and restructuring expenses reduced basic and fully diluted earnings per share by $0.70 and

$0.69 respectively



For the year ended June 30 2008 gross profit and income from operations include approximately $15.0 million in

costs related to the global licensing agreement with Liz Claiborne includiug product discontinuation charges In

addition income from operations includes an additional $12.0 million in Liz Claibonse rclated costs and $3.0 million

of restructuring expenses including $0.7 million related to our Initiative

For the year ended June 30 2008 Liz Claiborne related costs including product discontinuatiou charges and

restructuring expenses
reduced basic and

fully
diluted earnings per share by $0.65 and $0.63 respectively

For the year ended June 30 2007 restructuring charges reduced basic and
fully

diluted earuings per share $0.07

and $0.06 respectively

10 EBITDA is defined as net income plus the provision for income taxes or net loss less the benefit from income taxes

plus interest
expense plus depreciation and amortization expense EBITDA should not he considered as an alternative

to operating income loss or net income loss as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles as measure of our operating performance or to net cash provided by operating investing and financing

activities as determined in accordance with geuerally accepted accounting principles or as measure of our ability to

meet cash needs We believe that EBITDA is measure commonly reported and widely used by investors and other

interested parties as measure of companys operating performance and debt servicing ability because it assists in

comparing performance on consistent basis without regard to capital structure particularly when acquisitions are

involved depreciation and amortizatiou or nou operating factors such as historical cost Accordingly as result of

our capital structure we believe EBITDA is relevant measure This information has been disclosed here to permit
93

more complete comparative analysis of our operating performance and debt servicing ability
relative to other

companies EBITDA may not however be comparable in all instances to other similar types of measures

In addition EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool including the fact that

it does not reflect our cash expenditures future requirements for capital expenditures or contractual coisunitmeuts

it does not reflect the significant interest expense or the cash requirements uecessasy to service interest or principal

payments on our debt

it does not reflect
any

cash income taxes that we may be required to pay and

although depreciation and amortization are non cash charges the assets beiug depreciated and amortized will often

have to be replaced in the future and these measures do not reflect
any cash requirements for such replacements II
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The following is reconciliation of net income loss as determined in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles to EBITDA

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousnnds 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Net income loss 40989 $19533 6163 $19901 $37334
Provision for benefit from

income taxes 8637 3293 8316 1534 7474
Interest expense 21481 21885 24814 27595 29198

Depreciation related to cost of

goods sold 5089 5040 4416 4245 3640

Depreciation and amortization 24746 23419 21742 20523 20878

EBITDA $100942 $73170b 36493c $73793d $98.524e

Includes $6.5 million of debt extinguishment charges $0.3 million of restructuring charges

related to our Initiative and $0.3 million related to the implementation of our Oracle accounting

and order processing systems

Includes $3.9 million related to the implementation of ouy Oracle accounting and order

processing systems $3.4 million of restructuring charges and $0.1 million of debt

extinguishment charges

Includes $23.3 million of costs related to the global licensing agreement with Liz Claiborne

$18.9 million of winch did not require the use of cash in the current period $4.6 million of

restructuring charges and $3.4 million related to the implementation of our Oracle accounting

and order processing systems

Includes $27.0 milhon of costs related to the global hcensing agreement with Liz Claiborne and

$3.0 milhon of restructuring charges

Includes $2.1 million of restructuring charges



ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated

financial statements and the accompanying notes which appear elsewhere in this document

Overview

We are global prestige beauty products company with an extensive portfolio of prestige

fragrance skin care and cosmetics brands Our branded products include the Ehzabeth Arden

fragrances Red Door Elizabeth Arc/en 5th Avenue Elizabeth Arc/en green tea and Pretty Elizabeth

Arc/en the Elizabeth Arden skin care brands Ceramic/c Eight Hour Cream Visible Dfference and

Precage and the Elizabeth Arden branded lipstick foundation and other color cosmetics products

Our prestige fragrance portfolio also includes the following celebrity lifestyle and designer

fragrances

Celebrity Fragrances The fragrance brands of Britney Spears Elizabeth

Taylor Mariah Carey Taylor Swift and Usher

Lifestyle Fragrances Curve Giorgio Beverly Hills PS Fine Cologne and White

Shoulders

Designer Fragrances Juicy Couture Kate Spade New York John Varvatos

Rocawear Alberta Ferretti Halston Geoffrey Beene

Alfred Sung Bob Mackie and Lucky

liii In addition to our owned and licensed fragrance brands we distribute approximately 300

34 additional prestige fragrance brands primaril in the United States through distribution agreements

and other purchasing arrangements

In fiscal 2011 we introduced several new products Within the Elizabeth Arden brand we

launched Prevage Glarity and Prevage Eye and re-introduced the classic Red Door fragrance

\% ithin our fragrance portfolio we introduced several new products including Peace Love Juicy

Gouture radiance Britney Spears Violet Eyes Elizabeth Tador John Varvatos 10th Anniversaiy

Limited Edition Kate Spade Twirl and Mariah Carey Lollpop Bling

In fiscal 2012 plan tu launch comprehenshe brand repositioning for the Elizabeth Arden

brand designed to modernize the brands image and increase its relevance among target consumers

During fiscal 2012 we will also continue to innovate in the Ehzabeth Arden brand with several new

introductions planned for fiscal 2012 across the skincare fragrance and color categories in addition

to continued innovation planned for several fragrance brands including Britney Spears Juicy

Couture Curve Rocawear and John Varvatos We will also premiere the first fragrance launch

under our ne license agreement ith Taylor Swift in fall 2011

Our business
strateg

is to increase net sales operating margins and earnings by increasing

the sales of the Elizabeth Arden brand through leveraging the global awareness of the Elizabeth

Arden brand name aud ihe Heel Door spa heritage targeting fast-growing geographical markets and

focusing on our skin care expertise and classic products such as our Eight Hour cream Ceramnide

skin care products and Red Door fragrance increasing the sales of our prestige fragrance

portfolio internationally particularly in the large European fragrance market and through licensing

opportunities and acquisitions expanding the prestige fragrance category
at mass retail

customers in North America and expanding ourS market share in both prestige and mass retail

channels continuing to expand operating margins working capital efficiency and return on

invested capital and capitahzing on the growth potential of our global brands by focusing on

both organic growth opportunities as well as those achieved through ne product innovation



In fiscal 2011 gross margins improved as compared to the
prior fiscal year by approximately

240 basis points Going into fiscal 2012 we intend to continue to focus on expanding gross margins

through increased focus on product mix improved pricing
and reduced sales dilution continuing

our focus on improving our sales and
operations planning processes and our supply chain and

logistics efficiency and
leveraging our overhead structure by increasing

sales of our International

segment We
expect our fiscal 2012 gross margins to improve an additional 200 to 225 basis

points

over our fiscal 2011
gross margin We

expect to use portion of this anticipated margin

improvement to support organic growth of our key brands and drive improved profitability We

Sc have implemented turnkey model for substantially all our fragrance and color cosmetic products

in

which our contract manufacturers have assumed the administrative responsibilir for planning

and purchasing raw materials and compouents while we continue to govern strategic sonrciiig
and

pricing
with all raw materials and components vendors We

expect to continue to implement this

turnkey manufacturing model with respect to our skin care products during fiscal 2012

We manage our business by evaluating net sales gross margins EBITDA as defined in Note 10

under Item Selected Financial Data EBITDA margin segment profit and working capital

utilization including monitoring our levels of inventory accounts receivable operating
cash flow

and return on invested capital We encounter variety
of challenges that may affect our business

and should be considered as described in Item IA Risk Factors and in the section Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Forward-Looking

Information and Factors That May Affect Future Results

Effective June 2008 we became the exclusive global licensee for the manufacture

distribution marketing and sale of the Liz Claiborne fragrance brands under long-term license

agreement with Liz Claiborne Inc and certain of its affiliates In fiscal 2009 we incurred transition

expenses relating to the Liz Claiborne license agreement of approximately $4.4 million before taxes
35

In addition our gross margins for the first half of fiscal 2009 were impacted by expenses
of

approximately $18.9 million which did not require the use of cash in the current period before

taxes relating to Liz Claihorne inventory that we purchased at higher cost prior to the effective

date of the license agreement

On August 10 2011 we ameiided our long-term hcense agreement with Liz Claiborne Inc and

certain of its affiliates to acquire
all of the U.S and international trademarks for the Curve fragrance

brands as well as trademarks for certain other smaller fragrance brands The amendment also

establishes lower effective royalty rate for the remaining licensed fragrance brands including Juicy

it. Couture and Lucky Brand fragrances reduces the future minimum guaranteed royalties for the term

of the hcense and requires pre-payment of royalties for the remainder of calendar 2011 We paid

Liz Claiborne Inc $58.4 million in cash in connection with this transaction The allocation of the

$58.4 million to the net assets acquired has not been finahzed

During fiscal 2011 we substantially completed the implementation of series of activities

intended to increase business efficiencies throughout our company particularly in the supply chain

distribution logistics information technology and finance areas to improve our cash flow operating

margins and profitability and to accommodate the aiiticipated growth of our business We call this

effort our Global Efficienc Re-engineering initiative or simply the Initiative and it consists of

improvements in the efficiency unr supply chain distribution lugistics and business processcs

ii iuigration to shared services model to simphfy transaction processing by consohdating our

primary global transaction processing functions and iii the implementation of an Oracle financial

accounting and order
processing system

In connection with the Initiative we imnplemnted restructuring plan that resulted in

restructuring and one-time expenses including severance relocation recruiting
and temporary

staffing expenditures Substantially all of these
expenses were incurred in fiscal

years
2009 and

2010 From
inception through June 30 2011 we incurred total of $14.0 million before taxes

which included $7.6 million related to our Oracle system implementation and $6.4 million for



initiative-related restructuring We do not expect to incur any additional
expenses

related to the

Initiative and the total amoant from inception of $14.0 million is consistent with our original

projection of $12.0 million to $14.0 million

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

amounts of assets liabilities revenues and
expenses reported in those consolidated financial

statements We base our estimates on historical experience and other factors that we believe are

most likely to occur Changes in facts and circumstances may result in revised estimates which are

recorded in the period in which they become known Actual results could differ from those estimates

If these changes result in material impact to the consolidated financial statements their impact is

disclosed in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations andlor in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements The disclosures below

also note situations in which it is reasonably likely that future financial results could be affected by

changes in these estimates and assumptions The term reasonably likely refers to an occurrence

that is more than remote but less than probable in the judgment of management

Our most critical accounting policies and estimates are described in detail below See Note to

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements General Information and Summary of

Significant Accounting Policies for discussion of these and other accounting policies

Accounting for Acquisitions and Intangible Assets Under the accounting for business

combinations consideration paid in an acquisition is allocated to the underlying net assets based on
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their respective estimated fair values The excess of the consideration paid at the acquisition date

over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill

The judgments made in determining the estimated fair value and expected useful lives assigned

to each class of assets and liabihties acquired can significantly affect net income For example
different classes of assets will have useful hves that differ and the useful hfe of property plant and

equipment acquired will differ substantially from the useful life of brand licenses and trademarks

Consequently to the extent longer-lived asset is ascribed greater value under the purchase method

than shorter-lived asset net income in given period may he higher

Determining the fair value of certain assets amid liabilities acquired is udginemital in natui and

often involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions One of the areas that requires more

judgment is determining the fair value and useful life of intangible assets In this process we often

obtain the assistance of third
party

valuation firms for certain intangible assets Because the fair

value and the estimated useful life of an intangible asset is subjective estimate it is reasonably

likely that circumstances may cause the estimate to change For example if we discontinue or

experience decline in the profitability of one or more of our brands the value of the intangible

assets associated with those brands or their useful lives may decline or certain intangible assets

such as the Elizabeth Arden brand trademarks may no longer be classified as an indefinite-lived

asset which could result in additional charges to net income

--1
Our intangible assets consist of exclusive brand licenses trademarks patents and other

intellectual property customer relationships and lists non compete agreements and goodwill The

value of these assets is exposed to future adverse changes if we experience declines in operating

results or experience significant negative industry or economic trends We have determined that the

Elizabeth Arden trademarks have indefinite useful lives as cash flows from the use of the trademarks

are expected to be generated indefinitel Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives such as

our Elizabeth Arden trademarks are not amortized but rather tested for impairment at least

annually We typically perform our annual impairment test during the fourth quarter of our fiscal

year or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of goodwill



may not fully be recoverable There is two step process
for impairment testing of goodwill The

first
step

used to identify potential impairment compares the fair value of reporting unit with its

carrying amount including goodwill The second step if necessary measures the amount of the

impairment by comparing the estimated fair value of the goodwill and intangible assets to their

respective carrying
values If an impairment is identified the

carrying
value of the asset is adjusted

to estimated fair value

During the
quarter ended June 30 2011 we completed our annual impairment testing of the

Elizabeth

Arden trademarks with the assistance of third
party

valuation firm During the quarter

ended June 30 2011 we also completed our annual impairment testing of goodwill In assessing the

fair value of these assets we considered the income approach and market approach Under the

income approach the fair value is based on the
present

value of estimated future cash flows Under

the market approach the fair value is based on quoted market prices and the number of shares

outstanding of our common stock The analysis and assessments of these assets and goodwill

indicated that no impairment adjustment was required as the estimated fair value exceeded the

recorded
carrying

value hypothetical 10% decrease to the fair value of our Ehzabeth Arden

trademarks or hypothetical increase in the discount rate used to estimate fair value would not

result in an impairment of our Elizabeth Arden trademarks hypothetical 10% decrease in the fair

value of our North America reporting unit would not result in an impairment of our goodwill

Due to the ongoing uncertainty in capital market conditions we will continue to monitor and

evaluate the expected futnre cash flows of our reporting units and the long-term trends of our

market capitalization for the purposes of assessing the carrying value of our goodwill and indefinite-

lived Elizabeth Arden trademarks other trademarks and intangible assets If market and economic

conditions deteriorate this could increase the likelihood of future material non-cash impairment

charges to our results of
operations

related to our goodwill indefinite-livcd Elizabeth Arden II

trademarks or other trademarks and intangible assets
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Depreciation and Amortization Depreciation and amortization is provided over the estimated

useful lives of the assets using the straight line method Periodically we review the lives assigned to

our long-lived assets and adjust the lives as circumstances dictate Because estimated useful life is

subjective estimate it is reasonably likely that circumstances may cause the estimate to change For

example if we experience significant dechnes in net sales in certain channels of distribution it could

affect the estimated useful life of certain of our long-lived assets such as counters or trade fixtures

which could result in additional charges to net income

Long-Lived Assets We review for the impairment of long-hved assets to be held and used

... whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may
not be fully recoverable Measurement of an impairment loss is based on the fair value of the asset

compared to its carrying value An impairment loss is recognized to the extent the carrying amount

of the asset exceeds its estimated fair value Because the fair value is subjective estimate it is

reasonably likely that circumstances may cause the estimate to change The same circumstances that

could affect the estimated useful life of long-lived asset as discussed above could cause us to

change our estimate of the fair value of that asset which could result in additional charges to net

income We did not record any adjustments to our long-hved assets in fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009

Long-hved assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less

costs to sell

Revenue Recognition Sales are recognized when title and risk of loss transfers to the customer

the sales price is fixed or determinable and collectibility of the resulting receivable is probable Sales

are recorded net of estimated returns markdowns and other allowances The provision for sales

returns and markdowns represents managements estimate of future returns and markdowns based

on historical experience and considering current external factors and market conditions

Allowances for Sales Returns and Markdowns As is customary in the prestige beauty business

we grant certain of our customers primarily North American prestige department stores and



specialty beauty stores subject to our authorization and approval the right to either return product

for credit against amounts previously billed or to receive markdown allowance Upon sale to such

customers we record provision for product returns and markdowns estimated based on our level of

sales historical and projected experience with product returns and markdowns in each of our

business segments and with respect to each of our product types current economic trends and

changes in customer demand and customer mix We make detailed estimates at the segment

product and customer level which are then aggregated to arrive at consolidated provision for

product returns and markdowns and are reviewed periodically as facts and circumstances warrant

Such provisions and markdown allowances are recorded as reduction of net sales Because there is

considerable judgment used in evaluating the allowance for returns and markdowns it is reasonably

likely that actual experience will differ from our estimates If for example customer demand for our

products is lower than estimated or proportionately greater amount of sales is made to prestige

department stores and/or specialty beauty stores additional provisions for returns or markdowns

may be required resulting in charge to income in the period in which the determination was made

Similarly if customer demand for our products is higher than estimated reduction of our

provision for returns or markdowns may be required resulting in an increase to income in the period

in which the determination was made As percentage of
gross sales our expense for returns and

markdowns was 8.3% 9.2% and 8.1% for the fiscal
years ending June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively hypothetical 5% change in the value of our allowance for sales returns and

markdowns as of June 30 2011 would result in $1.0 million change to net income

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts Receivable We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts

to cover uncollectible accounts receivable and we evaluate our accounts receivable to determine if

they will ultimately be collected This evaluation includes significant judgments and estimates

including an analysis of receivables aging and customer-b -customer review for large accounts It

is reasonably likely that actual experience will differ from our estimates which may result in an
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increase or decrease in the allowance for doubtful accounts If for example the financial condition

of our customers deteriorates resulting in an impairment of their ability to pay additional

allowances may be required resulting in charge to income in the period in which the

determination was made hypothetical 5% change in the value of our allowance for doubtful

accounts receivable as of June 30 2011 would result in $0.3 milhon change to net income

Provisions for Inventory Obsolescence We record provision for estimated obsolescence and

shrinkage of inventory Our estimates consider the cost of inventory forecasted demand the

estimated market value the shelf life of the inventory and our historical experience Because of the

subjective nature of this estimate it is reasonably likely that circumstances may cause the estimate

to change If for example demand for our products declines or if we decide to discontinue certain

products we may need to increase our provision for inventory obsolescence which would result in

additional charges to net income hypothetical 5% change in the value of our provision
for

inventory obsolescence as of June 30 2011 would result in $0.9 million change to net income

Hedge Con tracts We have designated each qualifying foreign currency contract we have entered

into as cash flow hedge Unrealized gains or losses net of taxes associated with these contracts are

included in accumulated other comprehensive income on the balance sheet Gains and losses will only

be recognized in earnings in the period in which the forecasted transaction affects earnings

Share-Based Compensation All share-based paunents to employees including the grants of

employee stock options are recognized in the consohdated financial statenments based on their fair

values but only to the extent that vesting is considered probable Compensation cost for awards that

vest will not be reversed if the awards expire without being exercised The fair value of stock options

is determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model The fair value of restricted stock

awards is based on the closing price of our commoh stock on the date of grant Compensation costs

for awards are amortized using the straight-line method Option pricing model input assumptions

such as expected term expected volatility and risk-free interest rate impact the fair value estimate

Further the forfeiture rate impacts the amount of aggregate compensation These assumptions are

subjective and generally require significant analysis and judgment to develop When estimating fair



value some of the assumptions are based on or determined from external data and other

assumptions may be derived from our historical experience with share-based arrangements The

appropriate weight to place on historical experience is matter of judgment based on relevant facts

and circumstances

We rely on our historical experience and post-vested termination activity to provide data for

estimating our expected term for use in determining the fair value of our stock options We currently

estimate our stock volatility by considering our historical stock volatility experience and other key

-- factors The risk-free interest rate is the implied yield currently available on U.S Treasury zero-

coupon issues with remaining term equal to the expected term used as the input to the Black

Scholes model We estimate forfeitures using our historical experience Our estimates of forfeitures

will be adjusted over the requisite service period based on the extent to which actual forfeitures

differ or are expected to differ from their estimates Because of the significant amount of judgment

used in these calculations it is reasonably likely that circumstances may cause the estimate to

change If for example actual forfeitures are lower than our estimate additional
charges to net

iucome may be required

Income Taxes and Valuation Reserves valuation allowance may be required to reduce

deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be reahzed We consider projected

future taxable income and ongoing tax planning strategies in assessing potential valuation

allowance In the event we determiue that we may not be able to realize all or part of our deferred

tax asset in the future or that new estimates indicate that previously recorded valuation allowance

is no longer required an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would likely be charged or credited to

net income in the period in which such determination was made
II

We
recognize in our consolidated financial statements the impact of tax position if it is more

likely than not that such position will be sustained on audit based on its technical merits While we

believe that our assessments of whether our tax positions are more likely than not to be sustained are

reasonable each assessment is subjective and requires the use of significant judgments As result

one or more of such assessments may prove ultimately to be incorrect which could result in

change to net income See Note 12 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Foreign Currency Contracts

We
operate in several foreign countries which expose us to market risk associated with foreign

currency exchange rate fluctuations Our risk management policy is to enter into cash flow hedges to

reduce
portion of the exposure of our foreign subsidiaries revenues to fluctuations in currency

rates using foreign currency forward contracts We also enter into cash flow hedges for portion of

our forecasted inventory purchases to reduce the exposure of our Canadian and Australian

subsidiaries cost of sales to such fluctuations The principal currencies hedged are British pounds

Euros Canadian dollars and Australian dollars We do not enter into derivative financial contracts

for
speculative or trading purposes

Changes to fair value of the foreign currency contracts are recorded as component of

--

accumulated other comprehensive income loss within shareholders equity to the extent such

contracts are effective and are recogniLed in net sales or cost 0f sales in the period in which the

forecasted transaction affects earnings or the transactions are no longer probable of occurring

Changes to fair value of any contracts deemed to be ineffective would be recognized in earnings

immediately There were no amounts recorded in the fiscal years ended June 30 2011 2010 or

2009 relating to foreign currency contracts used to hedge forecasted revenues or forecasted

inventory purchases resulting from hedge ineffectiveness

When appropriate we also enter into and settle foreign currency contracts for Euros British

pounds and Canadian dollars to reduce exposure of our foreign subsidiaries balance sheets to

fluctuations in foreign currency rates These contracts are used to hedge balance sheet exposure



generally over one month and are settled before the end of the month in which they are entered into

Changes to fair value of the forward contracts are recognized in selling general and administrative

expense in the period in which the contracts expire

The table below summarizes the effect of the pre-tax loss gain from our settled foreign

currency contracts on the specified line items in our consolidated statements of operations for the

years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousands 2011 2010 2009

Net Sales 975 766 $14124

Cost of Sales 2199 662 852

Selling general and administrative 3209 1336 3252

Total pre-tax loss gain $6383 $1440 $18228

.Ini
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The
following

table compares our historical results of operations including as percentage of

net sales on consohdated basis for the
years

ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 Amounts in

thousands other than percentages Percentages may not add due to rounding

Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009

Net sales $1175500 100.0%$1103777 100.0%$1070225 100.0%

Costof sales 614134 52.3 602763 54.6 632654 59.1

Depreciation related to cost of goods

sold 5089 0.4 5040 0.5 4416 0.4

Gross profit 556277 47.3 495974 44.9 433155 40.5

Selling general and administrative

expenses 453956 38.6 427762 38.7 401078 37.5

Depreciation and amortization 24746 2.1 23419 2.1 21742 2.0

Income from operations 77575 6.6 44793 4.1 10335 1.0

Interest expense 21481 1.8 21885 2.0 24814 2.3

Debt extinguishment charges 6468 0.6 82

Income loss income before income

taxes 49626 4.2 22826 2.1 14479 1.4
Provision for benefit from income

taxes 8637 0.7 3293 0.3 8316 0.8
Net income loss 40989 3.5 19533 1.8 6163 0.6

Year Ended June 30 klI

2011 2010 2009 41

Other data

EBITDA and EBITDA margin1 .. 100942 8.6%$ 73170 6.6%$ 364932 3.4%

For definition of EBITDA and reconciliation of net income to EBITDA see Note 10 under

Item Selected Financial Data EBITDA margin represents
EBITDA divided by net sales

Includes $23.3 milhon of expenses $18.9 million of which did not require
the use of cash

related to the Liz Claiborne license agreement due to Liz Claiborne inventory that was

purchased at higher cost prior to the June 2008 effective date of the license agreement and

transition expenses

At June 30 2011 our operations were organized into the following reportable segments

North Mneriea Our North America segment sells our portfolio of owned licensed and

distributed brands including our Elizabeth Arden products to department stores mass

retailers and distributors in the United States Canada and Puerto Rico and also includes

our direct to consumer business which is composed of our Elizabeth Arden branded retail

outlet stores and global e-commerce business This segment also sells our Elizabeth Arden

products through the Red Door beauty salons which are owned and operated by an

unrelated third party that licenses the Elizabeth Arden and Red Door trademarks from us

for use in its salons

International Our International segment sells our portfolio of owned and licensed

brands including our Elizabeth Arden products in approximately 100 countries outside of

North America to perfumeries boutiques department stores travel retail outlets and

distributors

Commencing July 2010 our operations
and management reporting structure were

reorganized into two reportable segments North America and International The
portion

of our

business
operations

that
previously sold Elizabeth Arden fragrance cosmetic and skin care products



in prestige department stores in the United States and through the Red Door beauty salons which

was previously reported as our Other segment was consolidated with the North America Fragrance

segment to create the North America segment

Segment profit loss excludes depreciation and amortization interest expense debt

extinguishment charges consolidation and elimination adjustments and unallocated corporate

expenses which are shown in the table reconciling segment profit loss to consolidated income

loss before income taxes Included in unallocated
corporate expenses are restructuring charges

that are related to an announced plan ii costs related to the Initiative and iii restructuring costs

for
corporate operations These expenses are recorded in unallocated corporate expenses as these

items are centrally directed and controlled and are not included in internal measures of segment

operating performance Effective July 2010 employee incentive costs were fully allocated to

the North America and International segments as applicable and
restructuring costs that are

not part
of an announced plan were recorded in our reportable segment that incurred the costs or in

unallocated
corporate expenses

if related to corporate operations Prior period amounts related to

segment profit measures have been restated for comparison purposes We do not have any

intersegment
sales

The following table is comparative summary of our net sales and segment profit loss by

reportable segment for the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 and reflects the basis of

presentation described in Note General Information Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies and Note 18 Segment Data and Related Information to the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements for all periods presented

Year Ended Jane 30

4rnounts in thousnnds 2011 2010

Segment Net Sales

North America

International

Total

Segment Profit Loss
North America

International

Less

Depreciation and Amortization

Interest expense net

Consolidation and Elimination Adjustments

Unallocated Corporate Expenses

Income Loss Before Income Taxes

756731

418769

719330

384447

703864

366361

$1175500 $1103777 $1070225

104013

6420

92741

551

88807

17232

2835
21481

1854

76371

2845Q

21885

135092

6613s

26158

24814

4784

30298k

49626 22826 14479

Amounts shown for the year ended June 30 2011 include $6.5 million of debt

extinguishment charges ii $0.5 million of restructuring expenses for corporate operations not

related to the Initiative iii $0.3 million of restructuring expenses related to the Initiative and

iv $0.3 million of expenses related to the implementation of an Oracle accounting and order

processing system

Amounts for the year ended June 30 2010 include $5.5 million related to lower than normal

price charged to the North America segment with respect to certain sales of inventory by that

segment that were undertaken at the direction of corporate rather than segment management
Amounts for the year ended June 30 2010 include $3.9 million of expenses related to the

implementation of an Oracle accounting and order processing system ii $1.9 million of

restructuring expenses related to the Initiative iii $0.7 million of restructuring expenses not

related to the Initiative and iv $0.1 million of debt extinguishment costs
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In May 2008 we entered into an exclusive long-term global licensing agreement for the Liz

Claiborne
fragrance brands which became effective on June 2008 Amounts shown for the

year ended June 30 2009 include $23.3 million of expenses $18.9 million of which did not

require the use of cash related to our Liz Claiborne license agreement due to Liz Claiborne

inventory that was purchased at higher cost prior to the June 2008 effective date of the license

agreement and transition expenses ii $3.5 million of restructuring expenses related to the

Initiative iii $3.4 million of expenses related to the implementation of our Oracle accounting

and order
processing systems and iv $0.1 million of restructuring expenses not related to tile

Initiative

Year Ended Jane 30 2011 Compared to Year Ended Jane 30 2010

Net Sales Net sales increased by 6.5% or $71.7 million for the
year ended June 30 2011

compared to the year ended June 30 2010 Excluding the favorable impact of foreign currenc

translation net sales increased by 9% or 564.9 million Net sales of Elizabeth Arden branded

products increased by $32.8 million led primarily by higher sales of skin care products and

fragrances Net sales of licensed and other owned products increased by $37.5 million primarih due

to higher sales of the Juicy Couture fragrances ii the recentl hcensed fragrance brands of John

Varvatos and Kate Spade and iii Britney Spears fragrances due to the launch of radiance Britney

Spears Partially offsetting these net sales increases were lower sales of Rocawear Usher and Alberta

Ferretti fragrances Sales of distributed brands were $3.4 million higher than the prior year Pricing

changes had an immaterial effect on net sales

North America

II

Net sales increased by 5.2% or $37.4 million Excluding the favorable impact of
foieign 43

currency translation net sales increased by 4.9% or $35.2 million Net sales of Elizabeth Arden

branded products increased by $18.4 million as higher sales of skin care and color cosmetic

products were slightly offset by lower sales of fragrances Net sales of licensed and other owned

products increased by $15.0 million primarily
due to higher sales of

Juicy Couture fragrances

and the
recently licensed fragrance brands of John Varvatos and Kate Spade partiaily offset by

lower sales of Britney Spears and Rocawear fragrances Sales of distributed brands increased by

$3.5 million over the prior year Net sales to mass retail customers increased by $36.9 million

International

Net sales increased by 8.9% or $34.3 million Excluding the favorable impact of foreign

currency translation net sales increased by 7.7 or $29.7 million Net saies of Elizabeth Arden

branded products increased by $14.4 million led by higher sales of
fragrances

and skin care

products Net sales of licensed and other owned products also increased h3 $22.5 million

primarily due to higher sales of the Juicy Couture fragrances due
primarily to the launch of

Peace Love Juicy Gouture and ii Britney Spears fragrances due
primarily to thc launch of

radiance Bril-ney Spears and iii tue recently licensed John Varvatos fragrances slightly offset

by lower sales of Alberta Ferretti fragrances Our results were led by higher net sales of $20.8

million for travel retail and distributor markets and higher net sales of $7.3 million in Europe

primarily in the United Kingdommm

Gross Margin For the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 gross margins were 47.3% and

44.9% respectively Gross margin in the current year period benefited from
higher proportion

of

basic sales of Elizabeth Arden products and licensed brands which reflect higher gross margins as

compared to distributed brands and promotional product sales as well as improved operating

efficiencies due to the Initiative

SGA Selling general and administrative expenses increased 6.1% or $26.2 mnilhon for the

year ended June 30 2011 compared
to

the year ended June 30 2010 The increase as due to



higher marketing and sales expenses
of $15.9 million and higher general and administrative

expenses of $10.3 million The increase in marketing and sales expenses was primarily due to

higher media expenses of $7.4 million ii higher marketing and sales overhead expenses
of $5.2

million and iii higher royalty expenses of $3.4 million due to higher sales of licensed brands The

increase in general and administrati% expenses was principally
due to higher payroll and incentive

compensation costs of $15.0 million and higher professional services costs partially offset by lower

restructuring expenses and Initiative-related one-time costs and $3.1 million of higher losses in the

prior year period related to the impact of foreign currency translation of our affiliates balance

sheets For the year ended June 30 2011 total restructuring
and Initiative-related one-time costs

totaled $1 million as compared to $7 million for the year ended June 30 2010

Segment Profit Loss

North America

Segment profit increased 12.2% or $11.3 million The increase in segment profit was due

to higher net sales and gross profit partially offset by higher selling general and administrative

expenses as further described above

International

Segment profit increased 1065.2% or $5.9 mllhon The increase in segment profit was due

to higher net sales and gross profit partially offset by higher selling general and administrative

expenses as further described above

1i

II Interest Expense Interest expense net of interest income decreased 1.8% or $0.4 million

44 for the
year

ended June 30 2011 compared to the
year

ended June 30 2010 The decrease was due

to lower average borrowings under our revolving bank credit facility partially offset by higher long-

term debt during the second half of fiscal 2011 as result of the higher aggregate principal amount

of our 73/3% senior notes issued in January 2011 as compared to our 73/4% senior subordinated

notes that were repurchased or redeemed with the proceeds from the sale of our 7/8% senior notes

See Note and Note 10 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Debt Extinguishment Charges For the year ended June 30 2011 we recorded $6.5 million

in debt extinguishment charges related to the purchase and redemption of our previously

outstanding 73/4% senior subordinated notes and the amendment of our revolving bank credit

-- facility See Note and Note 10 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements For the year

ended June 30 2010 we recorded $0.1 million in debt extinguishment charges related to the

repurchase of $5.0 million of our 3/4% senior subordinated notes

Provision for Income Taxes The
pre-tax income from our domestic and international

operations consisted of the following for the
years

ended June 30 2011 and 2010

Year Ended

June 30 June 30

Amounts in thousands 2011 2010

Domestic pre-tax income F887 222

Foreign pre-tax income 43739 22604

Total income before income taxes $49626 $22826

Effective tax rate 17.4% 14.4%

The increase in the effective tax rate in the current year period as compared to the prior year

period was mainly due to higher earnings
contributions from our domestic operations in the

current year period as compared to the
prior year and ii shift in the ratio of earnings

contributions between jurisdictions that have different tax rates Our domestic
operations are



tax-effected at higher rate than our foreign operations The current year effective tax rate included

net tax benefit of $1.4 million of which $0.9 million related to the closure of foreign tax audits

and was recorded in the fourth quarter ii $0.3 million related to the reversal of valuation

allowances associated with net operating losses previously recorded by certain international

subsidiaries that became realihable and iii $0.2 million related to tax benefits due to changes in

estimates for certain entities The prior year effective tax rate included net tax benefit of $1.1

million of which $0.8 million related to the expiration of the statute of limitations for certain

unrecognized tax benefits ii $0.5 million related to the reversal of valuation allowances associated

with net operating losses previously recorded by certain international subsidiaries that became

realizable and iii $0.4 million related to tax benefits due to changes in estimates for certain

entities that was partially offset by increased taxes of $0.6 million resulting from changes in

statutory tax rates Also included in the current and prior year effective tax rates were tax benefits of

$0.6 million related to research and development and foreign tax credits See Note 12 to the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements

Net Income Net income for the
year

ended June 30 2011 was $41.0 milhon compared to

$19.5 million for the
year ended June 30 2010 The increase in net income was the resuh of higher

net income from operations partially
offset by the $6.5 million in debt extinguishment charges and

higher effective tax rate in the current year period

EBITDA EBITDA net income plus the provision for income taxes or net loss less the benefit

from income taxes plus interest expense plus depreciation and amortization expense increased by

approximately $27.8 million to $100.9 milhon for the year ended June 30 2011 compared to $73.2

million for the
year

ended June 30 2010 The increase in EBITDA was the resuh of higher income

from operations partially offset by the $6.5 million in debt extinguishment charges in the current

year period For discussion of EBITDA and reconciliation of net income to EBIlDA for the years

ended June 30 2011 and 2010 see Note 10 under Item Selected Financial Data

Year Ended June 30 2010 Compared to Year Ended June 30 2009

Net Sales Net sales increased by 3.1% or $33.6 milhon for the year ended June 30 2010

compared to the year ended June 30 2009 Excluding the favorable impact of foreign currency

translation net sales increased by 1.6% or $16.9 milhon Net sales of the Juicy Couture fragrances

increased by $27.1 million due to the current year launch of the latest Juicy Couture fragrance

Couture Couture and the continued roll out of the prior year launch of Viva La Juicy Sales of

Britney Spears fragranres and Elizabeth Arden branded prnducts increased by S22.1 millinn and

$19.8 million respectively These increases were partially offset by $20.0 million in reduced sales of

distributed brands and $13.5 million of lower sales of other fragrances primarily Usher Pricing

changes had an immaterial effect on net sales

North America

Net sales increased by 2.2% or $15.5 milhon Excluding the favorable impact of
foreign

currency translation net sales increased by 1.8% or $12.8 million The increase in net sales was

primarily due to higher sales of the Juicy Couture fragrance brands due to the current year

launch of Couture Couture and the continued roll out of the prior year launch of Viva La Juicy

Also contributing to the increase were higher sales of Britney Spears and Mariah Carey

fragrance brands as well as Elizabeth Arden skin care and color cosmetic products These

increases were partially offset by decline in sales of distributed brands and Usher fragrances

While net sales primarily to U.S department store customers decreased by $17.4 milhon sales

to other customers primarily mass customers increased by $32.9 milhon

International

Net sales increased by 4.9% or $18.1 milhon Excluding the favorable impact of foreign

currency translation net sales increased by 1.1% or $4.1 million Net sales in our travel retail



il and distributor markets were $13.8 million higher than in the prior year period The current

year period also benefited from incremental sales due to the international roll-out of Viva La

Juicy and the launches of Couture Couture and the Alberta Ferretti fragrance Net sales iu the

prior year period included
gains

of $14.1 million from our settled foreign currency coutracts

Gross Margin For the year
ended June 30 2010 and 2009 gross margins were 44.9% and

40.5% respectively Gross margin for the
year

ended June 30 2009 included $19.9 milhou of

charges $18.9 milhon of which did not require
the use of cash related to the higher cost Liz

Claiborne inventor purchased prior to the June 2008 effective date of the Liz Claiborne license

agreement which reduced
gross margin for fiscal 2009 by approximately 190 basis points In

addition gross margin in the current year period benefited from higher proportion of sales of basic

stock items of owned and licensed brands which reflect higher gross margins as compared to

distributed brands and promotional product sales the favorable impact of foreign currency

translation and lower distribution and freight costs

SGA Selling general and administrative
expenses

increased 6.7% or $26.7 million for the

year
ended June 30 2010 compared to the

year
ended June 30 2009 The increase was principally

due to higher general and administrative expenses
of $17.0 million and ii higher royalty and

advertising and sales promotion expenses
of $7.1 million primarily due to higher sales of hcensed

brands The increase in general
and administrative expenses was principally due to higher incentive

compensation and payroll costs of $20.1 million and higher losses in the current year period of $2.2

million related to the impact of foreign currency translation of our affiliates balance sheets

Partially offsetting
these increases in general

and administrative
expenses were transition expenses

of

$3.4 million in the prior year period related to the June 2008 license of the Liz Claihorne fragrance

brands For the ear ended June 30 2010 total
restructuring

and Initiative related one-time costs
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were $7.3 million as compared to $8.0 milhon for the

year
ended June 30 2009

Segment Profit Loss

North Anericu

Segment profit increased 4.4% or $3.9 million The increase in segment profit was mostly

due to higher sales and improved gross margins due to higher proportion
of basic stock sales

of owned and licensed brands which reflect higher gross margins as compared to distributed

brands and promotional product sales and lower freight and distribution costs partially offset

by higher selling general and administrative expenses

International

Segment profit was $0.6 milhon as compared to segment loss of $17.2 milhon in the

prior year period The improvement in segment results was primarily due to the impact of

favorable foreign currency translation and improved gross margins due to higher proportion

of basic stock sales which have higher gross margins as compared to promotional product sales

and lower freight and distribution costs partially offset by higher selling general and

administrative expenses

Interest Ezpense Interest expense net of interest income decreased 11.8% or $2.9 milhon

for

the
year

ended June 30 2010 compared to the
year

ended June 30 2009 The decrease was due

to lower average borrowings under our revolving bank credit facility during the current year period

and lower
average interest rates under such credit facilit



Provision for Benefit from Income Taxes provision for income taxes of $3.3 million was

recorded for the year ended June 30 2010 compared to benefit from income taxes of $8.3 million for

the year ended June 30 2009 The pre-tax income loss from our domestic and international

operations consisted of the following for the year ended June 30 2010 and 2009

Year Ended

June30 June 30

Amounts in thousands 2010 2009

Domestic pre-tax income loss 222 $26621
Foreign pre tax income 22604 12142

Total income loss before income taxes $22826 $14479

Effective tax rate 14.4% 57.4%

The decrease in the effective tax rate in the current year as compared to the prior year was

mainly due to higher earnings
contributions from our international operations in the current

period as compared to the
prior year and ii shift in the ratio of

earnings
contributions between

jurisdictions that have different tax rates Our domestic operations are tax-effected at higher rate

than our international operations The current year
effective tax rate included net tax benefit of

$1.1 million of which $0.8 million related to the expiration of the statute of limitations for

certain unrecognized tax benefits ii $0.4 million related to tax benefits due to changes in estimates

for certain entities and iii $0.5 million related to the reversal of valuation allowances associated

with the net operating losses previously recorded by certain international subsidiaries that became

realizable that was partially offset by increased taxes of $0.6 million resulting from changes in

statutory tax rates The prior year
effective tax rate included net tax charge of $0.5 million related

to valuation allowances associated with net operating
losses generated by certain international
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subsidiaries and changes to statutory tax rates Also included in the current and

prior ear effective

tax rates were tax benefits of $0.6 million and $0.7 million respectively related to research and

development and
foreign tax credits See Note 12 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenients

Net Income Loss Net income for the year ended June 30 2010 was $19.5 million

compared to net loss of $6.2 million for the year ended June 30 2009 The increase in net income

was primarily the result of higher sales improved gross margins and lower interest expense in the

current year period partially offset by higher selling general and administrative expenses

EBITDA EBITDA net income plus the provision for income taxes or net loss less the benefit

from income taxes plus interest expense plus depreciation and amortization expense increased by

approximately $36.7 million to $73.2 million for the
year

ended June 30 2010 compared to $36.5

million for the
year

ended June 30 2009 The increase in EBITDA was primarily the result of higher

sales improved gross margins and lower interest expense partially offset by higher selling general and

administrative
expenses

in the current year period For reconciliation of net income to EBITDA for

the
years

ended June 30 2010 and 2009 see Note 10 under Item Selected Financial Data

Seasonality

Otis uperatiuns have hiistusically been seasusial with higher sales generall ueeuuring in the first

half of our fiscal year as result of increased demand by retailers in anticipation of and during the

holiday season For the year ended June 30 2011 approximately 59% of our net sales were made

during the first half of our fiscal year Due to product innovation and new product launches the size

and timing of certain orders from our customers and additions or losses of brand distribution rights

sales results of operations working capital requirements and cash flows can vary significantly

between quarters of the same and different years As result we expect to experience variability in

net sales operating margin net income working capital requirements and cash flows on quarterly

basis Increased sales of skin care and cosmetic products relative to fragrances may reduce the

seasonahity of our business



We experience seasonality in our working capital with peak inventory levels normally from July

to October and peak receivable balances normally from September to December Our working

capital borrowings are also seasonal and are normally highest in the months of September October

and November During the months of December January and February of each year cash is

normally generated as customer payments on holiday season orders are received

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in t/sonsnnds 2011 2010 2009

Net cash provided by operating activities 97746 $113959 36986

Net cash used in investing activities 39472 35721 31663
Net cash used in financing activities 28519 74337 7529
Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 31969 3779 3294

Operating Activities

Cash provided by our operating activities is driven by net income adjusted for non-cash

expenses and debt extinguishment charges and changes in working capital The following chart

illustrates our net cash provided by operating activities during the years ended June 30 2011 2010

and 2009

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in t/sousonns 2011 2010 2009

Net income including adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided

by operating activities $RS645 .52308 $1 2737

48 Net change in assets and liabilities net of
accpiisitions working

capital changes 12101 61651 24249

Net cash provided by operations $97746 $113959 $36986

For the year ended June 30 2011 net cash provided by operating activities was $97.7 million

as compared to $114.0 million for the year ended June 30 2010 Net income adjusted for non-cash

items and debt extinguishment charges increased by $33.3 million as compared to the prior year

Working capital changes provided cash of $12.1 million in the current year period as compared to

$61.7 million in the prior year This decrease in cash provided by working capital changes primarily

related to inventory as the prior year period included significant reductions in inventory levels

and ii continued reductions in accounts payable

For the year ended June 30 2010 net cash provided by operating activities was $114.0 milhon

as compared to $37.0 million for the year ended June 30 2009 This increase in cash provided by

operating activities was principally due to higher net income and an increase in cash provided by

working capital changes primarily related to improved account receivable collections and continued

reductions in inventory levels Working capital changes provided cash of $61.7 million for the fiscal

year ended June 30 2010 as compared to $24.2 milhon for the fiscal year ended June 30 2009

Investing Activities

The following chart illustrates our net cash used in investing activities during the years
ended

June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in t/zousnnds 2011 2010 2009

Additions to property
and equipment $25608 $35388 $26330

Acquisition of intangible and other assets 13864 333 5333
Total $39472 $35721 $31663



For the year ended June 30 2011 net cash used in investing activities of $39.5 million was

composed of $25.6 million of capital expenditures primarily for in-store counters and displays

leasehold improvements and computer hardware and software and ii $13.9 million of payments

related to the acquisition of the Prevage trademarks and related patents and the global license

agreement with John Varvatos Apparel Corp for the manufacture distribution and marketing of

John Varvatos fragrances For the year ended June 30 2010 net cash used in investing activities of

$35.7 million was composed of approximately $35.4 million of capital expenditures primarily for

the implementation of the Oracle financial accounting and order processing system in-store counters

and displays tools and molds and computer hardware and software In addition the prior year net

-...- cash used in investing activities included the remaining installment of contingent consideration of

$0.3 million associated with our acquisition of the fragrance business of Sovereign Sales LLC in

2006 The decrease in capital expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 is primarily due

to expenditures incmTed in the prior year period for the implementation of our new accounting and

order processing system

We currently expect
to incur between $25 million and $30 million in capital expenditures in the

year ending June 30 2012 primarily for in-store counters and displays leasehold improvements

and computer hardware and software

Financing Activities

The
following chart illustrates our net cash used in financing activities during the years ended

June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousands 2011 2010 2009

Panents on short-term debt 59000 $56000 $4000
Proceeds from payments on long-term debt 243996 545 1149
Repurchase of senior subordinated notes 223332 5000
Repurchase of common stock 13758 13779 1566
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 20432 1591 668

All other financing activities 3143 604 1482
Total 28519 $74337 $7529

On January 21 2011 the Company issued $250 million
aggregate principal amount of 73/g%

senior notes due March 2021 Concurrently with the offering of the 3/% senior notes the Company
commenced cash tender offer and consent solicitation for any and all of its $220 million of

outstanding 73/4% senior subordinated notes due January 2014 All of the outstanding 73/4% senior

subordinated notes were either purchased or redeemed during the third
quarter

of fiscal 2011 See

Note 10 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information

For the year ended June 30 2011 net cash used in financing activities was $28.5 million as

compared to net cash used in financing activities of $74.3 million for the year ended June 30 2010

The decrease in net cash used in financing activities resulted primarily from the refinancing of our

senior notes in January 20 11 including using the proceeds to pay down borrowings under our credit

facility For the year ended June 30 2011 borrowings under our credit facility decreased by $59.0

million There were no borrowings outstanding under our credit facility at June 30 2011 Proceeds

from the exercise of stock options were $20.4 million for the current year period compared to $1.6

million for the prior year period Repurchases of co.mmon stock for both the years ended June 30
2011 and 2010 were $13.8 million The repurchases of common stock for the current year period

include approximately $1.2 million for the settlement of shares that were repurchased at the end of

fiscal 2010 under our repurchase program and approximately $3.4 million for shares withheld by us

upon the March 2011 vesting of certain market-based restricted stock granted in 2005 to satisfy

minimum statutory tax withholding obligations resulting from such vesting



For the year ended June 30 2010 net cash used in financing activities was $74.3 million as

compared to net cash used in financing activities of S7.5 million for the year ended June 30 2009

During the
year ended June 30 2010 borrowings under our credit facility decreased by $56.0

million to $59.0 million at June 30 2010 and we also made payments under capital lease

obligations of $1.9 million In addition in May 2010 we rep urchased $5.0 million of our then

outstanding 73/4% senior subordinated notes During the year ended June 30 2009 borrowings

under our credit facility decreased by $4.0 million to $115.0 million at June 30 2009 and we also

made payments under capital lease obligations of $2.0 million For the year ended June 30 2010

repurchases of common stock totaled $13.8 million compared to $1.6 million for the year ended

June 30 2009

Interest paid during the year ended June 30 2011 included $16.0 million of interest payments

on the 3/4% senior subordinated notes and $2.3 niilhon of interest paid on the borrowings under

our credit facility Interest paid during the year ended June 30 2010 included $17.5 million of

interest payments on the 73/4% senior subordinated notes and $2.9 million of interest paid on the

borrowings under our credit facility Interest paid during the
year

ended June 30 2009 included

$17.4 million of interest payments on the 3/4% senior subordinated notes and $7.0 million of

interest paid on the borrowings under our credit facility

At June 30 2011 we had approximately $58.9 million of cash of which $43.1 million was held

outside of the United States The cash held outside the U.S was needed to meet local working

capital requirements and therefore considered permanently reinvested in the applicable local

subsidiary

Debt and Contractual Financial Obligations and Commitments At June 30 2011 our long-

term debt and financial obligations and commitments by due dates were as follows

Payments Due by Period

LessThan 1-3 3-5 MoreThau

Amounts in thousands Total Year Years Years Years

Long term debt including current

portion $250000 $250000

hiterest payments on long-tenn debt1 179768 18438 36876 36876 87.578

Operating lease obligations 72.914 17165 23820 17551 14378

Purchase obligations2 393626 274020 59502 36604 23.500

Other long-term obligations3 3986 386
Total $900294 $309623 $124184 $91031 $375456

Consists of interest at the rate of 73/g% per annum on the $250 million aggregate principal

amount of 73/g% senior notes See Note 10 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Consists of obhgations incurred in the ordinary course of business related to purchase

commitments for finished goods raw materials components advertising promotional items

minimum royalty guarantees insurance services pursuant to legally binding obligations

including fixed or minimum obligations and estimates of such obligations subject to variable

price provisions

Excludes $3.4 million of gross unrecognized tax benefits that if not realized would result in

cash payments We cannot currentl estimate when or if the payments will be due See Note

12 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Future Liquidity and Capital Needs Our principal future uses of funds are for working

capital requirements including brand and product development and marketing expenses new

product launches additional brand acquisitions or product licensing and distribution arrangements

capital expenditures and debt service In addition we may use funds to repurchase material amounts

of our common stock and senior notes through open market purchases privately negotiated

transactions or otherwise depending upon prevailing market conditions our liquidity requirements



contractual restrictions and other factors We have historically financed our working capital needs

primarily through internally generated funds our credit facilit and external financing We collect

cash from our customers based on our sales to them and their respective payment terms

We have revolving bank credit facihty with syndicate of banks for which JPMorgan Chase

Bank is the administrative agent which generally provides for borrowings on revolving basis In

January 2011 the credit facility was amended to among other things reduce its size from $325

million to $300 million with sub-limit of $25 million for letters of credit ii revise the interest

rate and unused commitment fee applicable under the credit facility and iii extend its maturity

from December 2012 to January 2016 Under the terms of the credit facility we may at any time

increase the size of the credit facility up to $375 million without entering into formal amendment

requiring
the consent of all of the banks subject to our satisfaction of certain conditions

The credit facility is guaranteed by all of our U.S subsidiaries and is collateralized by first

priority lien on all of our U.S accounts receivable and inventory Borrowings under the new credit

facility are limited to 85% of eligible accounts receivable and 85% of the appraised net hquidation

value of our inventory as determined pursuant to the terms of the credit facility provided however

that from August 15 to October 31 of each year our borrowing base ma be temporarily increased

by up to $25 milhon

The credit facility has only one financial maintenance covenant which is debt service

coverage
ratio that must be maintained at not less than 1.1 to if average borrowing base capacity

declines to less than $25 million $35 million from September through January 31 Our average

borrowing base capacity for each of the quarters during fiscal 2011 did not fall below the applicable

thresholds noted above Accordingly the debt service coverage ratio did not apply during the year

ended June 30 2011 We were in compliance with all applicable covenants under the credit facility
II

for the quarter and
year

ended June 30 2011 51

Under the terms of the credit facility we may pay dividends or repurchase common stock if we

maintain borrowing base capacity of at least $25 million from February to August 31 and at least

$35 million from September to January 31 after making the applicable payment The credit

facility restricts us from incurring additional non-trade indebtedness other than refinancings and

certain small amounts of indebtedness

Borrowings under the credit portion
of the credit facility bear interest at floating rate based on

an Applicable Margin which is determined by reference to debt service coverage ratio At our

option the Applicable Margin may be applied to either the London InterBank Offered Rate LIBOR
or the base rate The Apphcable Margin charged on LIBOR loans

ranges
from 1.75% to 2.50% and

ranges
from 0.25% to 1.0% for base rate loans except

that the Applicable Margin on the first $25

million of borrowings from August 15 to October 31 of each year while the temporary increase in

our borrowing base is in effect is 1.0% higher We are required to pay an unused commitment fee

ranging from 0.375% to 0.50% based on the quarterly average unused portion
of the credit facihty

The interest rates payable by us on our 3/% senior notes and on borrowings under our revolving

credit facility are not impacted by credit rating agency actions

At June 30 2011 the Applicable Margin was 2.0% for LIBOR loans and 0.5% for prime rate

loans Ihe commitment fee on the unused portion of the credit facility at June 30 2011 was 0.50%

For both the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 the weighted average annual interest rate on

borrowings under our credit facility was 2.2%

At June 30 2011 we had no outstanding borrowings and $5.6 million in letters of credit

outstanding under the credit facility ii $128.2 million of eligible accounts receivable and

inventories available as collateral tinder the credit facility and iii remaining borrowing availability

of $127.9 million The borrowing availability under the credit facility typically declines in the

second half of our fiscal
year as our higher accounts receivable balances resulting from holiday

season sales are likely to decline due to cash collections



At June 30 2011 we had outstanding $250 million aggregate principal amount of 3/% senior

notes due March 2021 Interest on the 73/g% senior notes accrues at rate of 7.375%
per annum

and will be payable semi-annually on March 15 and September 15 of
every year commencing on

September 15 2011 The 7/8% senior notes rank pati passu in right of payment to indebtedness

under our credit facility and any other senior debt and will rank senior to any future subordinated

indebtedness provided however that the 3/% senior notes are effectively subordinated to the

credit facility to the extent of the collateral securing the credit facility The indenture applicable to

the 7/8% senior notes generally permits us subject to the satisfaction of fixed charge coverage

ratio and in certain cases also net income test to incur additional indebtedness pay dividends

purchase or redeem our common stock or redeem subordinated indebtedness The indenture

generally limits our ability to create liens merge or transfer or sell assets The indenture also

provides that the holders of the 7/8% senior notes have the option to require us to repurchase their

notes in the event of change of control involving us as defined in the indenture The 7/8% senior

notes initially will not be guaranteed by any of our subsidiaries but could become guaranteed in the

future by any domestic subsidiary of ours that guarantees or incurs certain indebtedness in excess of

$10 million

On August 10 2011 we amended our long-term license agreement with Liz Claiborne Inc and

certain of its affiliates to acquire all of the U.S and international trademarks for the Curve fragrance

brands as well as trademarks for certain other smaller fragrance brands The amendment also

establishes lower effective royalty rate for the remaining licensed fragrance brands including Juicy

Couture and Lucky Brand fragrances reduces the future minimum guaranteed royalties for the term

of the hcense and requires pre-payment of royalties for the remainder of calendar 2011 We paid

Liz Claiborne Inc $58.4 million in cash in connection with this transaction The allocation of the

JjJjJ

$58.4 million to the net assets acquired has not been finahzed
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Based upon our internal projections we believe that existing cash and cash equivalents

internally generated funds and borrowings under our credit facility will be sufficient to cover debt

service working capital requirements and capital expenditures for the next twelve months other

than additional working capital requirements that may result from further expansion of our

operations through acquisitions of additional brands or licensing or distribution arrangements

deterioration in the economic and retail environment however could cause us to fail to satisfy the

financial maintenance covenant under our credit facility that applies only in the event we do not

have the requisite average borrowing base capacity as set forth under the credit facility
In such an

event we would not be allowed to borrow under the credit facility and may not have access to the

capital necessary for our business In addition default under our credit facility that causes

acceleration of the debt under this facility could trigger default under our outstanding 73/3%

senior notes In the event we are not able to borrow under our credit facility we would be required

to develop an alternative source of liquidity There is no assurance that we could obtain replacement

financing or what the terms of such financing if available would be

We have discussions from time to time with manufacturers and owners of prestige fragrance

brands regarding our possible acquisition of additional exclusive licensing and/or distribution rights

We currently have no material agreements or commitments with respect to any such acquisition

although we periodicaily execute routine agreements to maintain the confidentiality of information

obtained during the course of discussions with such manufacturers and brand owners There is no

assurance that we will be able to negotiate successfully for any such future acquisitions or that we

will be able to obtain acquisition financing or additional working capital financing on satisfactory

terms for further expansion of our operations

Repurchases of Common Stock On November 2010 our board of directors authorized the

repurchase of an additional $40 million of our common stock under the terms of an existing $80

million common stock repurchase program and extended the term of the stock repurchase program

from November 30 2010 to November 30 2012 As of June 30 2011 we had repurchased

4029201 shares of common stock on the open market under the stock repurchase program since its



inception in November 2005 at an average price of $16.63 per share and at cost of approximately

$67.0 million including sales commissions leaving approximately $53.0 million available for

additional repurchases nnder the program For the fiscal
year

ended June 30 2011 we repurchased

598703 shares of common stock on the open market nnder the share repurchase program at an

average price 0f $15.27 per
share and at cost 0f $9.2 million including bales commissions all of

which were repurchased during the first quarter of fiscal 2011

Forward-Looking Information and Factors That May Mfect Future Results

The Securities and Exchange Commission encourages companies to disclose forward-looking

information so that investors can better understand companys future prospects and make

informed investment decisions This Annual Report on Form 10-K and other written and oral

statements that we make from time to time contain such forward-looking statements that set out

anticipated results based on managements plans and assumptions regarding future events or

performance We have tried wherever possible to identify such statements by using words such as

anticipate estimate expect proj ect intend plan believe will and similar

expressions in connection with any discussion of future operating or financial performance In

particular these include statements relating to future actions prospective products future

--

performance or results of current and anticipated products sales efforts expenses and/or cost

savings interest rates foreign exchange rates the outcome of contingencies such as legal

proceedings and financial results list of factors that could cause our actual results of operations

and financial condition to differ materially from our forward-looking statements is set forth below

and these factors are discussed in
greater

detail under Item IA Risk Factors of this Annual

Report on Form 10
11111

factors affecting our relationships with our customers or our customers businesses 101

including the absence of contracts with customers our customers financial condition and

changes in the retail fragrance and cosmetic industries such as the consolidation of

retailers and the associated closing of retail doors as well as retailer inventory control

practices including but not limited to levels of
inventory

carried at point
of sale and

practices
used to control

inventory shrinkage

risks of international operations including foreign currency fluctuations hedging activities

economic and political consequences of terrorist attacks disruptions in travel unfavorable

changes in U.S or international laws or regulations diseases and pandemics and political

instability in certain regions of the world

our reliance on license agreements with third parties for the rights to sell many of our

prestige fragrance brands

our reliance on third-party manufacturers for substantially all of our owned and licensed

products and our absence of contracts with suppliers of distributed brands and components

for manufacturing of owned and licensed brands

delays in shipments inventory shortages and higher costs of production due to the loss of

or disruption in our distribution facilities or at key third
party manufacturing or fulfillment

facilities that manufacture or provide logistic services forour products

our ability to respond in timely manner to changing consumer preferences
and

purchasing patterns and other international and domestic conditions and events that

impact retailer and/or consumer confidence and demand such as domestic or global

recessions

our ability to protect our intellectual property rights

the success or changes in the timing or scope of our new product launches advertising

and merchandising programs

the quality safety and efficacy of our products



the impact of
competitive products and pricing

our ability to implement our growth strategy
and

acquire or license additional brands or

secure additional distribution arrangements ii successfully and cost effectively integrate

acquired businesses or new brands and iii finance our growth strategy
and our working

capital requirements

our level of indebtedness our ability to realize sufficient cash flows from operations to

meet our debt service obligations and working capital requirements and restrictive

covenants in our revolving
credit facility and the indenture for our 73/g% senior notes

changes in product mix to less profitable products

the retention and availability of key personnel

chauges in the legal regulatory
and political environment that impact or will impact our

business including changes to customs or trade regulations laws or regulations relating to

ingredients or other chemicals contained in products or packaging or accounting standards

or critical accounting estimates

the success of our Initiative including our transition to turnkey manufacturing process

and our new financial accounting and order processing system

our abilit to effectively implement manage and maintain our global information systems

our reliance on certain third parties
for certain outsourced business services including

information technology operations
and employee benefit plan administration

the potential for significant impairment charges relating to our trademarks goodwill or

II other
intangible assets that could result from number of factors including downward

54 pressure on our stock price and

other
uiianticipated risks and uncertainties

We caution that the factors described herein and other factors could cause our actual results of

operations and financial condition to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking

statements we make and that investors should not place undue reliance on any such forward looking

statements Further any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such

statement is made and we undertake no obhgation to update any forward looking statement to reflect

events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of

anticipated or unanticipated events or circumstances New factors emerge from time to time and it is

not possible for us to predict all of such factors Further we cannot assess the impact of each such

factor on our results of
operations or the extent to which any factor or combination of factors may

cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

As of June 30 2011 we had no borrowings outstanding under our revolving credit facility

Borrowings under our revolving credit facility are seasonal with peak borrowings typically in the

months of September October and November Borrowings under the credit facility are subject to

variable rates amid accordingly our earnings
and cash flow will be affected by changes in interest

rates Based upon our average borrowings under our revolving credit facility during the
year

ended

June 30 2011 and assnmning there had been two percentage point 200 basis points change in

the average interest rate for these borrowings it is estimated that our interest expense for the
year

ended June 30 2011 would have increased or decreased by $1.5 million See Note to the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements



Foreign Currency Risk

We sell our products in approximately 100 countries around the world During the fiscal
year

ended June 30 2011 we derived approximately 40% of our net sales from our international

operations We conduct our international operations in variety of different countries and derive our

sales in various currencies including the Euro British pound Swiss franc Canadian dollar and

Australian dollar as well as the U.S dollar Most of our skin care and cosmetic products are

produced in third-party manufacturing facilities located in the U.S Our operations may be subject

to volatihty because of currency changes inflation and changes in political and economic conditions

in the countries in which we operate With
respect to international operations our sales cost of

goods sold and
expenses are typically denominated in combination of local currency and the U.S

dollar Our results of operations are reported in U.S dollars Fluctuations in currency rates can

affect our reported sales margins operating costs and the anticipated settlement of our foreign

denominated receivables and payables weakening of the foreign currencies in which we generate

sales relative to the currencies in which our costs are denominated which is primarily the U.S

dollar could adversely affect our business prospects results of operations financial condition or

cash flows Our competitors may or may not be subject to the same fluctuations in currency rates

and our competitive position could be affected by these changes

As of June 30 2011 our subsidiaries outside the United States held 33.8% of our total assets

The cumulative effect of translating balance sheet accounts from the functional currency into the

U.S dollar at current exchange rates is included in accumulated other comprehensive loss in our

consohdated balance sheets

As of June 30 2011 we had notional amounts of 10.4 milhon British pounds under open

foreign currency contracts that expire between July 31 2011 and May 31 2012 to reduce the

exposure of our foreign subsidiary revenues to fluctuations in currency rates As of June 30 2011

we had notional amounts of 14.5 million Canadian dollars and 10.6 million Australian dollars under

open foreign currency contracts that expire between July 31 2011 and May 31 2012 to hedge

portion of our forecasted inventory purchases to reduce the exposure of our Canadian and Australian

subsidiaries cost of sales to fluctuations in currency rates We have designated each qualifying

foreign currency contract as cash flow hedge The gains and losses of these contracts will only be

recognized in earnings in the period in which the forecasted transaction affects earnings or the

transactions are no longer probable of occurring The realized loss net of taxes recognized during

the year ended June 30 2011 from settled contracts was approximately $2.4 million At June 30

2011 the unrealized loss net of taxes associated with these open contracts of approximatel $1.4

million is included in accumulated other comprehensive income loss in our consolidated balance

sheet See Note 15 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

When appropriate we also enter into and settle foreign currency contracts for Euros British

pounds and Canadian dollars to reduce the exposure of our foreign subsidiaries balance sheets to

fluctuations in foreign currency rates As of June 30 2011 there were no such foreign currency

contracts outstanding The realized loss net of taxes recognized during the year ended June 30

2011 was $2.8 milhon

We do not utilize foreign exchange contracts for trading or speculative purposes There can be

no assurance that our hedging operations or other exchange rate practices if any will eliminate or

substantially reduce risks associated with fluctuating exchange rates
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Report of Management
Elizabeth Arden Inc and Subsidiaries

Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

We prepared and are responsible for the consolidated financial statements that appear in the

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30 2011 of Ehzabeth Arden Inc the

Company These consolidated financial statements are in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America and therefore include amounts based on

informed judgments and estimates We also accept responsibility for the preparation of the other

financial information that is included in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 3a- 15f and Sd- 15f under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 The Companys internal control over financial reporting is

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles in the United States of America The Companys internal control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that

in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

Company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and

that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of management and directors of the Company and iii provide reasonable assurance II

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the 57

Companys assets that could have material effect on the consolidated financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are

subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate Management of the Company

assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of June 30

2011 In making this assessment management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO in Internal Control Integrated

Framework Based on our assessment using those criteria management concluded that the Company

maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30 2011

The Companys independent registered public accounting firm PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
has audited the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting for the

year

ended June 30 2011 and has expressed an unqualified opinion in their report which is included

herein

Is Scott Beanie Is Stephen Smith

Scott Beattie Stephen Smith

1--- Chairman President and Chief Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Executive Officer

August 16 2011



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Elizabeth Arden Inc

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index
present fairly

in all material
respects

the financial position of Elizabeth Arden Inc and its subsidiaries at

June 30 2011 and June 30 2010 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of

the three
years in the period ended June 30 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all

material
respects

effective internal control over financial
reporting as of June 30 2011 based on

criteria estabhshed in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is

responsible for these financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

included in the accompanying Report of Management appearing under Item Our responsibility is

to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Companys internal control over

financial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducted our audits in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards

require that we plan and perfonn the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over

financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects

Our audits of the financial statements

included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management

and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over

58
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting

assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included

performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary

in the circumstances We believe that

our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is
process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and

iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are

subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York New York

August 16 2011



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Amounts in thousands except shares and par value

As of

June 30 2011 June 30 2010

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 58850 26881

Accounts receivable net 165622 170067

Inventories 246514 271058

Deferred income taxes 37683 33496

Prepaid expenses
and other assets 45725 58892

Total current assets 554394 560394

Property and equipment net 82762 76583

Exclusive brand hcenses trademarks and intangibles net 184758 179444

Goodwill 21054 21054

Debt financing costs net 8740 3509

Deferred income taxes 2521 1301

Other 608 1186

Total assets $854837 $843471

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities

11111

Short-term debt 59000

Accounts payable trade 47951 98441 59

Other payables and accrued expenses 117546 96429

Total current liabilities 165497 253870

Long-term Liabilities

Long term debt 250000 218699

Deferred income taxes and other liabilities 21575 18285

Total long-term habilities 271575 236984

Total liabilities 437072 490854

Commitments and
contingencies see Note 11

Shareholders Equity

Common stock $01 par value 50000000 shares authorized

33452687 and 31897303 shares issued respectively 334 319

Additional paid-in capital 327226 297137

Retained
earnings 159935 118946

Treasury stock 4353200 and 3632589 shares at cost

respectively 74871 62303
Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 5141 1482

Total shareholders equity 417.765 352617

Total

liabilities and shareholders equity $854837 $843471

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Amounts in thousands except per share data

Year Eaded Juae 30

2011 2010 2009

Net sales $1175500 $1103777 $1070225
Cost of goods sold

Cost

of sales 614134 602763 632654

Depreciation related to cost of goods sold 5089 5040 4416

Total cost of goods sold 619223 607803 637070

Gross profit 556277 495974 433155

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative 453956 427762 401078

Depreciation and amortization 24746 23419 21742

Total operating expenses 478702 451181 422820

Income from operations 77575 44793 10335

Other expense

Interest expense 21481 21885 24814

Debt extinguishment charges 6468 82

Other expense net 27949 21967 24814

Income loss before income taxes 49626 22826 14479
II Pruvisiun fur benefit fruin income taxes 8637 3293 8316
60

Net income loss 40989 19533 6163

Net income loss per common share

Basic 1.47 0.70 0.22

Diluted 1.41 0.68 0.22

Weighted average number of common shares

Basic 27843 28017 27971

Diluted 29008 28789 27971

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements



Balance at July 2008

Issuance of common stock upon

exercise of stock options

Issuance of common stock for

employee stock purchase pian

Issuance of restricted stock net of

forfeitures

Amortization of share based

awards

Repurchase of common stock

Comprehensive income

Net loss

Foreign currency translation

adjustments

Disclosure of reclassification

amounts net of taxes

Unrealized hedging gain

arising during the period

Less reclassification

adjustment for hedging

gahis included in net

income

Net unrealized cash flnw

hedging gain

Total comprehensive loss

income

Balance at June 30 2009 31445

62 667 668

1388 1.390

50

2820 2820

253 1566 1566

6163 6163

6483 6483

22974 22974

13463 13463

9511 9511

6163 3028 3135

$316 $285847 99413 2728$47334 $1464 8336.778

ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Amounts in thousands

Common Stock
Additional

Paid-in Retained
Treasury Stock

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Shares Amount

31157 $312 $280973 $105576 2475$45768 $4492 $336601

Accumulated
Other Total

Comprehensive Shareholders

Income Loss Equity

176

61

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Amounts in thousands

Accumulated

Common Stock Addtioal Treasury Stuck
Other Total

Paid-in Retained Compreheusive Shareholders

Shares Amouut Capital Earnings Shares Amount Income Loss Equity

Balance at July 12009 31445 $316 $285847 99413 2728S47.334 $1464 $336.778

Issuance of common stock upon

exercise of stock options 155 1589 1591

Issnasice of common stock for

employee stock purchase plan 149 1322 1323

Issuance of restricted stock net of

forfeitures 148

Amortization of share based

awards 4771 4771

Repurchase of corrunon stock 905 14969 14.969
Excess tax benefit from share based

awards 3608 3608

Comprehensive income

Net income 19533 19533

Foreign cnrreuey translation

adjustments 397 397

Disclosure of reclassification

amounts net of taxes

Unrealized hedging gain

arising during the period .. 650 650

Less reclassification

II adjnstment for hedging

62 gains included in net

income 271 271

Net unrealized cash flow

hedging gain 379 379

Total comprehensive income

loss 19.533 18 19515

Balance at June 30 2010 31897 $319 $297137 $118946 3.633$62303 81482 $352617

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Amounts in thousands

koeumulateil

Common Stock
Additional

Treasury Stock
Other Total

_______________ Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Shareholders

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Shares Amount Income Loss Equity

Balance at July 2010 31897 $319 $297.13 8118.946 3633$62303 81482 $352617

Issuance nf cnmmon stock upon

exercise of stock options 1354 13 20419 20432

Issnance of common stock for

emploee stock purchase plan.. 107 1.753 1.754

Issuance of restricted stock net of

forfeitures 95

Amortization of share-based

awards 4904 4904

Repnicliase of cuniusun stnck 720 12568 12568
Excess tax benefit from share-based

awards 3.008 3008

Other

Comprehensive income

Net income 40989 40989

Foreign currency translation

adjnstments 8.388 8388

Disclosure of reclassification

amounts net of taxes

Unrealized hedging loss arising

dnring the period 4203 4203
Less reclassification II

adjisstment for hedging 63

losses included in net

income 2.438 2.438

\et unrealized cash flow

hedging loss 1.765 1765

Total comprehensive income 0.989 6.623 t7.612

Balance at June 30 2011 33-i53 $334 $327.226 $159.935 4353$4871 5141 $41.65

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Dollars in thousands

Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009

Operating activities

Net income loss 40989 19533 6163
Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided

by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 29835 28459 26158
Amortization of senior note offering credit facility and

swap termination costs 1330 1459 1437
Amortization of share-based awards 4904 4771 2820
Debt extinguisbment charges 6.468 82

Deferredincometaxes 2119 1996 11515
Change in assets and liabilities net of

acquisitions

Decrease in accounts receivable 8255 20339 22479
Decrease in inventories 27625 48276 88143
Decrease increase in prepaid expenses

and

other assets 13596 12373 32054
Decrease in accounts payable 52637 18931 50811
Increase decrease in other payables and accrued

expenses 14118 25919 3394
Other 1144 1579 114

JJ Net cash provided by operating activities 97746 113959 36986

64 Investing activities

Additions to property
and equipment 25608 35388 26330

Acquisition of intangibles and other assets 13864 333 5333
Net cash used in investing activities 39472 35721 31663

Financing activities

Payments on short-term debt 59000 56000 4000
Proceeds from payments on long-term debt 243996 545 1149
Repurchase of senior subordinated notes 223332 5000
Payments under capital lease obhgations 1927 2009
Repurchase of common stock 13758 13779 1566
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 20432 1591 668

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock under the

employee stock purchase plan 1754 1323 1390

Financing fees paid 2345 863
Excess tax benefit from share-based awards 3734

Net cash used in financing activities 28519 74337 7529
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 2214 122 1088
Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 31969 3779 3294
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 26881 23102 26396

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 58850 26881 23102

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Interest paid during the
year 18333 20499 24584

Income taxes paid during the year 6157 2417 1747

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Flow Information

Additions to property and equipment not included above 1332 2632 6991

Repurchase of common stock not included above 1190

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE General Information and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Business Activity Elizabeth Arden Inc the Company or our is

global prestige beauty products company that sells fragrances skin care and cosmetic products to

retailers in the United States and approximately 100 countries internationally

Commencing July 2010 the Companys operations and management reporting structure were

reorganized into two reportable segments North America and International The portion of the

Companys business operations that previously sold Ehzabeth Arden fragrance cosmetic and skin care

products in prestige department stores in the United States and through the Red Door beauty salons

winch was previously reported as the Companys Other segment was consohdated with the North

America Fragrance segment to create the North America segment Effective Jul 2010 emplo ee

incentive costs were fully allocated to the North America and International segments as apphcable

and
restructuring costs that are not part of an announced plan were recorded in the Companys

reportable segment that rncmTed the costs or in unallocated corporate expenses if related to corporate

operations Prior period amounts related to segment profit measures have been restated for comparison

purposes See Note 18 for discussion of the Companys reportable segments

Basis of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the

Companys wholly-owned domestic and international subsidiaries All significant intercompany

accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of Estimates The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses

during the
reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates Significant estimates

include expected useful lives of brand licenses trademarks other intangible assets and property

plant and equipment allowances for sales returns and markdowns share-based compensation fair

value of long-hved assets allowances for doubtful accounts receivable provisions for inventory

obsolescence and income taxes and valuation reserves Changes in facts and circumstances may
result in revised estimates which are recorded in the period in which they become known

Revenue Recognition Sales are recognized when title and the risk of loss transfers to the

customer the sale price is fixed or determinable and collectibiJity of the resulting receivable is

probable Sales are recorded net of estimated returns markdowns and other allowances winch are

granted to certain of the Companys customers and are subject to the Companys authorization and

approval The provision for sales returns and markdowns represents managements estimate of future

returns and markdowns based on historical and projected experience and considering current external

factors and market conditions During the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 one customer

accounted for an aggregate of 14% 15% and 16% respectively of the Companys net sales

Foreign Currency Translation All assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries and affiliates

that do not utilize the U.S dollar as its functional currency are translated at sear-end rates of

exchange while sales and expenses are translated at weighted average rates of exchange Unrealized

translation gains or losses are reported as foreign currency translation adjustments through other

accumulated comprehensive loss or income included in shareholders equity Such adjustments

resulted in net unreahzed gains of $8.4 million for the year ended June 30 2011 and net unrealized

losses of $0.4 million and $6.5 milhon for the years ended June 30 2010 and 2009 respectively

Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are recorded in the foreign subsidiaries

statements of operations Such net losses totaled $0.9 million $4.0 million $1.8 million in the

years
ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include cash and interest-bearing

deposits at banks with an original maturity date of three months or less

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts Receivable The Company maintains allowances for

doubtful accounts to cover uncollectible accounts receivable and evaluates its accounts receivable to

determine if they will ultimately be collected This evaluation includes significant judgments and

estimates including an analysis of receivables aging and customer-by-customer review for large

accounts If for example the financial condition of the Companys customers deteriorates resulting

in an impairment of their ability to pay additional allowances may be required resulting in

charge to income in the period in which the determination was made

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined using the

weighted average method See Note

Property and Equ4oment and Depreciation Property and equipment are stated at cost

Expenditures for major improvements and additions are recorded to the asset accounts while

replacements maintenance aud repairs which do not improve or extend the lives of the respective

assets are charged to expense Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets

using the straight-line method When fixed assets are sold or otherwise disposed of the accounts are

relieved of the original cost of the assets and the related accumulated depreciation and any resulting

profit or loss is credited or charged to income See Note

Exclusive Brand Licenses Trademarks and Intangibles Exclusive of intangible assets that

have indefinite useful lives and are not being amortized the Companys intangible assets are being

amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives See Note

Indefinite-Lived and Long Lived Assets Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

are not amortized but rather tested for impairment at least annually An annual impairment test is

performed during the Companys fourth fiscal quarter or more frequently if events or changes in

circumstances indicate the carrying value of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets may not

fully be recoverable There is two step process for impairment testing of goodwill The first step

used to identify potential impairment compares the fair value of reporting unit with its carrying

amount including goodwill The second step if necessary measures the amount of the impairment

by comparing the estimated fair value of the goodwill and intangible assets to their respective

carrying values If an impairment is identified the carrying value of the asset is adjusted to

estimated fair value See Note

Long-lived assets are reviewed on an ongoing basis for impairment based on comparison of

the cars-3 ing value of such assets against the undiscounted future cash flows If an impairment is

identified the carrying value of the asset is adjusted to estimated fair value No such adjustments

were recorded for the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Senior Note Offering Costs and Gredit Facility Costs Debt issuance costs and transaction fees

which are associated with the issuance of senior notes and the revolving credit facility are being

amortized and charged to interest expense over the term of the related notes or the term of the

credit facility In any period in which the senior notes are redeemed the unamortized debt issuance

costs and transaction fees relating to the notes being redeemed are expensed In addition

termination costs related to interest rate swaps are amortized to interest expense over the remaining

life of the related notes See Note 10

Cost of Sales Included in cost of sales are the cost of products sold the cost of gift with

purchase items provided to customers royalty costs related to patented technology or formulations
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warehousing distribution and suppi chain costs The major components of warehousing

distribution and supply chain costs include salary and related benefit costs for employees in the

warehousing distribution and supply chain areas and facility related costs in these areas

Selling General and Administrative Costs Included in selling general and administrative

expenses are advertising creative development and promotion costs not paid directly to the

Companys customers royalty costs related to trademarks salary and related benefit costs of the

Companys employees in the finance human resources information technology legal sales and

marketing areas facility related costs of the Companys administrative functions and costs paid to

consultants and third party providers for related services

Advertising and Promotional Costs Advertising and promotional costs paid directly to

customers

for goods and services provided primarily co-op advertising and cenain direct selling

costs are expensed as incurred and are recorded as reduction of sales Advertising and

promotional costs not paid directly to the Companys customers are expensed as incurred and

recorded as component of cost of goods sold in the case of free goods given to customers or

selling general and administrative expenses Advertising and promotional costs totaled

approximately $332.8 milhon $324.1 million and $319.5 milhon during the years ended June 30

2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Advertising and promotional costs include promotions direct

selling co-op advertising and media placement

Income Taxes Thc provision for income taxes is the tax payable or refundable for the period 11111

plus or minus the change during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities and certain other 67

adjustments The Company provides for deferred taxes under the liability method Under such

method deferred taxes are adjusted for tax rate changes as they occur Deferred income tax assets

and liabilities are computed annually for differences between the financial statement and tax bases

of assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the future based on

enact-ed tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect

taxable income valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets if it is more likely
than not

that these items will either expire before the Company is able to realize their benefit or that future

deductibility is uncertain

The Company recognizes in its consolidated financial statements the impact of tax position
if

it is more likely than not that such position will be sustained on audit based on its technical merits

While the Company believes that its assessments of whether its tax positions are more likely than not

to be sustained are reasonable each assessment is subjective and requires the use of significant

judgments As result one or more of such assessments may prove ultimately to be incorrect which

could result in change to net income

Hedge Contracts The Company has designated each foreign currency contract entered into as

of June 30 2011 as cash flow hedge Unreahzed gains or losses net of taxes associated with these

contracts are hicluded in accumulated other comprehensive los income on the consolidated

balance sheet Gains and losses will only be recognized in earnings in the period in which the

forecasted transaction affects earnings
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Other Payables and Accraed Expenses summary of the Companys other payables and

accrued expenses as of Jnne 30 2011 and 2010 is as follows

June 30 June 30
Amounts in thousunus 2011 2010

Accrued employee-related benefits 34379 $23889

Accrued advertising promotion and royalties 33718 26051

Accrued interest 8528 6517

Other accruals 40921 39972

Total other payables and accrued
expenses $117546 $96429

Accamulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss/Comprehensive Income Loss Accumulated

other comprehensive income loss includes in addition to net income or net loss unrealized gains

and losses excluded from the consolidated statements of operations and recorded directly into

separate
section of shareholders equity on the consolidated balance sheet These unrealized gains

and losses are referred to as other comprehensive income loss items The Companys accumulated

other comprehensive income loss shown on the consolidated balance sheet at June 30 2011 and

June 30 2010 consists of foreign currency translation adjustments which are not adjusted for

income taxes since they relate to indefinite investments in non-U.S subsidiaries and the unrealized

gains losses net of taxes related to the Companys foreign currency contracts respectively

III The components of accumulated other comprehensive income loss as of June 30 2011 2010

68 and 2009 were as follows

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousonos 2011 2010 2009

Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments 6548 $1839 $1442
Unrealized hedging loss gain net of taxes 1407 357 22
Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 5141 $1482 $1464

The Companys comprehensive income loss consists of net income loss foreign currency

translation adjustments which are not adjusted for income taxes since they relate to indefinite

investments in non-U.S subsidiaries and the unrealized losses gains net of taxes related to the

Companys foreign currency contracts

The components of comprehensive income loss for the
years

ended June 30 2011 2010 and

2009 were as follows

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousunds 2011 2010 2009

Net income loss $40989 $19533 $6163
Foreign currency translation adjustments 8388 397 6483
Unrealized hedging loss gain net of taxes 1765 379 9511

Total comprehensive income loss $47612 $19515 $3135

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The Companys financial instruments include accounts

receivable accounts payable currency forward contracts short-term debt and long term debt See

Note 10 for the fair value of the Companys senior notes The fair value of all other financial

instruments was not materially different than their carrying value as of June 30 2011 and June 30
2010 SeeNote 15
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Share-Based Compensation All share-based payments to employees including
the

grants of

employee stock options are recognized in the consolidated financial statements based on their fair

values but only to the extent that
vesting is considered probable Compensation cost for awards tliat

vest will not be reversed if the awards
expire

without being exercised The fair value of stock options

is determined
nsing

the Black-Scholes
option-pricing

model The fair value of market-based

restricted stock awards is determined
using

Monte Carlo simulation model and the fair value of all

other restricted stock awards is based on the closing price
of the Companys common stock $01 par

value Common Stock on the date of grant Compensation costs for awards are amortized using

the straight-line method Option pricing
model

input assumptions such as expected term expected

volatility and risk-free interest rate impact the fair value estimate Further the forfeiture rate

impacts the amount of
aggregate compensation These assumptions are subjective and generally

require significant analysis and judgment to develop When
estimating fair value some of the

assumptions are based on or determined from external data and other assumptions may be derived

from the Companys historical experience
with share- based arrangements The appropriate weight

to place on historical
experience is matter of judgment based on relevant facts and circumstances

The Company relies on its historical experience
and

post-vested termination activity to provide

data for
estimating expected term for use in determining the fair value of its stock options The

Company currently estimates its stock volatility by considering historical stock volatility experience

and other key factors The risk-free interest rate is the implied yield currently available on U.S

Treasury zero-coupon issues with remaining term equal to the expected term used as the input to ii

the BlacL-Scholes model The Company estimates forfeitures using its historical experience which jj

will be adjusted over the requisite service period based on the extent to which actual forfeitures 69

differ or are expected to differ from such estimates Because of the significant amount of judgment

used in these calculations it is reasonably likely that circumstances may cause the estimate to

change If for example actual forfeitures are lower than the Companys estimate additional charges

to net income may be required

Out-Of-Period Adjustments During the year ended June 30 2010 the Company recorded

out-of-period adjustments which related to fiscal years 2001 to 2009 Net sales and gross profit for

fiscal
year

2010 decreased by $2.7 million and $0.9 million respectively The Company did not

adjust the
prior periods as it concluded that such adjustments were not material to the current or

prior periods consolidated financial statements
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NOTE Net Income Loss Per Share

Basic net income loss per share is computed by dividing the net income loss by the weighted

average
shares of the Companys outstanding Common Stock The calculation of net income loss

per
diluted share is similar to basic income loss per share except that the denominator includes

potentially dilutive Common Stock such as stock
options

and non-vested restricted stock For the

year
ended June 30 2009 diluted loss

per
share equaled basic loss per share as the assumed

exercise of
outstanding options non-vested restricted stock and the assumed purchases under the

employee stock purchase plan would have an anti-dilutive effect The following table represents the

computation of net income loss per share

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousoods except per shnre dntn 2011 2010 2009

Basic

Net income loss $40989 $19533 6163

Weighted average shares outstanding 27843 28017 27971

Net income loss per basic share 1.47 0.70 0.22

Diluted

Net income loss $40989 $19533 6163

Weighted average basic shares outstanding 27843 28017 27971
11

Potential common shares treasury method 11 oS 772

Weighted average shares and potential diluted shares 29008 28789 27971

Net income loss per diluted share 1.41 0.68 0.22

The following table shows the number of shares of Common Stock subject to options
and

restricted stock awards that were outstanding for the
years

ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

which were not included in the net income
per

diluted share calculation because to do so would have

been anti-dilutive

Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009

Number of shares 30.000 1821594 3310627a

Includes 486265 options to purchase shares that were excluded as the Company was in loss

position and including them would have been anti-dilutive

NOTE Restructuring Charges

In fiscal 2007 the Company commenced comprehensive review of its global business

processes to re-engineer its extended supply chain distribution logistics and transaction processing

f1z
systems In May 2008 the Company announced decision to accelerate the re engineering of its

extended supply chain distribution and logistics functions as well as the realignment of other parts

of its organization to better support its new business processes This initiative also included

migration to shared services model to simplify transaction processing by consolidating the

Companys primary global transaction processing functions and the implementation of new

financial accounting and order processing system The Company refers to this initiative as the

Global Efficiency Re-engineering initiative or sometimes simply as the Initiative As result the

Company implemented restructuring plan that resulted in restructuring and one-time expenses

including severance relocation recruiting and temporary staffing expenditures
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From inception through June 30 2011 the Company incurred
restructuring

and one-time

expenses relating to the Initiative totaling approximately $14.0 ruillion before taxes includmg $0.O

million incurred during the
year

ended June 30 2011 The
restructuring expenses under the

Initiative were incurred as follows

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousands 2011 2010 2009 2008

Restructuring expenses
under the Initiative $335 $1878 $3544 $673

The total
expenses relating to the Initiative of $14.0 million from inception are composed of

$7.6 million related to the Companys Oracle system implementation and $6.4 million for Initiative

related
restructuring The Company does not expect to incur any additional expenses related to

the Initiative and the total amount incurred from inception of $14.0 million is consistent with its

original projection of $12.0 nitillion to $14.0 million

Unrelated to the Initiative for the
years

ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company
incurred approximately $0.8 million $1.5 million and $1.1 million respectively of other

restructuring expenses

Aggregate amounts paid during the year ended June 30 2011 for restructuring were $1.5

million All of the restructuring expenses discussed above are included in selling general and

administrative expenses in the Companys consolidated statements of operations and as described in

Note 18 amounts related to the Initiative have not been attributed to any of the Companys 71

reportable segments and are included in unallocated corporate expenses Restructuring amounts

unrelated to the Initiative are recorded in either the Companys reportable segments or in

unallocated
corporate expenses if related to corporate operations At June 30 2011 and 2010 the

Company had restructuring liability of $0.2 million and $0.6 million respectively

NOTE New Accounting Standards

Fair Value Measurements

In May 2u 11 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB and International

Accounting Standards Board IASB issued new guidance on fair value measurement and

disclosure requirements This update will supersede most of the guidance in Codification Topic 820
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures although many of the changes are clarifications of

Codification Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures although many of the changes

are clarifications of
existing guidance or wording changes to align with International Financial

Reporting Standards The update does not extend the use of fair value accounting but does provide

guidance on how it should be applied where it is already required or permitted under current U.S

GAAP The changes to Codification Topic 820 will be effective for the Company beginning

January 2012 and will not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements or disclosures

Comprehensive Income

In June 2011 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU No 2011-05

Comprehensive Income Topic 220 Presentation of Comprehensive Income This update is intended

to increase the prominence of other comprehensive income in financial statements This update will

supersede some of the guidance in Codification Topic 220 and in particular requires companies to

present comprehensive income in either one or two consecutive financial statements The option

under current accounting standards that permits the presentation of other comprehensive income in
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the statement of changes in equity has been eliminated The amendments in this update should be

applied retrospectively The changes to Codification Topic 220 will be effective for the Company

beginning July 2012 and although this update does not have material impact on the Companys
consolidated financial statements it will require changing the Companys presentation and

disclosure of comprehensive income

NOTE Accounts Receivable Net

The following table details the provisions and allowances established for potential losses from

uncollectible accounts receivable and estimated sales returns in the ordinary course of business

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousonds 2011 2010 2009

Allowance for Bad Debt

Beginning balance 6127 5340 4502
Provision 2303 3258 2936

Write-offs net of recoveries 1469 2471 2098

Ending balance 6961 6127 5340

Allowance for Sales Returns

Beginning balance 19568 $12246 $11574

jj
Provision1 57398 65582 59774

72
Actual returns 60865 58260 59102

Ending balance 16101 $19568 $12246

The increase in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009 was primarily due to certain product

discontinuations in certain North America prestige department stores and specialty beauty

stores that had return rights

NOTE Inventories

The components of inventory were as follows

June 30

Amounts in thousonds 2011 2010

Raw and packaging materials 55614 58144
Work in progress 21996 30004
Finished goods 168904 182.910

Totals $246514 $271058
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NOTE Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is comprised of the following

June30
_______________________ Estimated

nzoants in thousands 2011 2010 Life

Land 64 64

Building and building improvements 1091 953 40

Leasehold improvements 17921 11835 10

Machinery eqnipment furniture and fixtnres and vehicles 16975 13922 14

Computer eqnipment and software 57945 53770 10

Counters and trade fixtures 74855 62720
Tools and molds 23526 20315

192377 163579
Less accumulated depreciation 115733 94979

76644 68600

Projects inprogress 6118 7983

Property and equipment net 82762 76583

Total depreciation expense including depreciation recorded in cost of goods sold for the years

ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 was $20.9 milhon $18.9 milhon and $16.4 million

iespeetively At June 30 2011 the Company did not have any property and equipment under ii

capital leases 73

NOTE Exclusive Brand Licenses Trademarks and Intangibles Net and Goodwill

The following summarizes the cost basis amortization and weighted average estimated life

associated with the Companys intangible assets

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
June 30 Estimated June 30 Estimated

Amounts in thousands 2011 Life 2010 Life

Ehzabeth Arden brand trademarks $122415 Indefinite $122415 Indefinite

Exclusive brand licenses and related

trademarks1 86755 17 34703 18

Exclusive brand trademarks and patents2 55832 14 43535 11

Other intangibles3 20330 17 20330 17

Exclusive brand licenses trademarks and

intangibles gross 285332 271073
Accumulated amortization

Exclusive brand licenses and related

trademarks 51006 45595
Exclusive brand trademarks and patents 41.121 38768
Other intangibles 8447 7266

Exclusive brand licenses trademarks and

intangibles net $184758 $179444

Increase from June 30 2010 primarily due to license agreement with John Varvatos Apparel

Corp
Increase from June 30 2010 primarily due to acquisition of the Prevage trademarks and related

patents

Primarily consists of customer relationships customer lists and non-compete agreements
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At June 30 2011 the Company had goodwill of $21.1 million recorded on its consohdated

balance sheet The entire amount of the
goodwill in all

periods presented relates to the North

America segment The amount of
goodwill

recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at June 30
2011 did not change from the

prior year
end balance as the Company did not record any additions

or impairments during fiscal 2011

The Company has determined that the Elizabeth Arden trademarks have indefinite useful lives

as cash flows from the use of the trademarks are expected to be generated indefinitely Goodwill and

intangible assets with indefinite lives such as the Companys Elizabeth Arden trademarks are not

amortized but rather tested for impairment at least annually An annual impairment test is

performed during the fourth quarter of the Companys fiscal
year or more frequently if events or

changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles

may not fully be recoverable There is two step process for impairment testing of goodwill The

first step of this test used to identify potential impairment compares the fair value of reporting

unit with its carrying amount including goodwill The second step if necessary measures the

amount of the impairment by comparing the estimated fair value of the goodwill and intangible

assets to their respective carrying values If an impairment is identified the carrying value of the

asset is adjusted to estimated fair value

During the
quarter

ended June 30 2011 the Company completed its annual impairment testing

of the Elizabeth Arden trademarks with the assistance of third
party

valuation firm During the

jj quarter
ended June 30 2011 the Company also completed its annual impairment testing

of

74 goodwill In
assessing

the fair value of these assets the Company considered the income approach

for the Elizabeth Arden trademarks and market approach Under the income approach the fair

value is based on the
present

value of estimated future cash flows Under the market approach the

fair value is based on quoted market prices and the number of shares outstanding of the Companys
Common Stock The analysis and assessments of these assets and goodwill indicated that no

impairment adjustment was required as the estimated fair value exceeded the recorded
carrying

value Similarly no such adjustments for impairment of intangible assets and goodwill were

recorded for the fiscal
years

ended June 30 2010 and 2009

Due to the ongoing uncertainty in capital market conditions the Company will continue to

monitor and evaluate the expected future cash flows of its reporting units and the long term trends

of its market capitalization for the purposes of assessing the carrying value of its goodwill and

indefinite lived Elizabeth Arden trademarks other trademarks and intangible assets

Amortization expense for the
years

ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 was $8.9 milhon

$9.6 million and $9.8 million respectively At June 30 2011 the Company estimated annual

amortization expense for each of the next five fiscal
years as shown in the following table Future

acquisitions renewals or impairment events could cause these amounts to change

Atnonnis in millions 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Amortization expense $7.9 $7.0 $6.1 $5.5 $5.2

NOTE Short-Term Debt

The Company has revolving bank credit facility the Credit Facility with syndicate of

banks for which JPMorgan Chase Bank is the administrative agent which generally provides for

borrowings on revolving basis In January 2011 the Credit Facility was amended to among other

things reduce its size from $325 million to $300 milhon with sub-limit of $25 million for

letters of credit ii revise the interest rate and unused commitment fee applicable under the Credit
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Facility and iii extend its maturity from December 2012 to January 2016 Under the terms of the

Credit Facility the Company may at any time increase the size of the Credit Facihty up to $375

million without entering into formal amendment requiring the consent of all of the banks subject

to the Companys satisfaction of certain conditions

The credit facilit is guaranteed by all of the Companys U.S subsidiaries and is collateralized

by first priority lien on all of the Companys U.S accounts receivable and inventory Borrowings

under the Credit Facility are limited to 85% of eligible accounts receivable and 85% of the

appraised net liquidation value of the Companys inventory as determined pursuant to the terms of

the Credit Faciht3 provided however that from August 15 to October 31 of each
year the

Companys borrowing base ma be temporarily increased by up to $25 million

The Credit Facility has only one financial maintenance covenant which is debt service

coverage ratio that must be maintained at not less than 1.1 to if average borrowing base capacity

dechnes to less than $25 million $35 million from September through Januar3 31 The

Companys average borrowing base capacity for each of the quarters during fiscal 2011 did not fall

below the applicable thresholds noted above Accordingly the debt service coverage ratio did not

apply during the year ended June 30 2011

Under the terms of the Credit Facihty the Company may pay dividends or repurchase Common

Stock if it maintains borrowing base capacity of at least $25 million from February to August 31
and at least $35 milhon from September tii January 31 after making the apphcable payment The

jj

Credit Facility restricts the Company from incurring additional non trade indebtedness other than
75

refinancings and certain small amounts of indebtedness

Borrowings under the credit
portion of the Credit

Facility bear interest at floating rate based

on an Applicable Margin which is determined by reference to debt service coverage ratio At the

Companys option the Applicable Margin may be
applied to either the London InterBank Offered

Rate LIBOR or the base rate The Applicable Margin charged on LIBOR loans
ranges

from

1.75% to 2.50% and
ranges

from 0.25% to 1.0% for base rate loans except
that the Applicable

Margin on the first $25 million of borrowings from August 15 to October 31 of each year while the

temporary increase in the Companys borrowing base is in effect is 1.0% higher The Company is

required to pay an unused commitment fee ranging from 0.375% to 0.50% based on the quarterly

average unused
portion

of the Credit Facility

Prior to the January 2011 amendment of the Credit Facility the Applicable Margin charged on

LIBOR loans ranged from 1.0% to 1.75% and was 0% for prime rate loans except that the

Applicable Margin on the first $25.0 million of borrowings from August 15 to October 15 while the

temporary increase in the Companys borrowing base was in effect was 1.0% higher The

commitment fee on the unused portion of the Credit Facility was 0.50%

At June 30 2011 the Applicable Margin was 2.0% for LIBOR loans and 0.5% for prime rate

loans For both the fiscal years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 the weighted average annual interest

rate on borrowings under the Credit Facihty was 2.2%

At June 30 2011 the Company had no outstanding borrowings and approximately $5.6 milhon

in letters of credit outstanding under the Credit Facility compared with 59.0 million in

outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility at June 30 2010 As of June 30 2011 the

Company had approximately $128.2 million of eligible accounts receivable and inventories ax ailable

as collateral under the Credit Facility and remaining borrowing availability of $127.9 million The

Company classifies the Credit Facility as short-term debt on its balance sheet because it expects to

reduce outstanding borrowings over the next twelve months
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In connection with the amendment of the Credit Facility the Company recorded $0.1 million

debt extinguishment charge in the third quarter
of fiscal 2011 In addition the Company incurred

and capitalized approximately $2.3 million of bank related costs in connection with the amendment

of the Credit Facility Such amounts are reflected in debt financing costs net on the consolidated

balance sheet

NOTE 10 Long-Term Debt

The Companys long-term debt consisted of the following

June 30 June 30
4nwunes in thousands 2011 2010

7% Senior Notes due March 2021 $250000

7.3/4% Senior Subordinated Notes due Jannary 2014 220000

Termination costs on interest rate swap net 1301
Total long-term debt $25ft000 $218699

On January 21 2011 the Company issued $250 million aggregate principal amount of 73/3%

Senior Notes due March 2021 the 7% Senior Notes Interest on the 73/3% Senior Notes

accrues at rate of 7.375%
per annum and will be payable semi-annually on March 15 and

September 15 of every year commencing on September 15 2011 The 73/3% Senior Notes rank pan

76
passu in right of payment to indebtedness under the Credit Facility and any other senior debt and

will rank senior to an future subordinated indebtedness provided however that the 3/g% Senior

Notes are effectively subordinated to the Credit Facility to the extent of the collateral securing the

Credit Facility The indenture applicable to the 73/3% Senior Notes generally permits the Company

subject to the satisfaction of fixed charge coverage ratio and in certain cases also net income

test to incur additional indebtedness pay dividends purchase or redeem its Common Stock or

redeem subordinated indebtedness The indenture generally limits the Companys ability to create

liens merge or transfer or sell assets The indenture also provides that the holders of the 73/3%

Senior Notes have the option to require the Company to repurchase their notes in the event of

change of control involving the Company as defined in the indenture The 73/3% Senior Notes

initially will not be guaranteed by any of the Companys subsidiaries but could become guaranteed

in the future by any domestic subsidiary of the Company that guarantees or incurs certain

indebtedness in excess of $10 million

Concurrentl with the offering of the 73/3% Senior Notes the Company commenced cash

tender offer and consent solicitation for any and all of its $220 million of outstanding 73/4% Senior

Subordinated Notes due January 2014 the 73/4% Senior Subordinated Notes On January 21

2011 the Company purchased approximately $196.0 million of 7% Senior Subordinated Notes

that were tendered on or before the January 20 2011 consent date for approximately $205.5

million including the tender offer premium and accrued interest On January 21 2011 the

Company issued redemptiun nutice under the applicable indenture to redeem all of the 73/4%

Senior Subordinated Notes that remained outstanding after the tender office expired on February

2011 On February 22 2011 the Company redeemed approximately $24.0 million of 73/4% Senior

Subordinated Notes at an aggregate price
of $24.4 million including accrued interest

The proceeds from the issuance of the 73/8% Senior Notes were used to fund the purchase or

redemption of the 73/4% Senior Subordinated Notes as well as the fees and expenses related to the

offering of the 7/8% Senior Notes the tender offer and the amended Credit Facility and to reduce

borrowings under the Credit Facility In connection with the purchase and redemption of the 73/4%

Senior Subordinated Notes the Company recorded $6.4 million debt extinguishment charge in the
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third quarter of fiscal 2011 The debt extinguishment charge consisted of $3.3 million in

redemption premiums previously recorded in debt financing costs on the consolidated balance sheet

ii $1.8 million in unamortized costs previously recorded in debt financing costs on the

consolidated balance sheet iii $1.1 million in unamortized swap termination costs previously

recorded in long-term debt on the consohdated balance sheet and iv $0.2 million of other costs In

addition as part of the offering of the 7/8% Semor Notes the Company incurred and capitalized

approximately $6.0 million of related costs in debt financing costs net on the consolidated balance

sheet which will be amortized over the life of the 7/8% Senior Notes

At June 30 2011 and 2010 the estimated fair value of the Companys 73/% Senior Notes and

73/4% Senior Subordinated Notes
using

available market information and interest rates was as

follows

June 30 June 30

Amounts in thousands 2011 2010

73/g% Senior Notes due March 2021 $260.625

73/4% Senior Subordinated Notes due January 2014 $216150

The Company determined the estimated fair value amounts by using
available market

information and commonly accepted valuation methodologies However considerable judgment is

required in
interpreting

market data to develop estimates of fair value primarily due to the illiquid

nature of the capital markets in which the 7Wa% Senior Notes are traded and the 7W4% Senior
jj

Subordinated Notes were traded Accordingly the fair value estimates presented herein are not

necessarily indicative of the amount that the Company or the debt holders could realize in current

market exchange The use of different assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have

material effect on the estimated fair value

The scheduled maturities and redemptions of long-term debt at June 30 2011 were as follows

Amounts in thousands

Year Ended June 30 Amount

2012 through 2020

2021 250000

After 2021

Total $250000

NOTE 11 Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has lease agreements for all of the real
property

it uses and owns small

manufacturing facility in South Africa The Companys leased office facilities are located in

Miramar Florida Stamford Connecticut Bentonville Arkansas Minneapolis Minnesota and New

York New York in the United States and in Austraha Canada China Denmark France Italy New

Zealand Puerto Rico Singapore South Africa South Korea Spain Switzerland Taiwan and the

United Kingdom As of June 30 2011 the Company also has operating leases but does not have

any capital lease arrangements The Company has leased distribution facilities in Roanoke Virginia

and Puerto Rico and leased warehouse facility in Salem Virginia The Companys rent expense

for operating leases for the
years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 was $20.6 million $20.2

million and $20.7 million respectively

The Company also leases distribution equipment office and computer equipment and vehicles

The Company reviews all of its leases to determine whether they qualify as operating or capital



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

leases Leasehold improvements are capitalized and amortized over the lesser of the useful life of the

asset or current lease term The Company accounts for free rent periods and scheduled rent increases

on straight line basis over the lease term Landilord allowances and incentives are recorded as

deferred rent and are amortized as reduction to rent expense over the lease term

The Companys aggregate
minimum lease payments under its operating leases and other long

term liabilities other than long-term debt at June 30 2011 were as follows

Other

Operating Long-term

Amounts in thousoncl Leases Obligations1 Total

2012 $17165 $17165

2013 13030 1993 15023

2014 10790 1993 12783

2015 9.406 9406

2016 8145 8145

and thereafter 14378 14378

Total $72914 $3986 $76900

Excludes $3.4 million of
gross unrecognized tax benefits that if not reahzed would result in

cash payments We cannot currently estimate when or if the payments will be due

II

78
The Company is party to number of legal actions proceedings claims and disputes arising

in the ordinary course of business including those with current and former customers over amounts

owed While any action proceeding or claim contaius an element of uncertainty and may materially

affect the Companys cash flows and results of operations in particular quarter or year based on

current facts and circumstances the Companys management believes that the outcome of such

actions proceedings claims and disputes will not have material adverse effect on the Companys

business prospects results of operations financial condition or cash flows

NOTE 12 Income Taxes

Income loss before income taxes consisted of the following for the fiscal
years

ended June 30

2011 2010 and 2009

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in
t/mommsnmmds 2011 2010 2009

Domestic 5887 222 $26621
Foreign 43739 22604 12142

Total income loss before income taxes $49626 $22826 $14479
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The components of the provision for benefit from income taxes for the fiscal years ended

June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 are as follows

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousonds 2011 2010 2009

Current income taxes

Federal 493 302 783
State 557 371 205

Foreign 6454 4616 3777

Total current provision 6518 5289 3199

Deferred income taxes

Federal 2200 797 9121
State 1025 572 1498
Foreign 1106 1771 896

Total deferred provision benefit 2119 1996 11515

Total 8637 3293 8316

The total income tax provision benefit differs from the amount obtained by applying the

statutory federal income tax rate to income before income taxes as follows

II
Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009

Amounts in thousnnds except percentnges Amonnt Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Income tax provision benefit at statutory

rates $17369 35.0% 7989 35.0% $5068 35.0%

State taxes net of federal benefits 714 1.5 404 1.8 1.124 7.8

Tax on foreign earnings at different rates

fromstatutoryrates 8664 17.5 4540 19.9 1913 13.2

Research and development and foreign tax

credits 1.291 2.6 616 2.7 698 4.8

Chauge

in U.S and foreign valuation

allowance 292 0.6 525 2.3 544 3.8
Other 801 1.6 581 2.5 57 0.4

Total 8637 17.4% 3293 14.4% $8316 57.4%
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the
carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax

purposes plus operating loss carr fon ards The tax effects of significant items comprising the

Companys net deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows

As of June 30

Amounts in thousands 2011 2010

Deferred tax assets

Accrued
expenses 17734 14363

Stock-based compensation 7248 7857
Net

operating
loss carryforwards 25460 20297

Inventory 6546 7742
Research and development tax incentives foreign tax credits

alternative minimnm tax and other tax credits 9382 8437
Other 5426 3718

Gross deferred tax assets 71796 62414

Accounts receivable 502 673
Property plant and equipment 6.504 319
Intangible assets 33635 30976
Other 3636 4163

ii Gross deferred tax liabilities .277 3o131
80 Valuation allowances 315 766

Total net deferred tax assets 27204 25517

The following table
represents

the classification of the Companys net deferred tax assets and

liabilities

As of June 30

Amounts in thousands 2011 2010

Current net deferred tax assets $34291 $30296

Non-current net deferred tax liabilities 7087 4779
Total net deferred tax assets $27204 $25517

At June 30 2011 the Companys consolidated balance sheet includes
gross

deferred tax assets

of $25.5 jnilhon from net operating losses comprised of $19.0 milhon and $5.7 million of U.S

federal and state net operating losses respectively and $0.8 million of foreign net operating losses

The need for valuation allowance against domestic deferred tax assets was considered The

Company is in domestic cumulative taxable loss position for the three-year period ended June 30

2011 which is considered significant evidence indicating that the Company may not be able to

realize some portion or all of these deferred taxes in the future However the Company believes

based on the weight of all available evidence that it is more likely than not that it will generate

sufficient domestic taxable income to realize the domestic net operating loss carryforwards before

they expire This conclusion considers available evidence both positive and negative including the

Companys past operating results and forecast of future taxable income In determining future

taxable income assumptions utilized include the anticipated amount of pre-tax domestic operating

income and enacted tax rates The Company concluded that the positive evidence supporting the

realizabilit of the domestic deferred tax assets was sufficient without having to assume the use of

potentially available feasible and prudent tax planning strategies The assumptions utilized in
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forecasting pre-tax income are based on historical data and expected business cycles The domestic

losses were generated in fiscal
years

2008 and 2009 and were mainly attributable to expenses

associated with the Liz Claiborne license agreement and charges related to the Initiative and are not

considered to be reflective of the core historical earnings of the business In fiscal 2009 the retail

and consumer markets were severely impacted by one of the worst holiday seasons in recent history

The markets have begun to recover and the Company believes this positive recovery trend will

continue and that it will generate pre-tax profits as markets improve For the ear ended June 30
2011 domestic

pre
tax book income was $5.9 milhon including debt extinguishment costs of $6.5

million Additionally the Company has strong domestic earnings history including domestic

pre-tax book income in fiscal
years 2005 2006 2007 and 2010 of $28.8 million $18.5 milhon

$7.6 million and $0.2 milhon respectively These earnings were based on consistent business

model of selling fragrances and cosmetics with strung brand recognition The Company also

anticipates that improved pre-tax operating income will continue to result from improved gross

margins due to the Initiative

At June 30 2011 the Company had federal operating loss carrforwards of $61.0 milhon

that will begin to expire on June 30 2024 The Company had state and local net operating loss

carryforwards of $87.4 million that will expire as follows approximately $0.2 million at June 30

2013 $9.5 million during the period from 2014 to 2017 and $77.7 million in 2018 and thereafier

An equivalent amount of federal and state taxable income would need to be generated in order to

fully realize the federal and state net deferred tax assets before their expiration In contrast to

the U.S Internal Revenue Code many U.S states do not allow the carryback of net operating loss

in any significant amount or have suspended the utilization of net operating losses for specific 81

period of time As result in these states the Companys net operating loss carrvforwards are

significantly higher than the federal net operating loss carryforward To the extent that the

Company does not generate sufficient state taxable income within the statutory carryforward periods

to utilize the loss carryforwards in these states the loss carr forwards will expire unused The state

and local net operating loss carryforwards have an effective tax rate of approximately 4.7% The

Company believes that based on its projections of future taxable income in its domestic

jurisdictions it will reahze these net operating losses before they expire

At June 30 2011 the Company had foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately

$4.6 million that begin to expire in fiscal year 2012 The Companys abihty to use foreign net

operating loss carryforwards is dependent on generating sufficient future taxable income prior to

their expiration As result an equivalent amount of foreign taxable income would need to be

generated in order to fully realize the foreign net operating loss carryforwards However due to the

Companys limited operating history in certain foreign jurisdictions and the uncertainty of achieving

sufficient profits to utilize foreign net operating loss carryforwards in these jurisdictions and the

near-term expiration of certain foreign net operating loss carryforwards as of June 30 2011 the

Company has recorded valuation allowance of approximately $0.3 million related to these foreign

net operating loss earryforwards

In evaluating the need for valuation allowance the Company estimates futuie taxable income

based on management approved forecasts This process requires significant judgment by

management about matters that are by nature uncertain If future events differ significantly
from

the Companys current forecasts valuation allowance may need to be established which could

have material adverse effect on its results of operations and financial condition The Company will

continue to monitor and update its assumptions and forecasts of future taxable income amid assess

the need for valuation allowance

In June 2011 the Company repatriated $1.5 million of undistrihuted international earnings
from

one of its foreign subsidiaries As result the Company recorded net provision of $0.1 million for



ELIZABETH ARDEN INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

estimated deferred taxes during the year ended June 30 2011 Taxes were not established on the

balance of approximately $213 million of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries since these

earnings are deemed to be permanently reinvested If in the future these earnings are repatriated to the

United States or if the Company detennines such earnings will be remitted in the foreseeable future

additional tax provisions may be required Due to complexities in the tax laws and the assumptions

that would have to be made it is not practicable to estimate the amounts of income tax provisions that

may be required

Deferred tax assets relating to tax benefits of employee stock option awards have been reduced

to reflect stock option exercises during the year ended June 30 2011 Some exercises resulted in tax

deductions in excess of previonsly recorded benefit based on the option value at the time of
grant

windfalls lthough the additional tax benefit for the windfalls is reflected in net operating loss

carryforwards the additional tax benefit associated with the windfalls is not recognized for financial

statement purposes until the deduction reduces taxes payable Accordingly windfall
gross tax

benefits of $1.6 million are not reflected in deferred tax assets The deferred tax assets will be

recognized with an offset to additional paid-in capital as the windfall reduces current taxes payable

At June 30 2011 the total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits was $4.8 milhon These

unrecognized tax benefits could favorably affect the effective tax rate in future period if and to the

extent recognized The Company does not expect changes in the amount of unrecognized tax benefits

to have significant impact on its results of
operations over the next 12 months

II

82 reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits as of

June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 was as follows

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousands 2011 2010 2009

Beginning balance $5817 $6725 $6033

Additions based on tax positions related to the current

year 92 106 1348

Additions for tax positions of prior years
27 284

Reductions for tax positions of prior years 138
Reductions due to closure of foreign tax audits 932
Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute of

hmitations 994 989

Gross balance 4866 5837 6676

Interest and penalties 29 20 49

Ending balance $4837 $5817 $6725

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries file income tax returns with federal state and local

tax authorities within tile United States The Company also files tax returns for its international

affiliates in various foreign jurisdictions The statute of limitations for the Companys U.S federal

tax return years remains open for the
year

ended June 30 2008 and subsequent fiscal years The

Internal Revenue Service began an examination of the Companys U.S federal tax returns for the

years ended June 30 2008 and June 30 2009 during the current fiscal year The
year

ended

June 30 2004 and subsequent fiscal years remain subject to examination for various state tax

jurisdictions In addition the Company has subsidiaries in various foreign jurisdictions that have

statutes of linuitations generall ranging from one to five ears The
year

ended June 30 2005 and

subsequent fiscal
years remain subject to examination for various foreign jurisdictions
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The Company recognizes interest accrned related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest

expense and related
penalties in the provision for income taxes in the consolidated statement of

operations which is consistent with the recognition of these items in prior reporting periods

NOTE 13 Repurehases of Common Stock

On November 2010 the Companys board of directors authorized the repurchase of an

additional $40 million of Common Stock under the terms of an existing $80 million common stock

repurchase program and extended the term of the stock repurchase program from November 30

2010 to November 30 2012 As of June 30 2011 the Company had repurchased 4029201 shares

of Common Stock on the open market under the stock repurchase program at an average price of

$16.63 per share and at cost of approximately $67.0 million including sales commissions leaving

approximately $53.0 million available for additional repurchases under the program For the
year

ended June 30 2011 the Company had repurchased 598703 shares of Common Stock on the open

market under the share repurchase program and at an average price of $15.27 per share and at

cost of $9.2 millionincluding sales commissions

During the first
quarter of fiscal 2011 the Company paid approximately $1.2 million for the

settlement of shares of Common Stock that were repurchased at the end of fiscal 2010 under the

above discussed repurchased program

In connection with the vesting
of 343800 shares of outstanding market-based restricted stnck

lull

granted in 2005 in March 2011 the Company withheld 121908 shares of Common Stock at fair 83

market value of $28.08 per share representing cost of approximately $3.4 million to satisfy

minimum statutory tax withholding obligations resulting from such vesting The acquisition of these

shares by the Company was accounted for under the
treasury

method

NOTE 14 Stock Plans

At June 30 2011 the Company had three active stock incentive plans one for the benefit of

non-employee directors of the Companys Board of Directors the Board the 2004 Non-employee

Director Stock Option Plan the 2004 Director Plan and two for the benefit of eligible employees

and independent contractors the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan and the 2010 Stock Award and

Incentive Plan In addition as of June 30 2011 stock options and restricted stock granted under

the Companys 1995 Stock Option Plan 1995 Non Employee Director Plan and/or the 2000 Stock

Incentive Plan were still outstanding The 1995 Stock Option Plan and the 2000 Stock Incentive

Plan have expired by their terms and no further awards will be granted under the 1995 Stock

Option Plan or the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan The 2004 Director Plan replaced the 1995

Non-Employee Director Plan and no further
grants

of stock options will occur under the 1995

Non-Employee Director Plan All six plans were adopted by the Board and approved by the

Companys shareholders

The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan the 2004 Incentive Plan authorizes the Company to grant

awards with respect to total of 2700000 shares of Common Stock The stock options awarded

under the 2004 Incentive Plan are exercisable at any time or in any installments as determined by

the compensation committee of the Board at the time of
grant

and may be either incentive or

non qualified stock options under the Internal Revenue Code as determined by the compensation

committee The exercise price for stock option grants is equal to the closing price
of the Common

Stock on the date of grant At June 30 2011 25335 shares of Common Stock remained available

for grant under the 2004 Incentive Plan
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The 2004 Director Plan authorizes the Company to
grant non-qualified stock options for up to

350000 shares of Common Stock to non-employee directors of the Company Each
year on the date

of the annual meeting of the shareholders and provided that sufficient number of shares remain

available under the 2004 Director Plan there will automatically be granted to each eligible director

an option to purchase shares of Common Stock in such amount as the Board determines based on

competitive review of comparable companies For the upcoming 2011 annual shareholders meeting

the award amount approved under the 2004 Director Plan is an option to purchase shares of

Connnon Stock having an aggregate grant date fair market value of $60.000 Each option granted

under the 2004 Director Plan on an annual shareholders meeting date will become exercisable three

years from the date of
grant

if such person has continued to serve as director until that date unless

exercisabiity of the option is accelerated due to death disability or retirement in good standing at or

after age 70 No option may be exercisable after the expiration of ten years
from the date of grant

The exercise price will equal the closing price of the Common Stock on the date of grant At June 30
2011 127400 shares of Common Stock remained available for grant under the 2004 Director Plan

The 2010 Stock Award and Incentive Plan the 2010 Plan authorizes the Company to grant

awards with respect to total of 1100000 shares of Common Stock of which maximum of

550000 shares may be awarded as full value awards full value award is any award other than

stock option or stock appreciation right which is settled by the issuance of shares The stock options

awarded under the 2010 Plan are exercisable at any time or in any installments as determined by

ii the compensation committee of the Board at the time of grant and may be either incentive or

jj non-qualified stock options under the Internal Revenue Code as determined by the compensation

84 committee The exercise price for stock option grants is equal to the closing price of the Common

Stock on the date of grant At June 30 2011 1073500 shares of Common Stock remained

available for grant under the 2010 Plan of which 523500 shares can be issued as full value shares

For the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 total share-based compensation expense

charged against income for all stock plans was as follows

Year Ended Jnne 30

Amounts in millions 2011 2010 2009

Stock options $1.8 $2.2 $2.4

Employee stock purchase plan 0.6 0.5 0.4

Restricted stock 2.5 2.1

Total share-based compensation expense $4.9 $4.8 $2.8

During the year ended June 30 2009 the Company reversed $1.7 million in previously

recognized share-based compensation relating to the performance-based restricted stock granted in

August 2007 and 2006 In addition the end of fiscal 2009 the Company also reversed all share

based compensation cost related to the August 2008 performance-based restricted stock grants that

had been recorded in earlier interim periods during fiscal 2009 as the Company determined that the

vesting of shares under the August 2006 2007 and 2008 performance-based restricted stock grants

was not probable The tax benefit related to the compensation cost charged to income for the years

ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 was approximately $0.9 milhon $0.7 million and $1.6

million respectively

As of June 30 2011 there were approximately $4.9 million of unrecognized compensation costs

related to non-vested share-based arrangements granted under the Companys share-based

compensation plans These costs are expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of

approximately three years
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Stock Options

On August 1.5 2011 the Board granted to eniployees stock options
for 95500 shares of

Common Stock The stock options are due to vest in equal thirds over three-year period on dates

that are two business days after the Companys financial results for each of the fiscal years ending

June 30 2012 2013 and 2014 are pubhcly announced but only if the person receiving the grant is

still employed by the Company at the time of
vesting The exercise price of those stock options is

$31.78 per share bich was the closing price
of the Common Stock on the effective date of grant

The weighted-average grant
date fair value of

options granted was $14.51 per share based on the

Black-Scholes option pricing
model The

options expire ten years
from the date of grant

Year Ended Jane 30 2011 On August 16 2010 the Board granted to employees stock

options for 171700 shares of Common Stock The stock
options are due to vest in equal thirds over

three- ear period on dates that are two business days after the Companys financial results for

each of the fiscal
years ending June 30 2011 2012 and 2013 are publicly announced but only if

the person receiving
the

grant is still employed by the Company at the time of vesting The exercise

price of those stock options is $16.15 per share which was the
closing price of the Common Stock

on the effective date of grant The weighted-average grant
date fair value of options granted was

$7.22 per
share based on the Black-Scholes

option pricing model The
options expire ten years from

the date of grant

On No\ember 2010 the date of the Companys 2010 annual shareholders meeting the

Company granted stock
options

for an aggregate
of 39.600 shares of Common Stock to six

non-employee directors under the Companys 2004 Director Plan All of the stock
options granted

85

on November 2010 are exercisable three
years

from the date of grant
if such persons continue to

serve as director until that date The exercise price
of those stock options is $20.69 per share

which was the closing price of the Common Stock on the date of grant The eighted-average grant

date fair value of
options granted was $9.13 per

share based on the Black Scholes option pricing

model The options expire ten years
from the date of grant

Year Ended Jane 30 2010 On August 17 2009 the Board granted to employees stock

options for 288000 shares of Common Stock The stock
options are due to vest in equal thirds over

three-year period on dates that are two business days after the Companys financial results for

each of the fiscal
years ending June 30 2010 2011 and 2012 are publicly announced but only if

the person receiving
the

grant is still employed by the Company at the time of vesting
The exercise

price of those stock
options is $9.33 per

share which was the
closing price of the Common Stock on

the effective date of grant The weighted average grant-date fair value of options granted was $4.11

per
share based on the Black-Scholes

option pricing
model The options expire ten years

from the

date of grant

On November 12 2009 the date of the Companys 2009 annual shareholders meeting the

Company granted stock
options for an aggregate of 30000 shares of Common Stock to five

non-emplo ee directors under the Compan 2004 Director Plan In addition the Board on that

date granted 6000 shares of Common Stock to an employee director under the Companys 2004

Incentive Plan All of the stock options granted on November 12 2009 are exercisable three ears

fromn the date of
grant

if such persons continue to serve as director until that date The exercise

price of those stock
options is $13.48 per share which was the closing price of the Common Stock

on the date of grant The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted was $5.98 per

share based on the Black Scholes option-pricing model The options expire ten ears from the date

of grant
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Year Ended June 30 2009 On August 18 2008 the Board granted to employees stock

options for 29z1.600 shares of Common Stock The stock options are due to vest in equal thirds over

three-year period on dates that are two business days after the Companys financial results for

each of ihe fiscal years ending June 30 2009 2010 and 2011 are publicly announced but only if

the person receiving the grant is still employed by the Company at the time of vesting The exercise

price of those stock options is $18.88 per share which was the closing price of the Common Stock

on the effective date of grant The weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted was

10 per share based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model The options expire ten
years

from

the dale of grant

On November 12 2008 the date of the Companys 2008 annual shareholders meeting the

Company granted stock options for an aggregate of 30000 shares of Common Stock to five

non-emplo ee directors nuder the Companys 2004 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan In

addition the Board on that date granted 6.000 shares of Common Stock to an employee director

under the Compan 2004 Incentive Plan All of the stock options granted on November 12 2008

are exercisable three ears from the date of grant if such persons continue to serve as director until

that date The exercise price of those stock options is $13.88 per share which was the closing price

of the Common Stock on the date of grant The weighted-average grant-date fair value of the

options granted was $4.99 per share based on the Black-Seholes option pricing model The options

expire ten ears from the date of grant

The option activities under the Companys stock option plans are as follows

86
Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Beginning outstanding options ... 3469284 $16.36 3310627 $16.74 3191393 $16.59

New
grants 211300 17.00 324000 9.79 330600 18.34

Exercised 1353.435 15.09 154.993 10.26 62216 10.73

Canceled/Expired 12200 22.12 10350 23.56 149150 19.80

Ending outstanding options 2314949 $17.14 3469284 $16.36 3310627 $16.74

Exercisable at end of period 1747007 18.06 2784491 2622983

Weighted average fair value per

share of options granted during

the
year 7.58 4.32 6.87

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Number Weighted Number Weighted

Outstanding Average Weighted Exercisable Average Weighted
as of Remaining Average as of Remaining Average

.- Range of Jnne 30 Contractual Exercise June 30 Contractual Exercise
Exercise Price 2011 Life Price 2011 Life Price

9.33 $15.00 965831 4.5 $12.14 701.826 3.2 $12.76

S15.01 $20.00 562.534 6.8 $17.84 298197 5.4 $18.50

$20.01 Oer 786584 4.7 $22.76 746984 4.4 $22.87

2314949 5.1 $17.14 1747007 4.1 $18.06

The intrinsic value of stock option is the amount by which the current market value of the

underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of the option The intrinsic value of stock options
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outstanding and exercisable at June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 was $19.1 million $2.5 million and

$0.1 million respectively Tlie total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the years ended

June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 based upon tlie average market price during the period was

approximately $12.0 million $1.0 million and $0.2 million respectively

The
weiglited-average grant-date fair value of options granted during tlie years ended June 30

2011 2010 and 2009 was estimated on the
grant

date
using

tlie Black-Scholes option-pricing

model with the following assumptions

Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009

Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Expected price volatility 56.0% 55.0% 37.0%

Risk-free interest rate 1.682.22% 2.22 2.45% 2.37 3.17%

Expected life of options in
years

Employee Stock Purchase Plan The Company currently lias an Employee Stock Purchase

Plan ESPP under wliich employees in certain countries are permitted to deposit after tax funds

from theft wages for purposes of purcliasing Common Stock at 15% discount from the lowest of

tlie closing price of tlie Common Stock at either tlie start of the contribution period or tlie end of the

contribution period On May 30 2011 and November 30 2010 purchases of Common Stock

occurred under tliis plan for 49203 shares and 57646 shares respectively The next purcliase

under the ESPP -will be consummated on November 30 2011
87

On August 2011 the Board approved the Companys 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

the 2011 ESPP because the shares of Common Stock available under the ESPP will soon be

exhausted The 2011 ESPP authorizes the issuance of up to 1000000 shares of Common Stock

under terms and conditions that are in all material respects the same as those in the ESPP The

2011 ESPP will be submitted to the Companys shareholders at the Companys 2011 annual

shareholders meeting scheduled for November 2011 and will become effective on December 2011

if approved by the Companys shareholders

Restricted Stock

On August 15 2011 the Board granted to employees 98300 shares of service-based restricted

stock units The service-based restricted stock units will vest in equal thirds over three-year period

on date that is two business days after the Companys financial results for each of the years ending

June 30 2012 2013 and 2014 are publicly announced but only if the person receiving the grant is

still employed by the Conipany at the time of vesting The fair value of the service-based restricted

stock units granted was based on the closing price of the Companys common stock on the date of

grant The service based restricted stock units are recorded as additional paid-in capital in

shareholders equity as amortization occurs over the three-year vesting period

Year Ended June 30 2011 On November 2010 26500 shares of sers ice-based restricted

.- stock were granted to employees of the Company The grant of service-based restricted stock was

originally approved on August 2010 by the compensation committee of the Board subject to

shareholder approval of the 2010 Plan at the November 2010 annual shareholders meeting and

filing of registration statement on Form S-8 relating to the Plan The service-based restricted stock

will vest in equal thirds on date that is two businegs days after the Companys financial results for

each of the
years ending June 30 2011 2012 and 2013 are publicly announced but only if the

person receiving the grant is still employed by the Company at the time of vesting The service

based restricted stock is recorded as additional paid in capital in shareholders equity as

amortization occurs over the vesting period
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On August 16 2010 the Board granted to employees 146400 shares of service based restricted

srock The service-based restricted stock will vest in eçual thirds over three-year period on datc

that is two business days after the Companys financial results for each of the years ending June 30

2011 2012 aud 2013 are publicly announced but only if the person receiving the grant is still

employed by the Company at the time of vesting The fair value of the service-based restricted stock

granted was based on the closing price of the Companys Common Stock on the date of grant The

service based restricted stock is recorded as additional paid-in capital in shareholders equity as

amortization occurs over the three-year vesting period

Year Ended June 30 2010 On August 17 2009 the Board granted to employees 259200

shares of service based restricted stock The service-based restricted stock will vest in equal thirds

over three-year period on date that is two business days after the Compan financial results for

each of the years ending June 30 2010 2011 and 2012 are pnbhcly announced but only if the

person receiving the grant is still employed by the Company at the time of vesting The fair value of

the sen ice based restricted stock granted was based on the closing price of the Companys Common

Stock on the date of grant The service-based restricted stock is recorded as additional paid in

capital in shareholders equity as amortization occurs over the three-year vesting period

Year Ended June 30 2009 On August 18 2008 the Board granted to emploees 117800

shares of performance-based restricted stock and 121133 shares of service based restricted stock

All or part of the performance-based restricted stock would vest on date that is two business days

jj after the Companys financial results for fiscal 2011 are released to the public but only if the

88 person receiving the grant is still employed by the Company and ii the Company achieves

cumulative earnings per diluted share target The service-based restricted stock will vest in equal

thirds over three-year period on date that is two business days after the Companys financial

results for each of the fiscal years ending June 30 2009 2010 and 2011 are publicly announced

but only if the person is still employed by the Company at the time of vesting The fair value of the

restricted stock granted was based on the closing price of the Common Stock on the date of grant

The restricted stock is recorded as additional paid-in capital in shareholder equity as amortization

occurs over the three- ear vesting period

summary of the Companys restricted stock activity for the year ended June 30 2011 is

.-

presented below

Weighted

Average
Shares Grant Date

Restricted Stock 000 Fair Value

Non-vested at July 2010 891 $16.52

Granted 173 $16.90

Vested 491 $17.39

Forfeited 78 $22.49

Non-vested at June 30 2011 495 $V.86

In March 2005 the Company granted to employees 410800 shares of market-based restricted

stock MBRS In March 2011 343800 shares of the outstanding market-based restricted stock

net of forfeitures vested In connection with the vesting the Company withheld 121908 shares of

Common Stock at fair market value of $28.08 per share representing cost of approximately $3.4

million to satisfy minimum statutory tax withholding obligations resulting from such vesting The

acquisition of these shares by the Company was accounted for under the treasury method
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NOTE 15 Fair Value Measurements

Accounting standards define fair valne as the price that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer liability in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at thc measurement date The accounting

standards also have established fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inpnts to valuation

techniques used in measuring fair value into three broad levels as follows

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabihties

Level Inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either

directly or indirectly

Level Unobservable iuputs based on the Companys own assumptions

The Companys deri\ ative assets and liabilities are currently composed of foreign currency

contracts Fair values are based on market prices or determined using valuation models that use as

their basis readily observable market data that is actively quoted and can be validated through

external sources including independent pricing services brokers and market transactions

The
following table presents the fair value hierarchy for those of the Companys financial

liabilities that were measured at fair value on recmTiug basis as of June 30 2011

Anowtts in lIlOltSanIS Level Level Level Total

Liabilities

Foreign currency contracts $1978 $1978

As of June 30 2010 the Companys foreign currency contracts were measured at fair value

under Level as an asset of $0.5 milhon and as liabihty of $0.1 million See Note 16 for

discussion of the Companys foreign currency contracts

Accounting standards require non financial assets and liabilities to be recognized at fair value

subsequent to initial recognition vhen they are deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired As if

June 30 2011 the Company did not have any non-financial assets and liabihties measured at fair

value

NOTE 16 Derivative Financial Instruments

The Comnpan operates in several foreign countries which exposes it to market risk associated

with foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations The Companys risk management policy is to enter

into cash flow hedges to reduce portion of the exposure of the Companys foreign subsidiaries

revenues to fluctuations in currency rates using foreigii currency forward contracts The Company

also enters into cash flow hedges for portion of its forecasted inventory purchases to reduce the

exposure of its Canadian and Australian subsidiaries cost of sales to such fluctuations The principal

currencies hedged are British pounds Euros Canadian dollars and Australian dollars The Company

does not enter into derivative financial contracts for speculative or trading purposes The Companys

derivative financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value

determined using pricing models based on market prIces or determined using valuation models that

use as their basis readily observable market data that is actively quoted and can be validated

through external sources including independent pricing services brokers and market transactions

Cash flows from derivative financial instruments are classified as cash flows from
operating

activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows
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Foreign currency contracts used to hedge forecasted revenues are designated as cash flow hedges

These contracts are used to hedge forecasted subsidiaries revenues generally over approximately 12 to

24 months Changes to fair value of the foreign currency contracts are recorded as component of

accumulated other comprehensive income loss within shareholders equity to the extent such

contracts are effective and are recognized in net sales in the period in which the forecasted transaction

affects earnings or the transactions are no longer probable of occurring Changes to fair value of any

contracts deemed to be ineffective would be recognized in earnings immediately There were no

amounts recorded in fiscal 2011 2010 or 2009 relating to foreign currency contracts used to hedge

forecasted revenues resulting from hedge ineffectiveness As of June 30 2011 the Company had

notional amounts of 10.4 million British pounds under foreign currency contracts used to hedge

forecasted revenues that expire between July 31 2011 and May 31 2012

Foreign currency contracts used to hedge forecasted cost of sales are designated as cash flow

hedges These contracts are used to hedge forecasted Canadian and Australian subsidiaries cost of

sales generally over approximately 12 to 24 months Changes to fair value of the foreign currency

contracts are recorded as component of accumulated other comprehensive income loss within

shareholders equity to the extent such contracts are effective and are recognized in cost of sales in

the period in which the forecasted transaction affects earnings or the transactions are no longer

probable of occurring Changes to fair value of any contracts deemed to be ineffective would be

recognized in earnings immediately There were no amounts recorded in fiscal 2011 2010 or 2009

relating to foreign currency contracts used to hedge forecasted cost of sales resulting from hedge

ineffectiveness As of June 30 2011 the Company had notional amounts of 14.5 million Canadian

dollars and 10.6 million Austrahan dollars under foreign currency contracts used to hedge forecasted

cost of sales that expire between July 31 2011 and May 31 2012

When appropriate the Company also enters into and settles foreign currency contracts for Euros

British pounds and Canadian dollars to reduce exposure of the Companys foreign subsidiaries balance

sheets to fluctuations in foreign currency rates These contracts are used to hedge balance sheet

exposure generally over one month and are settled before the end of the month in which they are

entered into Changes to fair value of the forward contracts are recognized in selling general
and

administrative expense in the period in which the contracts expire For the year ended June 30 2011

the Company recorded charge
of $3.2 million in selling general and administrative expenses related

to these contracts For the years ended June 30 2010 and 2009 the Company recorded credit of

$1.3 million and $3.3 million respectively in selling general and administrative expenses
related to

these contracts As of June 30 2011 there were no such foreign currency contracts outstanding There

were no amounts recorded in fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 relating to foreign currency contracts to

hedge subsidiary balance sheets resulting
from hedge ineffectiveness

The following tables illustrate the fair value of outstanding foreign currency contracts and the

gains losses associated with the settlement of these contracts

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

Liability Derivatives

Amounts in thousands As of June 30 2011

Balance Sheet Fair

Location Value

Derivatives
designated as effective hedges

Foreign Currency Contracts Other payables $1978

Total $1978

At June 30 2010 the Companys foreign currency contracts were measured at fair value under

Level as an asset of $0.5 million and as liability of $0.1 million
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Loss Gain Recognized on Derivatives in Other Comprehensive Income Loss Net of Tax

Effective Portion

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thousnnds 2011 2010 2009

Currency Contracts Sales 481 745 8944

Currency Contracts Cost of Sales 1284 366 567

Total 1765 379 9511

Loss Gain Reclassified from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss into Income

Effective Portion

Year Ended June 30

Amounts in thonsnnos 2011 2010 2009

Currency Contracts Sales1 975 766 14124

Currency Contracts Cost of Sales2 2199 662 852

Total 3174 104 14976

NOTE 17 Quarterly Data Unaudited

Condensed consolidated quarterly and interim information is as follows Amounts in

thousands except per share data

NOTE 18 Segment Data And Related Information

Fiscal uarter Ended

June 30
2011

March 31
2011

December 31
2010

September 30
2010

$253750 $231296 $405633 $284821

120175 114475 193219 128408

9420 5516 50340 12299

5395 3251 33958 4887

0.19 0.12 1.24 0.18

0.18 0.12 1.19 0.17

0.08 0.14 0.75

0.08 0.14 0.73

Reportable operating segments as defined by Codification Topic 280 Segment Reporting

include components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is

evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker the Chief Executive in deciding how to
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Net sales

Gross profit

Income from operations

Net income loss
Income loss per common share

Basic

Diluted

Net sales

Gross profit

Income loss from
operations

Nt income loss
Income loss per common share

Basic

Diluted

June 30
2010

$228243

104218

3664

2293

Fiscal Quarter Ended

March 31 December 31 September 30
2010 2009 2009

$217026 $393345 $265164

101811 174324 115620

1023 36483 5668

3856 21056 40
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allocate resources and in assessing performance As result of the similarities in the procurement

marketing and distribution
processes

for all of the Companys products much of the information

provided in the consolidated financial statements is similar to or the same as that reviewed on

regular basis by the Chief Executive

-- At June 30 2011 our operations were organized into the following reportable segments

North America The North America segment sells the Companys portfolio of owned
licensed and distributed brands including the Elizabeth Arden products to department

stores mass retailers and distributors in the United States Canada and Puerto Rico and

also includes the Companys direct to consumer business which is composed of the

Elizabeth Arden branded retail outlet stores and the Companys global e-commerce

business This segment also sells the Elizabeth Arden products through the Red Door

beauty salons which are owned and operated by an unrelated third party that licenses the

Elizabeth Arden and Red Door trademarks from the Company for use in its salous

International The International segment sells the Companys portfolio of owned and

licensed brands including the Elizabeth Arden products in approximately 100 countries

outside of North America to perfumeries boutiques department stores travel retail outlets

and distributors

Commencing July 2010 the Companys operations
and management reporting structure

were reorganized into two reportable segments North America and International The
portion

of the

92
Companys business operations that previously sold Elizabeth Arden fragrance cosmetic and skin

care products in
prestige department stores in the United States and through the Red Door beauty

salons which was previously reported as the Companys Other segment was consolidated with the

North America Fragrance segment to create the North America segment

The Chief Executive evaluates segment profit based upon operating income which
represents

earnings before income taxes interest expense and depreciation and amortization charges The

accounting policies for each of the reportable segments are the same as those described in Note

General Information and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies The assets and liabilities of

the Company are managed centrally and are reported internally in the same manner as the

consolidated financial statements thus no additional information regarding assets and liabilities of

the Companys reportable segments is produced for the Chief Executive or included herein

Segment profit loss excludes depreciation and amortization interest expense debt

extinguishment charges consolidation and elimination adjustments and unallocated
corporate

expenses which are shown in the table reconcihng segment profit loss to consolidated income

loss before income taxes Included in unallocated
corporate expenses are restructuring charges

that are related to an announced plan ii costs related to the Initiative and iii restructuring costs

for
corporate operations These expenses are recorded in unallocated corporate expenses as these

items are centrally directed and controlled and are not included in internal measures of segment

operating performance Effective July 2010 employee incentive costs were fully allocated to

the North America and International segments as applicable and
restructuring costs that are

not part of an announced plan were recorded in the Companys reportable segment that incurred the

costs or in unallocated
corporate expenses

if related to corporate operations Prior period amounts

related to segment profit measures have been restated for comparison purposes The Company does

not have any intersegment
sales



Amounts in thousonds

Segment Net Sales

North America

International

Total

Segment Profit Loss
North America

International

Total

Reconciliation

Segment Profit

Less

Depreciation and Amortization

Interest Expense

Consolidation and Elimination Adjustments

Unallocated Corporate Expenses

Income Loss Before Income Taxes

Year Ended June 30

2010

756731
418.769

719330

384447

703864

366361

$1175500 $1103777 $1070225

104013

6420

92741
551

88807

17232

110.433 93292 71575

110433 93292 71.575

29835 28459 26158

21481 21885 24814

1854 135092 4784

76371 6613s 30298i

49626 22.826 14479
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The following table is comparative summary of the Companys net sales and segment profit

loss by reportable segment for the fiscal
years ending June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

2011 2009
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Amounts shown for the year ended June 30 2011 include $6.5 million of debt

extinguishment charges ii $0.5 million of restructuring expenses
for

corporate operations not

related to the Initiative iii $0.3 million of restructuring expenses related to the Initiative and

iv $0.3 million of expenses related to the implementation of an Oracle accounting and order

processing system

Amounts for the year ended June 30 2010 include $5.5 milhon related to lower than normal

price charged to the North America segment with
respect to certain sales of inventory by that

segment that were undertaken at the direction of corporate rather than segment management
Amounts for the year ended June 30 2010 include $3.9 million of

expenses
related to the

implementation of an Oracle accounting and order processing system ii $1.9 million of

restructuring expenses related to the Initiative iii $0.7 million of restructuring expenses
not

related to the Initiative and iv $0.1 million of debt extinguishment costs

In May 2008 the Company entered into an exclusive long-term global licensing agreement for

the Liz Claiborne fragrance brands which became effective on June 2008 Amounts shown

for the
year ended June 30 2009 include $23.3 million of expenses $18.9 million of which

did not require the use of cash related to the Liz Claiborne license agreement due to Liz

Claiborne inventory that was purchased at higher cost prior to the June 2008 effective date of

the license agreement and transition expenses ii $3.5 million of restructuring expenses
related

to the Initiative iii $3.4 million of expenses related to the implementation of an Oracle

accounting and order processing systems and iv $0.1 million of restructuring expenses not

related to the Initiative

During the year ended June 30 2011 the Company sold its products in approximately 100

countries outside the United States through its international affiliates and subsidiaries with

operations headquartered in Geneva Switzerland and through third party
distributors The

Companys international operations are subject to certain risks including political instability in

certain regions of the world and diseases or other factors affecting customer purchasing patterns
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economic and political consequences of terrorist attacks or the threat of such attacks and

fluctuations in foreign exchange rates that could adversely affect its results of operations See

Item 1A Risk Factors The value of international assets is affected by fluctuations in foreign

currency exchange rates For discussion of foreigii currency translation see Note 16

The Companys consolidated net sales by principal geographic areas and principal classes of

products are summarized as follows

Year Ended Jnne 30

Arnowits in thousands 2011 2010 2009

Net sales

United States 701642 670321 652741

United Kingdom 69922 70257 73560

Foreign other than United Kingdom 403936 363199 343924

Total $1175500 $1103777 $1070225

Classes of similar products net sales

Fragrance 900289 854000 835344

Skin care 207125 182996 175167

Cosmetics 68.086 66781 59714

11111
Total $1175500 $1103777 $1070225

Information concerning consohdated long-lived assets for the U.S and foreign operations is as

follows

Jnne 30

Amounts in thousands 2011 2010

Long-hved assets

United States1 $253867 5247.780

Foreign2 34707 29301

Total $288574 $277081

Primarily exclusive brand licenses trademarks and intangibles net and property and

equipment net

Primarily property and equipment net

NOTE 19 Subsequent Event

On August 10 2011 the Company amended its long-term license agreement with Liz

Claiborne Inc and certain of its affiliates to acquire
all of the U.S and international trademarks for

the Curve fragrance brands as well as trademarks for certain other smaller fragrance brands The

amendment also establishes lower effective royalty rate for the remaining licensed fragrance

brands including Juicy Couture and Lucky Brand fragrances reduces the future minimum

guaranteed royalties for the term of the license and requires pre-payment of royalties for the

remainder of calendar 2011 The Company paid Liz Claiborne Inc $58.4 million in cash in

connection with this transaction The allocation of the $58.4 million to the net assets acquired has

not been finalized



ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING

AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer and our Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer who are the principal executive officer and principal financial officer

respectively have evaluated the effectiveness and operation of our disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Rules 13a 15e and 15d 15e of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended as of the end of the period covered by this annual report the Evaluation Date Based

upon such evaluation they have concluded that as of the Evaluation Date our disclosure controls

and procedures are functioning effectively

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during our most

recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected or are likely to materially affect our internal

control over financial reporting

Managemenfs report on our internal control over financial reporting as such term is defined in

Rules 13a-15f and 15d 15f under the Exchange Act is included in our Financial Statements in

Item under the heading Report of Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting and is hereby incorporated by reference The related report of our independent registered

public accounting firm is also included in our Financial Statements in Item under the heading

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

II

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have adopted Supplcmental Code of Ethics for the Directors and Executive and Finance

Officers that applies to our directors our chief executive officer our chief financial officer and our

other executive officers and finance officers The full text of this Code of Ethics as approved by our

board of directors is published on our website at www.elizabetharden.com under the section

Investor Relations Corporate Governance Code of Ethics We intend to disclose future

amendments to and waivers of the provisions of this Code of Ethics on our website

The other information required by this item will be contained in the Companys Proxy

Statement relating to the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed within 120 days after the

end of our fiscal
year

ended June 30 2011 the proxy statement and is incorporated herein by this

reference or is included in Part under Executive Officers of the Company

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item will be contained in the proxy statement and is

incorporated herein by this reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MA11IERS

The information required by this item will be contained in the proxy statement and is

incorporated herein by this reference



ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item will be contained in the proxy statement and is

incorporated herein by this reference

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item will be contained in the proxy statement and is

incorporated herein by this reference

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements Report of Management and Report of Independent

Registered Public Accounting Firm are listed in the Index to Financial Statements and

Schedules on page 42 and included on pages 43 through 50

Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the

Securities and Exchange Commission the Commission are either not required under

the related instructions are not applicable and therefore have been omitted or the

required disclosures are contained in the financial statements included herein

II Exhibits including those incorporated by reference
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Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company dated November 17
2005 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 filed as part

of the Compan
Form 10-Q for the

quarter
ended December 31 2005 Commission File

No 1-6370

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3.1 filed as part
of the Companys Form 8-K dated October 27 2009

Commission File No 6370
4.1 Indenture dated as of January 21 2011 respecting

Ehzabeth Arden Inc.s 73/g%

Senior Notes due 2021 among Elizabeth Arden Inc and U.S Bank National

Association as trustee incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K dated January 21 2011 Commission File No 1-6370

10.1 Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of January 21 2011 among
Elizabeth Arden Inc as borrower JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A as administrative

agent Bank of America N.A as collateral
agent

and syndication agent Wells Fargo

Capital Finance LLC HSBC Bank USA N.A and U.S Bank National Association as

co-documentation agents JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A and Bank of America N.A as

joint lead arrangers and the other lenders
party

thereto incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed as part
of the Companys Form 8-K dated January 21

2011 Commission File No 6370
10.2 Amended and Restated Security Agreement dated as of January 29 2001 made by

the Company and certain of its snbsitharies in favor of Fleet National Bank n/k/a
Bank of America N.A as administrative agent incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 4.5 filed as part of the Companys Form 8-K dated January 23 2001

Commission File No 1-6370



Exhibit

Number Description

10.3 Amended and Restated Deed of Lease dated as of January 17 2003 between the

Company and Liberty Property Limited Partnership incorporated herein by

referenced to Exhibit lOS filed as part
of the Companys Form 10-Q for the

quarter

ended April 26 2003 Commission File No 1-6370

10.4 2004 Stock Incentive Plan as amended and restated incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.12 filed as part
of the Companys Form 10-Q for the

quarter

ended December 31 2007 Commission File No 1-6370

10.5 2004 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan as amended incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed as part
of the Companys Form 10 for the

quarter

ended September 30 2006 Commission File No 1-6370

10.6 2000 Stock Incentive Plan as amended incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.14 filed as part of the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

December 31 2007 Commission File No 1-6370

10.7 1995 Stock Option Plan as amended incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 filed as part of the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30 2006 Commission File No 1-6370
10.8 Amended 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.17 filed as part
of the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

December 31 2009 Commission File No 1-6370

10.9 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan as amended incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.6 filed as part of the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended September 30 2006 Commission File N0 6370 II

10.10 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for stock option awards under the

Companys Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.8 filed as part of the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended March 31 2005 Commission File No 1-6370

10.11 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for stock option
awards under the

Companys 1995 Stock Option Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9

filed as part of the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2005

Commission File No 1-6370

10.12 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for stock option awards under the

Companys 1995 Stock Option Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.10 filed as part of the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31
2005 Commission File No 1-6370

10.13 Form of Stock Option Agreement for stock option awards under the Companys 2000

Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 filed as part

of the Companys Form 10 for the
quarter ended March 31 2005 Commission File

No 1-6370

10.14 Form of Stock Option Agreement for stock option awards under the Companys 2004

Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10 14 filed as part
of the Companys Form 10-Q for the

quarter
ended

-i

March 31 2005 Commission File No 1-6370

10.15 Form of Stock Option Agreement for stock option awards under the Companys 2004

Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 filed as part

of the Companys Form 10-K for the
year

ended June 30 2005 Commission File

No 6370
10.16 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the restricted stock awards under the

Companys 2004 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.20 filed as part of the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended

June 30 2005 Commission File No 1-6370



Exhibit

Number Description

10.17 Elizabeth Arden inc Severance Policy as amended and restated on May 2010

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.31 filed as part of the Companys
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2010 Commission File No 1-6370

10.18 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for service-based restricted stock awards three-

year vesting period under the Companys 2000 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.32 filed as part
of the Companys Form 10-K for the

year
ended June 30 2007 Commission File No 1-6370

10.19 Form of Indemnification Agreement for Directors and Officers of Elizabeth Arden

Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed as part
of the Companys

Form 8-K dated August 11 2009 Commission File No 1-6370

10.20 Elizabeth Arden Inc 2010 Stock Award and Incentive Plan incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.3 filed as part
of the Companys Form S-8 Registration

No 333-170287 filed on November 2010 Commission File No l-o370

10.21 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for service-based stock awards under the

Companys 2010 Stock Award and Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.35 filed as part of the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30 2010 Commission File No 1-6370

12.1 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP

24.1 Power of Attorney included as part
of the signatures page

98 31.1 Section 302 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32 Section 906 Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial

Officer

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Filed herewith

The exhibits to this annual
report are hsted in the Exhibit Index located on pages Q6 Q8 Elizabeth

Arden Inc will furnish any or all of these exhibits upon the payment of $10 per page $5.00

minimum Any request
for exhibits should be addressed to Investor Relations Elizabeth Arden

Inc 200 Park Avenue South New York NY 10003 should specify which exhibits are desired

should state that the person making such
request was shareholder on September 12 2011 and

should be accompanied by remittance payable td Elizabeth Arden Inc in the minimum amount of

$5.00 Elizabeth Arden Inc will bill for any additional charge
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized as of the 16th day of August 2011

ELIZABETH ARDEN INC

By Is SCOTT BEATTIE

Scott Beattie

Chairman President Chief

Executive Officer and Director

Principal Executive Officer

We the undersigned directors and officers of Elizabeth Arden Inc hereb3 severally constitute

Scott Beattie and Stephen Smith and each of them singly our true and lawful
attorneys

with

full power to them and each of them to sign for us in our names in the
capacities

indicated below

any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this
report

has been

signed by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant

and in the
capacities

and on the dates

indicated

Signature Title Date
11111

Is SCOTT BEA1 TIE Chairman President and Chief August 16 2011 99

Scott Beattie
Executive Officer and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Is STEPHEN Srvwrti Executive Vice President and August 16 2011

Stephen Smith Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer

Is FRED BERENS Director August 16 2011

.1 Fred Berens

Is MAURA CLARK Director August 16 2011

Maura Clark

Is RICHARD MAURAN Director August 16 2011

Richard C.W Mauran

Is WILLIAM TATHAM Director August 16 2011

William Tatham

Is NEVIL THOMAS Director August 16 2011

J.W Nevil Thomas

Is SALMAN AMIN Director August 16 2011

Salman Amin
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